y i

y

N

) NN




Contents

Corporate Information

Shareholding Structure

Financial Highlights

Analysis of Turnover and Profit
Chairman’s Statement

Management Discussion and Analysis
Directors and Senior Management
Corporate Governance Report

Report of the Directors

Independent Auditors’ Report
Consolidated Income Statement
Consolidated Balance Sheet
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
Balance Sheet

Notes to Financial Statements
Five-Year Financial Summary
Property List

Notice of Annual General Meeting

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

S G A W N

f—y
(=]

37
46
62
65
66
68
70
72
73

191

192

207

B &

NAE R
e LS
s E

S Som M

ERBRE

B E AT M AT
BA B

—_

e
it
XA
Bl
SH
g

Aj i

H
=
Off

e
it

>
M
g mR
oK

_%:%L
of
i

I I I I e
o> o> o> o> K
wowm oy s
K Bx W Bk %
o om M =
o &y =
SO S Df

m,
il
S

B 75 S 5% B
hEPHRE
ME-HEX

BRRAFASRE



2

Corporate Information | 2 & & #}

Executive Directors

Mr. HU Aimin, Chairman
Mr. ZHANG Yijun, President
Mr. ZHAO Gesheng

Mr. XIAO Rihai

Mr. LIANG Kaiping

Mr. LIU Weijin

Mr. ZHANG Huagiao

Mr. TAM Ping Lung

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LEE Yip Wah, Peter
Dr. WU Jiesi
Mr. HU Zuoyuan (resigned on 22 April 2008)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Po Yan
Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael
Mr. LI Wai Keung

Company Secretary
Mr. CHEUNG Wing Yui, Edward
Authorised Representative

Mr. HU Aimin
Mr. ZHANG Yijun

Auditors

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

Legal Adviser
Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo, Solicitors & Notaries
Principal Bankers

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Ltd.

The Bank of East Asia, Ltd.

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd.
Hang Seng Bank Ltd.

Nanyang Commercial Bank Ltd.

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Ltd.

Registered Office

8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre
9 Science Museum Road
Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Share Registrar and Transfer Office

Tricor Standard Limited
26/F Tesbury Centre

28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

Website

http://www.shenzheninvestment.com

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR

2

HEarm !

&)
TIECAEE,)

T H

T RS
3

N e
S o ok B 100 e [l W
T8 50 v

2

O ST b
gl HE HE HEHFHFHFHF gt

%
L
8t

FEELL
HESEL
HETRE (R-SENEWNA -+ BE(T)
BYFHTESE
BRMIEE
RERSLE
FREEE
ARWE

SR IK 8 58 &

B E R
HERKE
SRE L E

B BUEM

LK G A B E A
H X & &t AP
=B

EEEM
RS R 2AT 1T
ERERET

PERT(EE) ERAQA
RpRITBRAA

F8 LBESRITBERAA
BAERTERAT
MARBERITAERAR
RETERT (EM) BRAF

http://www.shenzheninvestment.com



Shareholding Structure | B #EZR 48

RE(EE)BRAT
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited

45.46%

ERUREERARAL

Strategic Investors and the Public

RYERBRIE

Shenzhen Investment Limited

B9 1X5% Stock Code : 604

REEASHE(KE )RR F

Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) Co., Ltd.

54.54%

REZR(KE)ROBRATE

Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd.

B EZERRAT
Road King Infrastructure Limited
B ABRSR Stock Code : 1098

REBE(KE)BRAF

Shum Yip Pengji Holdings Co., Ltd.

RERENAREERDERLDF

HBZEREBRAT
Coastal Greeland Limited
R 3 X5% Stock Code : 1124

Shum Yip Taifu Logistics Group Holdings

Co., Ltd.

IEMBEAFE

Principal Subsidiaries

FEHE DT

Principal Associates
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Financial Highlights | Bf 7% # &

Results

Continuing Operations

Turnover

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Share of profits and losses of associates

Profit before tax

Profit for the year attributable to

shareholders
Basic earnings per share (HK cents)
— For profit for the year

— For profit from continuing operations

Dividend per share (HK cents)

Balance Sheet

Net assets after minority interests

Cash and deposits

Net borrowings

Net assets per share after

minority interests (HK$)

Major Ratios

Gross profit margin (%)

Net debt to net assets after

minority interests (%)
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2007
HK$million
BEBEET

2,900.41

1,674.90

1,225.51

423.21

2,459.78

1,714.82

56.97
50.71

29.00

9,848.80

4,689.83

4,947.78

3.05

42.25

50.24

2006
HK$million
BEEET

1,812.60

944.75

867.85

199.93

1,000.97

803.61

31.59
18.64

22.99

6,442.52

4,211.67

3,171.87

2.28

47.88

49.23

Change in
Percentage
2 5
B

60%

77 %

41%

112%

146%

113%

80%
172%

26%

53%

11%

56%

34%

-12%

2%



Analysis of Turnover and Profit |

ERBELAEN DM

2007 2006
HK$million HK$million
Continuing Operations XK BHEBT BEET
Turnover —E 3
Property development MEEE 2,015.11 1,007.38
Property investment MERE 300.02 335.99
Property management MEER 463.45 358.88
Others HAl 121.83 110.35
Total L 2,900.41 1,812.60
Segment Results DEEE
Property development MR 650.57 417.64
Property investment (note) MERE (M) 939.06 504.59
Property management MEER 26.94 9.01
Others A, 0.64 1.75
Total MR 1,617.21 932.99
Share of Results of Associates FEALEE AR A
Property development,
investment and management MEER  RERER 235.46 45.23
Road King Infrastructure Ltd and
others B EEAR A E R EAM 187.75 154.70
Total #E 423.21 199.93
Note: Segment results after increase in fair value of investment properties of B o DEEBE ST AREMELARBERMNA725.58

approximately HK$725.5 million (2006: HK$257.7 million).

EBEL(ZTET A F 25778887 °
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Chairman’s Statement | ETEHR &

Mr. HU Aimin
HERLE

Chairman £ &
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In the context of the vigorous market environment of 2007,
the Group delivered phenomenal results by persistently
focused on enhancing inherent capabilities, distinct
development strategies and operation standards.

Remarkable Growth in Results

The Group recorded the fifth consecutive year of rapid growth
in particular a significant surge for the year as a result of
capturing market opportunities and continuing steady
expansion. The Group will continue to maintain a reasonably
high pay out policy to reward the shareholders.

Transformation to Professional Real Estate
Company

The Group further reinforced the strategic positioning as a
professional real estate developer and had substantially
disposed of its non-core business. During the year, the
disposal of manufacturing activities was basically completed
and the sale of three non-core businesses of expressway and
transportation are progressing as planned.

Elevating Business Scale to Higher Level

The Group maintained the business objective of accelerating
property development, in term of both construction progress
as well as sale of the major projects. As compared to last
year, the Group recorded significant growth in the area of
property sold, the numbers of property projects under
development and total land reserve. All of these will
contribute to a solid base for the long term development of
the Group.

FEHRE

Chairman’s Statement |
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Chairman’s Statement | EFHRE

Further Enhancement of Management
Capabilities

The Group reinforced the application of Mckinsey Scheme
of management control in standardizing management
procedures and improving work flow. By recruiting more
expertise of project managers and enhancing the management
system of multi projects and diversified locations, the
management capabilities of the Group had been elevated to
accommodate the rapid growth in scale of the Group.

In the longer term, the Group considers that there is no
material change to the fundamental elements of the property
market. The Group is still optimistic to the outlook of the
PRC real estate business segment.

Going forward, the Group will adhere to the corporate culture
of “Talents First, Performance Prevails”. It will continue to
maintain the stable operation principles in respect of
strengthening risk management, ensuring adequate cash flow,
optimizing deployment of regional resources and keeping
the low cost structure of land reserve.

The Group will devote efforts in shortening operating cycle
of project development so as to accelerate assets turnover. It
will improve the overall operation capabilities to match with
the expansion in magnitude of business. By maintaining the
competitive advantage of high management efficiency, the
Group will create better returns to the shareholders.

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR
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Management Discussion and Analysis | BE B @w &k 2 #

Mr. ZHANG Yijun
REPRE

President TTIEUA2 %

Business Review ¥ 5B EE

In 2007, China’s property sector was very volatile. The Group Z—ZZ+F FBEFHEMSRARZE K

focused on acquiring land reserves, speeding up development £ B B 55 3 B & 3535 81 35 R 69 800 - IR b

and improving efficiency. We reported the fifth consecutive ~ ERZEM T FEHEEE L& W=PEIR

year of growth in net profit attributable to shareholders. = RER AN E S E O FHGERIRIE
Eo
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In 2007, we recorded a turnover of HK$2,900.4 million from
continuing operations, up 60.0% from the previous year. Net
profit attributable to shareholders amounted to HK$1,714.8
million, up 113.0% from 2006. Basic earnings and fully diluted
earnings per share amounted to HK56.97 cents and HK55.42
cents respectively. Net assets per share at the end of 2007 grew
to HK$3.05 per share, up 33.8% from a year earlier.

Property Development

In 2007, we accelerated the development in all our projects,
and sales performed satisfactorily. Turnover of HK$2,015.1
million was recognised in respect of 306,000 square metres of
contract sales, a growth of 100.0% from the previous year. The
average gross profit margin was 45.0%, a drop of 9% from
2006. It was mainly due to properties sold in 2006 were located
in Shenzhen where profit margins are higher, and the addition
in 2007 projects are outside of Shenzhen with lower margins,
which included those in Huizhou and Changsha. As of the end
of 2007, our contract sales of 50,000 square metres, by the
signed pre-sale contracts of our developed property licensee
were mainly from Wuhan Nanhu Rose Bay Phase I. The pre-
sale income will be recognised in 2008.

Coastal Greenland Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Coastal
Greenland”) is a Hong Kong-listed Chinese property
developer. On 23 July 2007, we converted the US$40 million
of convertible bonds into 443,862,857 shares of Coastal
Greenland at HK$0.7 per share, representing 16.1% of its
enlarged share capital base. As a result, our equity stake in
Coastal Greenland become 21.96%. On 30 October 2007,
we signed a sales and purchase agreement with HSBC under
which we purchased US$50 million in principal value of
five-year, secured senior notes and a warrant to purchase
37,207,500 Coastal Greenland shares. For details, refer to
our circular published on 21 November 2007.

| EEBFAWKR DN

TR AEERECEEBREREHE
WA2,900488F L b EFRAKEERE
60.0% : BEIRWEEGAF,71488 8%
Tt FFEER113.0%  BREREF A
56.978 1l FRREEZ N F55.428 1l F
K BRFEEED3.0587T th FFRE
£733.8% °

) =% bR 3%

FRAEEETSENEEAORATEZEN
o EBIRABE AFELEHEER
E30.68F K -BIREEWA2,015.18
BAETT L FFHEE100.0% @ FHEFKL
B45.0% Ltk EFTRIEF SR - FER L
FREMERARMNFI EFERS M
REREEWMEREININ EDHIREMNA
EAEHm - BTS2+ FR AEEE
TERTPYVWEERZVNEEZARHEERE
W5.08F K EERERERBHIRE
— B ERBHBERABE_ZSZENFARB
LARERR

e REARAR A TEELS%E
RE]) B—REFBRENREFHERZER
RAB FH AR -R_EEZ+F+A-+=
B AR B AT A 8 4% 8 K B 4,0008 3 7T
ARREFITEERE LER0.7E TR
£%443,862,857 BB RERE (5% A
AR BB BITIRAL916.1% © £t AR
ARBAENBHRERBR ZRHIEE21.96% ° ¥
“ETHFE+AZTH AQAREEB LB
ELRITARAA (LATEEELRT])
VR ERE BEELRITRTZAS
50008 X T B ERERAFH BERE
EEE LB EXRE37,207,5000 R A E
BoHBLEBEEEENFBEERNAAT
TEEF+—A -+ —HELEZBEP-

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

11



Management Discussion and Analysis | BEEE I #w & 24
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Shumyip Coast
Phase Il

RARZBHERNRBEDEZERAR AT
B EYER]) TERBRBAKEL
REWERBERK - IF EEHWEEKE
BRERRERE —TTLF BRYERHE
LU AESR2,407.8 BB L FFIE
£376.3%  AFE BYEEETHRREEMN
WA IBEEB L AAEETERAFE
B187.7BEB T L EFERI1.7% °

Road King Infrastructure Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Road
King Infrastructure”), an associated company of the Company, is
principally engaged in toll roads operations and real estate
development business. In recent years, its real estate business
had made significant progresses. In 2007, the real estate income
of Road King Infrastructure reached HK$2,407.8 million, a growth
of 376.3% over last year. During the year, Road King Infrastructure
achieved an attributable net profit to shareholders of HK$851.1
million, contributing to the Group a net profit of HK$187.7
million, a growth of 11.7% over last year.

12 FRINEREBERDA 2007F F 1]



Management Discussion and Analysis |

During the year, the Group disposed its 29% interest in
Shenzhen Gaofa Investment Holding Ltd. (hereinafter referred
to as “Shenzhen Gaofa”) to an independent third party.
Shenzhen Gaofa is a company principally engaged in the
property development business. The completion of this
transaction brought to the Group a net gain after tax of
approximately HK$82.2 million and is already included in
this year’s profit.

During the year, the Group disposed its entire equity interest
in Shenzhen Yabao Property Development Company Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “Shenzhen Yabao”) to an
independent third party. Shenzhen Yabao is principally
engaged in the development and management of Yabao
Industrial City. Yabao Industrial City is located in Longgang,
Shenzhen with a total site area of 623,000 square metres.
The completion of this transaction brought to the Group a
net gain after tax of approximately HK$244.0 million and is
already included in this year’s profit.

EEENWRD M

|

|_—-_.'.-_'.-
-I_-—-_.
| e
g
fem=-
==
==
M e
| ——
e —
| b
| PR
——
l—
| t—
—_
|
L b—
| b SR
r [
| [ ——
| |

1

FR AEEKAFR) T EERERRA
BRAE ATEREDRIIGEE]) 29%0 7
HERBUE = -RISE/—REXRK
EEMERBEER AR AR HHTK
RAEETRBRFRELNS22AEE T
BERFAREFE-

FAAEEBABFEESHEERE
FBRAE (AT ORIIHEE]) 100%5% #
HERBYLE=-F RIBEFTEREHRS
TEHHAEMER BB T EHARFI
BEm ARG 3BFE K- BHERXRSHH
T ARNEEFERBE FINEL244.08 8
BT BEFAREFE

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

13



14

M E MR — 5

Huizhou Wan Lin

Management Discussion and Analysis

Lake Phase |

Projects Under Development and land
reserves

As of end-2007, we had 21 projects under construction with
a total gross floor area of 2,001,000 square metres. Three of
these projects were at the pre-sale stage, with a total salable
floor area of 236,000 square metres, including Wuhan Nanhu
Rose Bay Phase | and Tianan (Nanhai) New Cyber-City Phase
I. In 2008, we will have 17 projects for pre-sale, with a total
salable floor area of 1,139,000 square metres, including
Shumyip Coast Phase Ill, Wuhan Nanhu Rose Bay Phase I, I,
Wanlin Lake Phase Il and Tianan Golf Seaview Garden Phase
Il.

At present, we hold a total of 16,210,000 square metres of
land reserves (in gross floor area) in key cities in the Pearl
River Delta and central China, the attributable size of which
amounted to 11,968,000 square metres (excluding our group
interests of 924,000 square metres in Coastal Greenland and
1,641,000 square metres in Road King).

RYERBR QT 20074 & 7§
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Management Discussion and Analysis | BEEEF#w &k 2 #

RWESE 2L HHEBER (8
KEZEE)

Table of land reserves by location (including
projects in progress)

Attributable

Provinces Cities GFA GFA Percentage
REERE
=Rl W EEEE [ER fhEe
sqm sgqm %
RPN 5K (%)
Guangdong & &% Shenzhen & Y| 2,861,540 2,184,109 18.25
Huizhou 2=/ 1,694,042 1,694,042 14.16
Dongguan 3 5¢ 1,916,663 822,771 6.88
Panyu # £ 543,523 203,821 1.70
Nanhai &8 291,979 98,543 0.82
Foshan {3 L 1,744,878 1,744,878 14.58
Heyuan Jil J& 1,450,000 1,450,000 12.12
Hubei j# 1k Wuhan &% 542,918 320,379 2.68
Hunan j# Changsha &% 1,770,000 1,416,000 11.83
Anhui & & Chaohu £ /4 184,000 147,200 1.23
Maanshan 55 # |1 1,103,671 739,460 6.18
Jiangsu )T &k Taicang K& 850,000 318,750 2.66
Changzhou & /! 686,600 257,475 2.15
Taizhou Z= /M 570,094 570,094 4.76
Total

& &t 16,209,908 11,967,522 100.00

Land Reserve + i E

Land reserves sorted by

Land reserves sorted by Usage

Provinces RARS Bz LR E
REG OBz L RE
2.37%
15.76% 68.50% Com%w%cial 82.74%
Jiangsu Guangdong o, [ E Residential
T8 R >-32% i

Warehousing
9.57% Rl

Industrial
>
I
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Property Investment

In 2007, a non-wholly owned subsidiary was splitted and
therefore the total size of our property investment shrank
from 932,000 square metres to 724,000 square metres.
However, our property investment business continued to
benefit from the appreciation of the property value. We
recorded a rental income of HK$300.0 million. In the year,
we recorded a fair value gain of HK$725.5 million, and that
has been reflected in our profit in the year.

Discontinued Operations

In December 2006, the Company disposed its 31.1% interest
in Shenzhen Topway Video Communication Co., Ltd. by
public bidding at Shenzhen Enterprise Ownership Exchange
Centre and the transaction was completed in January 2007.
The completion of this transaction brought to the Group a
net gain after tax of approximately HK$159.5 million and is
already included in this year’s profit.

During the year, with the approval in the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company on 9 February, 2007, the
Group disposed its 20.07% beneficial interest in Shenzhen
SEG-HITACHI Color Display Device Corporation Limited to
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, the ultimate
controlling shareholder of the Group.

On 18 June 2007, the Group entered into letters of intent,
proposed to dispose its entire equity interests in Shenzhen
PJLD Securities Products Co., Ltd., Shenzhen Shumyip Steel
Centre Limited and Shenzhen Jinghua LCD Ltd. (hereinafter
referred to as “Manufacturing Group”). The Manufacturing
Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sale
of industrial and commercial products and is a separate
business of the Group’s operations. Currently, the disposal
process is progressed as planned.

RYERBR QT 20074 & 7§

| EEBWKR DN

MERE

TR F AEEET-WBRARETY
VO ESAKSEREVELEERFTNN
928 F AR TRRENL7248F F KB
BRFYIEDEEBENTEHER KA&E
MEREEBEBRIEFELSERNBE -2
FEHRBEWA300.08BET - FR K&
ERTBIEMERS EHIEET725.58 88
TLBERFAREF B

HFERER

ZEERFFT A AR EERYITTEER
SHLAREERFRITREGNER
RNEBII%NRG UR —FTLF— A%
Kot IR S ARNEEERMEFKHRELD
15958 8B 2t ARFFH-

FREARBZEZTLF = ANBERIR
RASEB AEBERBMFE20.07%Em
EaNFIERBLYECBETREHARA
ACHEARKERBRREZRE (£E) AR

AF

R-ZFEZLFRATN\B AEBRITER
EROEMBRIEERNERNBRA
AORIRER B RARNRY &ERR
EMAERAR (LA THBIRERDER
Bl MR ZRHEEIBREBEE
REITXERMERNBENEE RAE
EEUMEEEB O E-BA EHET
tEIDEIRET B -



Management Discussion and Analysis

During the year, the Group disposed its 49% interest in Hubei
Shum Yip Huayin Traffic Development Company Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “Hubei Huayin”) to Ping An Insurance
(Group) Company of China, Ltd. Hubei Huayin holds a 91%
equity interest in Hubei Jingdong Expressway Construction and
Development Company Limited (hereinafter referred to as
“Hubei Jingdong”). Hubei Jingdong is principally engaged in
the construction and operation of Jingdong Expressway in Hubei
Province. The completion of this transaction brought to the
Group a gain before tax of approximately HK$48.0 million
and is already included in this year’s profit. On 5 March 2008,
the Company entered into an agreement, proposed to dispose
its 51% equity interest in Hubei Huayin to & JII TR %1% & 7
B~ 7], a company beneficiary owned by SSAAC, at a
total consideration of RMB609.0 million. Upon completion of
this proposed disposal, the Group will cease to own any equity
interest in Hubei Huayin. Details of the proposed disposal are
contained in the announcement of the Company published on
6 March 2008.

On 8 December 2007, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement, proposed to dispose its entire equity
interest in Shum Yip Transportation Company Limited to Shum
Yip Holdings Company Limited, the ultimate controlling
shareholder of the Company, at a consideration of RMB60.0
million. Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited currently holds
45.46% of the issued share capital of the Company. Shum
Yip Transportation Company Limited is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and is
principally engaged in the provision of transportation services
and investment holding. Details of the proposed disposal are
contained in the announcement of the Company published
on 18 December 2007.

On 3 December 2007, the Group entered into a letter of
intent, proposed to dispose its 80% equity interest in Shum
Yip Shenkong Industrial (Group) Co., Ltd. (hereinafter referred
to as “Shum Yip Shenkong”) to Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company. The
respective works are progressing as planned and is expected
to be completed in 2008.

| EEESNBRDN
G P9 AN SR S PR M AL R IR SR B B

BRAR (ATEEDAILER]) 49%89 8
PHELTFETLZRE (KE) ROBRA
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Post Balance Sheet Events

The Group disposes its entire equity interest in Shum Yip
Transportation Company Limited to Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited, the controlling shareholder of the Company
and is scheduled to be completed in 2008. Pursuant to the
sale and purchase agreement, the Group received a
transaction deposit of RMB12.0 million on 24 December
2007 paid by Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited.

The transaction proposed by the Group to dispose it 51%
equity interest in Hubei Huayin to ARIITREREFREAR
MR 22 |@lis currently in progress according to plan and is
expected to be completed in 2008. Pursuant to the agreement,
the Group received RMB60.9 million on 1 April 2008 paid
by RINTREREMEBR 2 A, which is the deposit

equivalent to 10% of the consideration.
Business Outlook

In 2008, the property sector faces significant challenges from
a tighter fiscal and monetary policy by the central
government. However, we are optimistic in the sector’s
long-term outlook. We believe that continued growth in the
economy and urbanization will underpin our long-term
prosperity.

After two years of efforts, we have completed the disposal of
almost all non-core businesses and have become a
fully-fledged property developer. We will continue to take
advantage of our financial strength and expertise to conduct
mergers and acquisitions. Our target in the next few years is
to maintain a 15 million square metres in land reserves and
about 2 million square metres of projects under construction.

In 2008, our estimated the total gross floor area of property
completion amounts to 1,103,000 square metres (781,000
square metres of which will be attributable to us). In 2009,
these two corresponding figures will be 1,495,000 and
1,086,000 square metres, respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis | EEE 5w & 2

Expected completion in 2008 —EEN\FHEFEIEH
Attributable
Project Location Usage GFA Stake GFA
FEREE
HA i & A& EEEE = 1R
(sqm) (%) (sqm)
(FHK) (%) (F7K)
Water Pine Building Shenzhen Industrial
KK = il I%x 32,600 75.0 24,450
Wuhan Nanhu Rose Bay Wuhan Residential
Phase |
O B B E — 8 B E F= 152,539 75.0 114,404
Wanlin Lake Phase Il Huizhou Residential
= MO8 — B = F= 149,117 100.0 149,117
Noah Mountain Forest Changsha Residential
Phase | (residual part)
ap UK —H (B #R) =D T= 8,300 80.0 6,640
Noah Mountain Forest Changsha Residential
Phase Il (Part 1)
Aol —H (— =) =D = 70,000 80.0 56,000
Garden Hill Phase | Huizhou Residential
(Part 1)
FEm—H8(—&E) =N F= 45,000 100.0 45,000
Shumyip Coast Phase Il Shenzhen Residential/
(Part 1) Commercial
REFNER=H(—R) il T 170,000 100.0 170,000
Purple Kylin Hill Phase | Shenzhen Residential
(Part 1)
KBLEE —B (— =) A F= 63,795 100.0 63,795
Tian An Golf Seaview Shenzhen Residential
Garden Il
RemBRER=H el = 151,838 37.5 56,939
Tian An (Panyu) New Panyu Industrial
Cyber-City Phase IV
X (BHR)BISEHHMIME EHE T 126,000 37.5 47,250
Tian An (Longgang) New Shenzhen Industrial
Cyber-City Phase |
R (e M —8 &Y T 66,000 37.5 24,750
Tian An (Nanhai) New Nanhai Industrial
Cyber-City Phase |
AR (B8 BBEFN—H mF T 68,523 33.75 23,127
Total
il 1,103,712 781,472
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Expected completion in 2009

EEENWR DM

—EENFHEFTIEE

Attributable

Project Location Usage GFA Stake GFA
EZERE
HE & A EEERE R [
(sqm) (%) (sqm)
(¥ 7 K) (%) (F7K)
Red Pine Building Shenzhen Industrial
AIMMKE Y I 45,800 75.0 34,350
Wuhan Nanhu Rose Bay Wuhan Residential
Phase I
B2 m B E — 1 T2 3 F= 100,000 75.0 75,000
Times Industrial Park Shenzhen Industrial
FREIZEE el T 88,820 100.0 88,820
Noah Mountain Forest Changsha Residential
Phase Il (Part 2)
o UM ZH (Z2) =D F= 75,000 80.0 60,000
Noah Mountain Forest Changsha Residential
Phase Il (Part 1)
ol ZE (— @) D F=E 60,323 100.0 60,323
Garden Hill Phase | Huizhou Residential
(Part 2)
F g —8 (@) =M F=E 41,407 100.0 41,407
Euro-view Garden Dongguan Residential
Phase | (Part 1)
B sEe— 8 (—RE) = F= 70,000 100.0 70,000
Shumyip Coast Phase Il Shenzhen Residential/
(Part 2) Commercial
REFER=ZBH(ZR) Y B E 86,177 100.0 86,177
Purple Kylin Hill Phase | Shenzhen Residential
(Part 2)
KBLUER B (ZR) w=Y F=E 40,433 100.0 40,433
Royal Spring Villas Dongguan Residential/
Commercial
18 SR 1L E BE 176,000 100.0 176,000
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Management Discussion and Analysis

axlaxd

BENWEDN

Expected completion in 2009 (Continued) @Z—ZEhFEHEFTIEE
(&)
Attributable
Project Location Usage GFA Stake GFA
EmEE
BHA i & A EEER ¥ =@ (R
(sqm) (%) (sqm)
(FF73K) (%) (F7K)
Noble Residence Shenzhen Residential
R R el xF= 126,400 100.0 126,400
Chaohu Project Chaohu Hotel
EMEA LB B 30,400 80.0 24,320
Tian An Buji Hongda Shenzhen Industrial
Building
REMERERE = T 98,376 37.5 36,891
Tian An (Longgang) New Shenzhen Industrial
Cyber-City Phase Il
R (BEr) BUAS ol — 1 3l I 117,600 37.5 44,100
Tian An (Longgang) New Shenzhen Industrial
Cyber-City Phase IlI
K& (BEfe ) B Tk = Bf =Y T 100,000 37.5 37,500
Tian An (Panyu) New Panyu Industrial
Cyber-City Phase V
R (BH) B 1 =HEH I 117,600 37.5 44,100
Tian An (Nanhai) New Nanhai Industrial
Cyber-City Phase Il
A& (F8) 8 — 8 D! T 58,400 33.75 19,739
Tian An (Nanhai) New Nanhai Industrial
Cyber-City Phase 11l
Az (F8) BHHm =54 2] I¥ 61,800 33.75 20,888
Total
=k 1,494,536 1,086,448
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Position

As of end-2007, the Group’s financial conditions were very
sound. Our net assets (after minority interests) amounted to
HK$9,848.8 million (2006: HK$6,442.5 million). Net assets
per share were HK$3.05 (2006: HK$2.28), up 33.8%. Cash
on hand amounted to HK$4,689.8 million (2006: HK$4,211.7
million). Our total borrowings amounted to HK$9,637.6
million (2006: HK$7,383.5 million), of which long-term debts
were HK$6,090.4 million (2006: HK$5,507.0 million). Our
net debt to equity ratio were 50.2% (2006: 49.2%). The
closing in early 2008 of the disposal of the Hubei Huayin,
Shum Yip Shenkong and Shum Yip Transport will significantly
reduce our total debts and our net debt-to-equity ratio.

The Group has debts denominated in both the US dollar and
RMB, and virtually all our operations are in RMB. Our
currency risks are relatively low. In 2007, we did not hedge
our currency exposure.

On 6 February 2008, we secured a three-year loan from
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited amounting to HK$1,000
million. On 18 March 2008, we secured a three-year loan
from DBS Bank Ltd, Hong Kong Branch amounting to HK$300
million. On 3 April 2008, we signed a five-year loan with
China Construction Bank Corporation Hong Kong Branch
amounting to HK$300 million. All these funds will be used
for acquisitions and working capital purposes.
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| EEBWKR DN

B %5k

HIF—ET+F+-_A=+—8 AKNEBE
BkiiERE FEE (T8 RRERE)
9,848.8EBAEIL (ZTE/NF:6,442.580
EEL) BREEFEARINGEL(ZE
TRF:2.2887L) #K33.8% - e
#494,689.88 BAE T (ZZEZTRF 14,2117
BEEL) BB 5E637.688 8L (=
TERNF:7,383. 5888 m) A KREIE
DEHR6,004BEBB T (T X F:
5507.0B BB L) FERKEFEELERR
50.2% (ZZFEZTNF 149.2%) - —_EZ N\ F-
FIRAR REFBNMAXBEHERELS
TR ASBNEEENFERGFEE
Y B & R KRk > o

HRAEEE TR EEERHRAN
ARBRE MAKERBNEEMPTAE
MEBERMAARBERETREREML
At - A B O E LR RER-
AEBETEATASR T AEEH TR ®-

RZBEENF_AANB ARRESHFIFE
(B8) BRAFARH Z=FHEZF,000
BEBT —EENF=ZA+N\RB KRQd
ESHERRTEENTREZ=ZFHE
FI00BEB T —_TENFHA=H" XK
NRAEGHBRRRTEEI»TRECRF
HIER3008 BB T LIl E TG RIE
FTEZERAREERERBR—RELEES-



Management Discussion and Analysis

Shareholding Structure

As of end-2007, our controlling shareholder, Shum Yip
Holdings Company Ltd., holds 45.46% of our shares.

In the year, we granted 78,780,000 stock options to directors
and other employees, at exercise prices of HK$3.54 and
HK$4.768 respectively. In the year, 134,564,000 options were
exercised, and a total of 2,000,000 options were cancelled.

On 24 July 2007, we placed 200 million new shares to
institutional investors at the price of HK$6.56 per share,
raising a total of HK$1,283.0 million in net proceeds. The
money is being used to acquire land and accelerate
development.

In the year, we distributed 2006 final dividend and special
dividend in cash and in specie. As a result, we issued
72,318,124 new shares to those shareholders who chose to
receive shares.

As of end-2007, the Company’s number of issued share capital
is 3,228,332,090.

Headcount and Remuneration

As of end-2007, our total number of employees was 14,015,
of which 39 worked in Hong Kong. They were mainly
managerial and financial professionals. The others 13,976
work in Mainland China.

Our remuneration system is based on a merit basis, taking
into account the company’s overall performance and the
industry practice. The management regularly reviews staff
performance and remunerations.

Employee benefits include salaries, allowances, medical
insurance and compulsory retirement contributions. We also
grant bonuses and issue stock options to employees when
their performance meets or exceeds the management’s
expectations.
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Directors and Senior Management |

Executive Directors 11T =5

HU Aimin
HER

Mr. HU Aimin, aged 59, is Chairman of Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited ("Shum Yip Holdings”) and Chairman of
Shenzhen Investment Limited. He graduated from the Hunan
University of China and obtained a master degree in Business
Administration. Prior to joining Shum Yip Holdings in April
2003 and being appointed Chairman of Board of Directors
of Shenzhen Investment Limited on 3 June of the same year,
he was the secretary-general and chief of administration office
of Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government, deputy
secretary-general of the Shenzhen Municipal Committee, a
standing member of district committee of Futian District,
Shenzhen Municipality, head of the Organisation Department
of Futian District, Shenzhen Municipality, and the director
of Leadership Science and Talents Studies Research Office in
Hubei 1t B EERIEBHEH A A L= ), and the assistant
executive editor-in-chief of a periodical named Studies on
Leadership ((ZEZE L{EH# %t ) ) . He has over thirty years of
experience in administrative management. He is also the
non-executive director of Ping An Insurance (Group) Company
of China, Ltd. and Road King Infrastructure Limited and
Coastal Greenland Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management |

ZHANG Yijun
®REH

Mr. ZHANG Yijun, aged 53, is the president of the Company
and Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited. He graduated
from South China Normal University in China. He is now a
Senior Economist. He holds an EMBA from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University. He joined Shum Yip Holdings in October,
2004. Prior to such date, he was previously the chairman
and chief executive of Shenzhen Construction and Investment
Holdings Company Limited and before that the commissioner
of Bureau of Supervision of the Shenzhen Municipal
Government. Mr. Zhang studied corporate management and
real property management in Japan. Mr. Zhang possesses
vast working experience of over twenty years in investment
and corporate management. He is also the non-executive
director of Road King Infrastructure Limited and Coastal
Greenland Limited, listed pubic companies in Hong Kong.
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Directors and Senior Management |

ZHAO Gesheng

ol A -

Mr. ZHAO Gesheng, aged 58, is a graduate of Inner Mongolia
Engineering College and a Senior Economist. He joined Shum
Yip Holdings in 2001. He is currently Vice President of Shum
Yip Holdings. Prior to this appointment he was Chairman of
the labour union of Shum Yip Holdings., Assistant Managing
Director and General Manger of Shenzhen Shum Yip Logistics
Group Holdings Company Limited, He also served in
corporations like Shenzhen Lionda Holdings Company
Limited, Shenzhen Petrochemical Group Co., Ltd. and
Chemical Mining Planning & Design Institute of CNCIM. Mr.
Zhao has more than twenty years of corporate management

experience.

; XIAO Rihai

S

Mr. XIAO Rihai, aged 57, is a graduate of Guangdong
Academy of Social Sciences, holding a postgraduate degree
in economics. He is also a Senior Economist and engineer.
Mr. Xiao is currently Vice President of Shenzhen Investment
Limited. He joined Shum Yip Holdings in 2005. Prior to this
appointment, he was Assistant General Manager of Shenzhen
Airport (Group) Company, Secretary of Discipline Inspection
Committee and labour union chairman. Mr. Xiao has more
than twenty years of corporate management experience.
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Directors and Senior Management |

LIANG Kaiping

Mr. LIANG Kaiping, aged 49, was graduated from Wuhan
University, holding a master’s degree in history. He is
currently Vice President of Shenzhen Investment Limited. Prior
to this appointment he was Deputy Director of Office of
Futian District Committee of Shenzhen, General Manager of
Shenzhen Futian Real Estate Development Company. After
joining the Shum Yip Holdings in 2000, Mr. Liang worked
successively as deputy managing director of Shenzhen Shum
Yip Investment Company Ltd, deputy managing director of
Shenzhen Shum Yip Logistics Group Holdings Co., Ltd. and
chairman of Shum Yip Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. He has
over twenty years of experience in corporate management.

~

-l A

Mr. LIU Weijin , aged 51,
Shenzhen Investment Limited. He is a graduate of Jianxi

LIU Weijin
BI=2E

is currently Vice President of

Institute of Technology and an engineer. Prior to joining the
company in November 2003. He was Assistant to President,
Office General Manager and Board Secretary of Shum Yip
(Holdings) Company Limited. Managing Director and General
Manager of Shenzhen Nandao Industrial Development
Company, Investment and Development Manager of Shekou
Ltd, and Deputy Director of the
Foreign Investment Unit subordinate to the Foreign Economic

Enterprise (Group) Co.,

Office of the People’s Government of Jianxi. Mr. Liu has rich
experience in investment and corporate management.
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Directors and Senior Management

-~
Joe ZHANG Huagqiao
ol 3L 18
Mr. Joe ZHANG Huagiao, aged 44, has been Chief Operating
Officer since March 2006. Prior to joining the Company, he

was a managing director and Co-Head and Head of China
research at UBS Securities where he worked for seven years.
In the 1980s, he worked at the People’s Bank of China in
Beijing. Between 1991 and 94, he was a tenured lecturer of
banking and finance at the University of Canberra, Australia.
Mr. Zhang holds a Master of Economics from the Australian
National University and a Master of Economics from the
Graduate School of the People’s Bank of China.

TAM Ping Lung
KRB

Mr. TAM Ping Lung, aged 56, is Executive-Director as well
as Financial Controller of the Company. He holds an MBA
degree. Prior to joining the Company in February 1997, Mr.
Tam held senior positions in various multinational
corporations and had nine years of experience in an
international accounting firm in Hong Kong.
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Directors and Senior Management |

Non-Executive Directors EHTEE

LEE Yip Wabh, Peter
FRE

Mr. LEE Yip Wah, Peter, aged 66, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in 1999 and re-designated
as a non-executive director on 27 September 2004. Mr. Lee
was a graduate of the University of Hong Kong. He is a
practicing solicitor and a consultant with Messrs. Woo, Kwan
Lee & Lo. He was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in
1971, in England 1974 and in Singapore 1995. He is also a
China Appointed Attesting Officer, appointed in Beijing in
1993. Mr. Lee has over 30 years’ experience in the Company
Management and Secretarial fields. He is an independent
non-executive director of the following listed public
companies in Hong Kong; namely, China Merchants Holdings
(International) Company Limited and Sinotrans Shipping
Limited. He is also non-executive director of Yu Ming
Investments Limited.
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Directors and Senior Management |

WU Jiesi
HER

-l

Dr. WU Jiesi, aged 56, is a non-executive director of the

Company. Mr. Wu holds a doctorate degree in Economics.
He conducted post-doctorate research work in theoretical
economics at the Nankai University in the PRC and was
conferred a professorship qualification by the Nankai
University in 2001. Mr. Wu served in The Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China (“ICBC”) from 1984 to 1995 and
was the President of ICBC Shenzhen Branch. Later, he was
appointed the Deputy Mayor of the Shenzhen Municipal
Government from 1995 to 1998. And from 1998 to February
2000, he was appointed Assistant to the Governor of
Guangdong Province. He was the Chairman of &R & &%
wEZERAMR L E and GDH Limited between 2000 and
2005. He was an Honorary Chairman of Guangdong
Investment Limited and Guangdong Tannery Limited. Mr. Wu
was the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of
Hopson Development Holding Limited between April 2005
and January 2008. At present, Mr. Wu is an independent
non-executive director of listed public companies in Hong
Kong, namely Beijing Enterprises Holdings Limited, China
Insurance International Holdings Company Limited, China
Merchants Bank Co., Limited and Yingli Green Energy Holding
Company Limited (which is listed on New York Stock
Exchange) and non-executive director of China Water Affairs
Group Limited. Mr. Wu has rich experience in finance and
corporate management.
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Directors and Senior Management |

HU Zuoyuan
E1ETT

Mr. HU Zuoyuan, aged 46, obtained a postgraduate degree
in Business Administration and professional qualifications of
Senior Accountant and The Chinese Certified Public
Accountants. He is currently a director and Financial
Controller of Shum Yip Holdings Co., Ltd., and has served as
a director and financial controller of various enterprises. Mr.
Hu possesses over ten years’ professional experience as
corporate Financial Controller and more than twenty years
of experience in corporate financial management and control.
He has also accumulated extensive experience in enterprise
listing through restructuring, financial audit and asset
valuation.
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Independent Non-Executive Directors Bk #1TE S

WONG Po Yan
BEHRM

Mr. WONG Po Yan, G.B.M, C.B.E., J.P., aged 85, is the
founder of United Oversea Enterprises, Ltd, the Honorary
President of Chinese Manufacturers Association of Hong Kong.
Mr. Wong is formerly the Vice Chairman of the Basic Law
Committee of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
under the Standing Committee of the National People’s
Congress of the PRC, and a member of the Hong Kong
Legislative Council, the Chairman of the Airport Authority of
Hong Kong. Mr. Wong holds an Honorary Doctorate Degree
in Business Administration from the City University of Hong
Kong and an Honorary Doctorate Degree in Social Science
from Hong Kong Baptist University.

Mr. Wong is also Independent non-executive director of the
following listed public companies in Hong Kong: namely,
Allied Group Limited, Fintronics Holdings Co., Limited, China
Electronics Corporation Holdings Co., Limited. Sinopec
Kantons Holdings Limited, Alco Holdings Limited.
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LI Wai Keung
FER

Mr. LI Wai Keung, aged 51, was appointed as Independent
Non-Executive Director on 27th September, 2004. He was
graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic. Mr. Li holds a
Master’s Degree in Business Administration from the
University of East Asia. He is a Fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has held a
number of positions with listed public companies in Hong
Kong, including Henderson Land Development Company
Limited and Sino Land Company Limited. He has been a
non-executive director of Guangdong Investment Limited, a
listed public company in Hong Kong, since May, 2000 and
has been appointed as Director and Financial Controller of
GDH Limited since August, 2000. And he has been appointed
as Executive-director and Financial Controller of GDH Limited
since July, 2006. Mr. Li has been an independent non-
executive director of Hans Energy Company limited, a listed
public company in Hong Kong, since July, 2002.
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WU Wai Chung, Michael

>y o

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael, aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director in 2002. He was formerly
the Deputy Chairman of the Shanghai Stock Exchange and a
Commissioner in the strategy & Development Committee of
the China Securities Regulatory Commission in the PRC. Prior
to that, Mr. Wu was the deputy chairman, chief operating
officer and executive director responsible for the
intermediaries Division, comprising the Licensing and
Intermediaries Supervision Departments until his departure
from the SFC on 31st December, 1997. He is also the
Independent Non-Executive Director of SW Kingsway Capital
Holdings Limited, First Mobile Group Holdings Ltd and
International Financial Network Holdings Ltd.
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Senior Management B AR THAE

Mr. WANG Yongda, aged 57, joined the Group in 1997. He
is an Economist, Chairman of Shum Yip Southern Land
(Holdings) Co., Ltd.. He was appointed as the vice general
manager of Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park Co., Ltd. and the
vice chairman of Shum Yip Terra Holdings Co., Ltd. Mr. Wang
has over 30 years experience in property development,
marketing, construction as well as enterprise management

Mr. MA Xinjian, aged 55, is a graduate of Henan Xinyang
Normal University and a Senior Economist. He is currently
Director and the party committee Secretary of Shum Yip Terra
Holdings Co., Ltd. Prior to this appointment, he was the
party committee Secretary and Assistant general manager of
Shum Yip Pengji (Holdings) Co., Ltd, Director and Party
committee chairman of Shum Yip southern land (Holdings)
co., Ltd. He also served in organizations like 15 [% P & £z,
Hubei Provincial Military Region DPA, Hubei Provincial
Economic Commission, Mr. Ma has more than twenty years
of corporate management experience.

Mr. XU Ruxin, aged 55, joined the Group in 1996. He is
Director of Shum Yip Pengji (Holdings) company limited.
Mr. Xu completed his education in the department of modern
economy management in the Beijing University of economics
in the PRC in 1988 and was formerly deputy general manager
of Shenzhen Construction Holdings Company. Mr. Xu has
over twenty-eight years of experience in areas of construction,
property development and corporate management.
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Mr. HE Jingcheng, aged 45, joined Shum Yip Holdings in
September 2003 and is an senior professional manager. He
is Director of Shum Yip Taifu Logistics Group Holdings
Company Limited. Mr. He was graduated from Party School
of the Committee of C.P.C in 1992 and obtained a master’s
degree in law. Currently, he is undergoing the Doctor of
degree research Management Science and Engineering course
of Huazhong University of Science and Technology. Mr. He
was formally human resource director of the Company,
Deputy Director of the Organization Department in Shenzhen
Municipal Party Committee Organization Department, Mr.
He has over twenty years of experience in administrative
management and Human Resources management.

Ms. KWAN Ka Yuet, aged 43, has been the Deputy General
Manager of the Finance Department since October, 2004.
She is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. She holds a Bachelor of
Science degree in Economics and Master of Science degree
in Accountancy. Ms. Kwan is the qualified accountant of the
Company.
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Overview

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
the highest standard of corporate governance. The Directors
strongly believe that good corporate governance is an
essential element in steering the development of the business
of the Group.

The Board and its management understand that it is their
responsibility to establish a good corporate management
system and practice and strictly comply with the principles
of independence, accountability, responsibility and
impartiality so as to improve the operation transparency of
the Company, protect the interest of shareholders and create

values for shareholders.

The following is a summary of our improvement in corporate
management in accordance with the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices:

Code on Corporate Governance Practices

Throughout the year of 2007, the Company had complied
with the code provisions of the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).
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Corporate Governance Structure
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Board of Directors
Responsibilities

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board is
responsible for formulating the overall strategy and policy of
the Company, to supervise and evaluate the business and
financial performance of the Company. Through the setting
up of appropriate risk control policies and procedures, the
Board ensures the operation of the Company is running
effectively and by setting up a comprehensive corporate
governance structure, it is able to facilitate the communication
with its shareholders.

Nomination of Directors

The Board is responsible for selecting and nominating suitable
candidates eligible to join the board of directors of the
Company. The executive directors are responsible to review
and assess the conduct, qualifications of the candidates and
whether they possess the respective business experience
applicable to the Company. Thereafter, they will present their
recommendations to the Board for consideration and
approval.

Composition
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Composition of the Board

Exgdam

(As at 31 December 2007)
(BE-TTt#+=A=+—A1t)

NUBMITES + ZBILIFRTE

8 Executive Directors + 3 Independent Non-executive Directors + 3 Non-executive Directors

=+ UFRTES

After appointments, all directors shall offer themselves for
re-election at annual general meetings. The term of each
director shall not be more than three years and shall retire
once every three years. The retiring directors can offer
themselves for re-appointment and re-election. In the event
of a vacancy, the proposed candidate for the position shall
be submitted to the Board for review and approval, with the
objective of appointing persons with leadership capabilities
for maintaining and enhancing the management standards of
the Company.
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Chairman and President of The Board

The Chairman and the President of the Board are two clearly
defined independent positions and are held by Mr. HU Aimin
and Mr. ZHANG Yijun respectively.

The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the
Board, to formulate good corporate governance practices and
procedures together with the directors, decide the strategic
plans, business plans and investment proposals of the
Company, assess the performance of the Company and
supervise the business affairs of the management in ensuring
an effective operation of the Board.

The President of the Board shall lead the management to run
the daily operation of the Company and to formulate and
implement policies of the Company in ensuring the approved
policies are executed effectively. He is also accountable to
the Board in respect of the overall operation of the Company.

Executive Directors

The executive directors segregate their duties and are
responsible for managing different business segments of the
Company, guide the management team of the Company in
accordance with the formulated strategies and measures, and
execute the daily operation of the Company effectively and
responsible for ensuring the businesses are in compliance
with applicable laws and regulations.

Non-executive Directors And Independent
Non-executive Directors

The primary functions of non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors are to provide advices
and recommendations regarding the decision and business
development of the Company based on their own professional
qualifications and experience, with the objective of assisting
the Company to enhance the management standard of its
operation and financial aspects for protecting the interest of
shareholders. Pursuant to the requirements of the Listing
Rules, each of the independent non-executive director shall
issue an confirmation letter confirming his/her independence
with the Company.

All non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) shall have a fixed tenure and is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company.
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Board Meeting Records

The board meetings of the Company are held on a regular
basis. Four regular board meetings were held for the year
ended 31 December 2007 and the attendance were as

EESERTHE
ARRZEFETHEN BE-TTLE
+o At BLRBFTHMARRES
EEH EEHEBERMT:

follows:—

Name Attendance

5= =

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. HU Aimin (Chairman) HEREA (XE) 4/4

Mr. ZHANG Yijun (President) SREG LA (TTBAEEL) 4/4

Mr. ZHAO Gesheng HELERE 4/4

Mr. XIAO Rihai HAEEE 3/4

Mr. LIANG Kaiping 2HTRE 4/4

Mr. LIU Weijin ZRERE 4/4

Mr. ZHANG Huagiao (whose term is from wAEB AL (EHH2006F2 A28 & 4/4
28 February 2006 to 27 February 2009) 200952 H278 IkE)

Mr. TAM Ping Lung KRBERAE 4/4

Independent Non-executive Directors

BIUFHTES

Mr. WONG Po Yan (whose new term is from EIRC A (FTEEAR2008F1A1EHE 4/4
1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010) 2010612A318 1E)

Mr. LI Wai Keung (whose new term is from TEBRLE (FTHAH2008F1A1BE 4/4
1 January 2008 to 31 December 2010) 2010612A318 1E)

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael RERLLE GMEHH2008F1A1RE 4/4
(whose new term is from 1 January 2008 to 2010128318 1F)
31 December 2010)

Non-Executive Directors

FHITES

Mr. LEE Yip Wah, Peter (whose term is from TEELL (THH2004F9A278 2 4/4
27 September 2004 to 31 December 2007) 20075 12HA318 1E)

Dr. WU Jiesi (whose term is from REBIELT (THH200665 411 E 3/4
11 May 2006 to 10 May 2009) 2009458108 1t)

Mr. HU Zuoyuan (whose term is from BAETT R A ((EBI 2005512 4230 & 4/4
23 December 2005 to 22 December 2008) 2008F 12 A228 1F)

Both Mr. Xiao Rihai and Dr. Wu Jiesi were unable to attend the regular Board
Meetings held on 10 April 2007 and 24 December 2007 respectively due to business

travels.
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Model Code

The Board adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers of the Listing Rules (“Model
Code”) in January 2005 as the code of conduct of the
Company regarding securities transactions by directors.
Having made specific enquiry of all directors, all directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year. In addition, the Board has
adopted provisions of the Model Code as written guidelines
for relevant employees (as defined in provision A.5.4 in
Schedule 14) in respect of their dealings in the securities of
the Company. Such relevant employees shall abide by the
provisions of the Model Code.

The Board established two committees, namely Audit
Committee and Remuneration Committee respectively, with
primary functions of monitoring the relevant matters of the
Company.

Audit Committee

The Board has adopted new terms of reference for the Audit
Committee pursuant to the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are
posted on the website of the Company.

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors and one non-executive director who are
all equipped with commercial and financial skills and
experiences required for understanding financial statements.
Mr. LI Wai Keung is the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and other members are Mr. WONG Po Yan, Mr. WU Wai
Chung, Michael and Mr. LEE Yip Wah, Peter.
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The terms of reference of the Audit Committee include the
proposal of appointing external auditors or its replacement,
supervise the internal auditing system of the Company and
oversee the financial information of the Company and its
disclosure, examine the internal control system of the
Company and responsible for the communication functions
between internal audit and external audits.

The Audit Committee held two meetings in 2007, and the
attendance of the members of the Audit Committee is 100%.
The Committee reviewed the interim report of the Company
for the year 2007 and the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2007.

Director’s Responsibilities on Financial
Statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities of supervising
the preparation of financial statements of each financial
period which shall consistently adopt suitable accounting
policies and to comply with the accounting standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and to reflect the financial position, the results during the
period and cash flow of the Company in a true and fair
manner.

The responsibility statement issued by the auditors of the
Company is set out on page 62 of the annual report.

Auditors Remuneration

The external auditor engaged by the Company is Ernst &
Young.

This accountant firm shall not take up any non-auditing
assignment to ensure its independence. The disclosure
regarding the auditors’ remuneration is set out in note 6 of
the annual report.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established its Remuneration Committee on 1
January 2005 with specific written terms of reference. The
terms of reference of the Committee include the study of all
the remuneration policies and the structure of the directors
and senior management; and to set up decent and transparent
procedures to determine the remuneration policies and to
make recommendations to the Board.

The Remuneration Committee comprised three independent
non-executive directors and chaired by Mr. WONG Po Yan.
Mr. LI Wai Keung and Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael are
members of the Committee.

No member or any of his associates is allowed to determine
their respective remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
makes recommendation to the Board regarding the general
remuneration policy and structure of all directors and senior
management. In determining the remuneration of directors
and senior management, the Remuneration Committee shall
consider factors such as time commitment and responsibilities
of directors, employment conditions of other positions within
the Group and whether the remuneration should be
performance-based. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are posted on the website of the
Company.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2007 with
full attendance from its members. During the meeting, the
Remuneration Committee reviewed the director fees of all
current non-executive directors, determined the remuneration
of all current executive directors and determined and
proposed to determine the number of underlying shares and
terms of share option to be granted to executive directors
and non-executive directors.
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Investors Relationship And Shareholders’
Interests

The Group treasures the communication with its shareholders
and investors. The Company meets with the investors regularly
to enhance corporate transparency. During the year, the
Group met a number of investors, held 2 press conferences
and many presentation seminars and telephone conferences,
and participated in investors conferences organized by
institutional investors.

The Company encourages its shareholders to attend annual
general meetings. The Chairman and members of the Board
shall attend the general meetings and be available to answer
questions regarding the business of the Company.

To foster effective communications, the Company shall
provide extensive information in its annual report, interim
report and newspaper announcements and also disseminates
information relating to the Group and its business to the
public in time through its website.

Internal Control

The Board shall be overall responsible for supervising the
operations of all businesses units under the Group. Suitable
candidates will be appointed by the Board to join the boards
of all subsidiaries and associates operating in key business
areas, to attend the board meetings and to oversee the
operations of those companies. The management of each
business is accountable for the operation and performance
of the business under its area of responsibility.

The Board has conducted a review of internal control system
of the Group pursuant to the Codes and it considers that all
the material internal controls of the Group are adequate and
effective during the year.
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Report of the Directors

The directors present their annual report and audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended
31 December 2007.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
and associates are set out in note 21 and note 22 to the
financial statements, respectively. There were no changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2007
and the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 65 to
190.

An interim dividend of HK8.0 cents (2006: HK3.0 cents) per
share was paid on 25 October 2007. The directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HK21.00 cents (2006:
final dividend of HK8.54 cents and special dividend of
HK11.45 cents) per share in respect of the year to
shareholders on the register of members on 27 May 2008.
The recommendation has been incorporated in the financial
statements as an allocation of retained profits within the
capital and reserves section of the balance sheet.

Summary of Financial Information

A summary of the published results of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted
from the audited financial statements and reclassified as
appropriate, is set out on page 191. This summary is not part
of the audited financial statements.
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Property, Plant and Equipment and
Investment Properties

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Company and the Group
during the year are set out in note 15 and note 20 to the
financial statements.

Principal Subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set
out in note 21 to the financial statements.

Principal Associates

Particulars of the Company’s and the Group’s interests in its
principal associates are set out in note 22 to the financial
statements.

Bank Loans

Details of the bank loans of the Company and of the Group
are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

Share Capital and Share Options

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year, together with the reasons
thereof, are set out in note 33 and note 34 to the financial
statements.

Purchases, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2007, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of its listed securities.
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Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 35 to the
financial statements.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2007, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
amounted to HK$708,383,000, of which HK$677,950,000
has been proposed as final dividend for the year.

In addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the
amount of HK$4,247,673,000 may be distributed in the form
of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

In the year under review, both the aggregate sales attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers and the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group’s sales and purchases
respectively.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest of the Group’s five
largest customers or five largest suppliers.
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Directors

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. HU Aimin

Mr. ZHANG Yijun
Mr. ZHAO Gesheng
Mr. XIAO Rihai

Mr. LIANG Kaiping
Mr. LIU Weijin

Mr. ZHANG Huagiao
Mr. TAM Ping Lung

Non-executive directors:
Mr. LEE Yip Wah, Peter
Dr. WU Jiesi

Mr. HU Zuoyuan

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. WONG Po Yan

Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael

Mr. LI Wai Keung

In accordance with Article 101 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. ZHAO Gesheng and Dr. WU Jiesi will retire
by rotation and being eligible offer themselves for re-election
at the annual general meeting. Mr. XIAO Rihai, Mr. LIANG
Kaiping and Mr. LEE Yip Wah, Peter will retire by rotation
and will not offer themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors

Directors’ and Senior Management'’s
Biographies

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 24 to
36 of the annual report.

Emoluments of Directors and the Five
Highest Paid Individuals

Details of the directors’” emoluments and of the five highest
paid individuals in the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to
the financial statements respectively.

Interest Capitalised

Interest of approximately HK$146,854,000 was capitalised
during the year in respect of the Group’s property
development projects.

Directors’ Service Contracts

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No directors had a material interest in any contracts of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Retirement Benefits Scheme

Details of the retirement benefits scheme is set out in note 2.4
to the financial statements.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares

As at 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions of
the directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities

Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies were as

follows:

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

ARB A BB 252

Company:
Underlying
shares Percentage
Number  pursuant to Aggregate of issued
Name of director ~ Capacity Nature of interests of shares  share options interests  share Capital
BER EERT
REZHE BAz
EEpg g4 BEME RHEA RHEA RS BO
HU Aimin Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 10,924,000 - 10,924,000 0.34
HER EGHEEA Bngn
ZHANG Yijun Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 10,500,000 - 10,500,000 0.33
REH EHEAA BnigEsn
ZHAO Gesheng Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 2,670,000 1,330,000 4,000,000 0.12
HEE ExBBA EanlEn
XIAO Rihai Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 3,170,000 - 3,170,000 0.10
ER=R! EGBEEA Bngn
LIANG Kaiping Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 6,820,000 1,330,000 8,150,000 0.25
2HF¥ EGHEAA BngEsn
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Underlying

shares Percentage

Number  pursuant to Aggregate of issued

Name of director ~ Capacity Nature of interests of shares  share options interests  share Capital

BER EERT

REZHE BAEz

Esps g6 BEME RHOEA RHOEA BmER BA

LIU Weijin Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 3,170,000 1,330,000 4,500,000 0.14
L ExBAA BalEn

ZHANG Huagiao Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 14,732,000 13,340,000 28,072,000 0.87
R ExBAA BalEn

TAM Ping Lung Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 7,676,000 - 7,676,000 0.24
KRB EHEAA Bngn

LEE Yip Wah, Peter ~ Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 2,537,416 - 2,537,416 0.08
TEE ExBAA BafEn

WU Jiesi Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 6,600,000 3,400,000 10,000,000 0.31
a7 ERBAA BalEn

HU Zuoyuan Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 4,161,665 - 4,161,665 0.13
BT EHEAA Bngn

WONG Po Yan Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 3,400,000 - 3,400,000 0.11
HIRM ExBBA BalEn

LI Wai Keung Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 790 - 790 0.00
FR® ExBEAA Bngn
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BEOEERBRN 2R —BRYEZER

associated corporation — Road King Infrastructure Limited: NEIE
Underlying Underlying
shares shares Percentage
Number  pursuant to of equity Aggregate of issued
Name of director ~ Capacity Nature of interests of shares  share options derivatives interests  share Capital
R k# HERT
BREz {T£IAZ Bz
EEng 54 BEME KR &E BROBE HBROHE Y £ Batk
HU Aimin Beneficial owner  Beneficial interest - 500,000 - 500,000 0.07
HER BREEA B
ZHANG Yijun Beneficial owner  Beneficial interest - 500,000 - 500,000 0.07
REY EEBAA Eanka
ZHANG Huagiao Beneficial owner  Beneficial interest 769,000 950,000 3,397,000 5,116,000 0.68
RILHE EEBAA - §a 3 (Note)
(Bt 5E)
TAM Ping Lung Beneficial owner  Beneficial interest 20,000 - - 20,000 0.00
KRR EafEA EufEn
WONG Po Yan Beneficial owner  Beneficial interest 50,000 - - 50,000 0.01
T ERBERA ExfEn

Note: The interest in the underlying shares of equity derivatives represents rights to

acquire shares in Road King Infrastructure Limited by Mr. ZHANG Huaqiao

under the 1-year Equity Accumulators with Guaranteed First Period on Road

King Infrastructure Limited.

Long positions in the shares and underlying shares of the

Miat: RETAETAZAEESERRICBEERBERDA

BERRA—FE - HEERRARABETHER

52 % -

BEOEERBRN 2R —HEReERE

associated corporation — Coastal Greenland Limited: BRAT:
Underlying Underlying

shares shares Percentage

Number  pursuant to of equity Aggregate of issued

Name of director ~ Capacity Nature of interests of shares  share options derivatives interests  share Capital

RE i & HEBIT

BREz2 {TETIAZ BAZ

EEns a4 BaEtE g 4= RGE8E HBROHHA Y £ Bat

HU Aimin Beneficial owner  Beneficial interest - 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 0.22
HER EZEAA EifEs

ZHANG Yijun Beneficial owner  Beneficial interest - 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 0.22
REI EZEAA EifEs

ZHANG Huagiao Beneficial owner - 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 0.22

RIE

ERBERA
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Share Options

Details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 5 June 2002 and the 10 per cent. limit under the share
option scheme refreshed on 12 June 2006 are set out in note
34 to the financial statements.

The following share options were outstanding under the share
option scheme during the year:

Number of share options

B

RARABIR —_ZEZE-_FANAREHREANER
EAEIRBER _ZTETEA+_-_H#E
BHZBEBRETEIZ10% LR 2 FBERS
RIS M E34 ©

A £

PATS R AR B R A R 5T &1 1 5 R 1T (2
ZHERRE

BREZE
Date of Exercise
At1 Granted Exercised Expired  Cancelled At 31 grant of Exercise price of
January during during during during  December  share period of share
2007 the year the year the year the year 2007  options share options options
R-BBLE
R-BBLE tTZA B4 e BhRE
-A-B REARE REATE REAYE REAEE =+-8 BREAH BRERE fTRE
HK$
per share
&y
B
Directors
Bz
HU Aimin 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) - - - 18/5/2005 18/5/2005-17/5/2010 1.088
HER 7,000,000 - (7,000,000) - - - 9/3/2006 9/3/2006-8/3/2011 1.330
ZHANG Yijun 2,500,000 - (2,500,000) - - - 18/5/2005 18/5/2005-17/5/2010 1.088
REY 6,300,000 - (6,300,000) - - - 9/3/2006 9/3/2006-8/3/2011 1.330
ZHAO Gesheng 4,000,000 - (2,670,000) - - 1,330,000  9/3/2006 9/3/2006-8/3/2011 1.330
BEE
XIAO Rihai 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) - - - 9/3/2006 9/3/2006-8/3/2011 1.330
ERE
LIANG Kaiping 4,000,000 - (4,000,000) - - - 18/5/2005 18/5/2005-17/5/2010 1.088
2HT 4,000,000 - (2,670,000) - - 1,330,000  9/3/2006 9/3/2006-8/3/2011 1.330
LIU Weijin 2,000,000 - (2,000,000) - - - 18/5/2005 18/5/2005-17/5/2010 1.088
=3 4,000,000 - (2,670,000) - - 1,330,000  9/3/2006 9/3/2006-8/3/2011 1.330
ZHANG Huagiao 14,000,000 - (14,000,000) - - - 9/3/2006 9/3/2006-8/3/2011 1.330
R - 20,000,000 (6,660,000 - - 13,340,000  9/3/2007 9/3/2007-8/3/2012* 3.540
TAM Ping Lung 1,200,000 - (1,200,000) - - - 3/772002 3/7/2002-2/7/2007 1.265
RRER 2,800,000 - (2,800,000) - - - 18/5/2005 18/5/2005-17/5/2010 1.088
4,000,000 - (4,000,000) - - - 9/3/2006 9/3/2006-8/3/2011 1.330
WU Jiesi 10,000,000 - (6,600,000) - - 3,400,000  29/5/2006 29/5/2006-28/5/2011* 2.165
HER
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Number of share options
BREZE
Date of Exercise
At1 Granted Exercised Expired  Cancelled At31  grant of Exercise price of
January during during during during  December  share period of share
2007 the year the year the year the year 2007  options share options options
R-BBLF
R-BBLE TZA BH e fBRE
-B-R REARE REATHE REATE REREHE =+-80 BRERH  BRENH e
HK$
per share
&
BT
WU Wai Chung, 1,200,000 - (1,200,000) - - - 5/7/2002 5/7/2002-4/7/2007 1.265
Michael 600,000 - (600,000) - - - 18/5/2005 18/5/2005-17/5/2010 1.088
REE 800,000 - (800,000) - - - 9/3/2006 9/3/2006-8/3/2011 1.330
LI Wai Keung 600,000 - (600,000) - - - 18/5/2005 18/5/2005-17/5/2010 1.088
FRE 800,000 - (800,000) - - - 9/3/2006 9/3/2006-8/3/2011 1.330
76,800,000 20,000,000 (76,070,000) - - 20,730,000
Other employees
HtER
In aggregate 6,000,000 - (4,000,000) (2,000,000) - - 27/6/2002 27/6/2002-26/6/2007 1.265
Bt 11,800,000 - (11,800,000) - - - 3/772002 3/7/2002-2/7/2007 1.265
17,000,000 - (17,000,000) - - - 5/7/2002 5/7/2002-4/7/2007 1.265
20,600,000 - (9,611,000) - - 10,989,000  18/5/2005 18/5/2005-17/5/2010 1.088
47,800,000 - (15,883,000) - - 31,917,000  9/3/2006 9/3/2006-8/3/2011 1.330
- 58,780,000 (200,000) - - 58,580,000  4/7/2007 4/7/2007-3/7/2012 4.768
103,200,000 58,780,000 (58,494,000) (2,000,000) - 101,486,000
180,000,000 78,780,000 (134,564,000) (2,000,000) - 122,216,000

* Options will be exercisable in the following manner:—

Maximum proportion of option
exercisable including proportion

of option previously exercised

* BRERIRTI I ATE:

Exercisable Period

AT RE RS L f

(BRERANCITEBRELS) AT A

1/3 1st year from the date of grant of option
ERHBRIELSSE —F

2/3 2nd year from the date of grant of option
EREBRERHE —F

3/3 3rd year to 5th year from the date of grant of option

ERHERERTFE=ZF0F
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Notes:

1. During the year 78,780,000 options were granted and 134,564,000 options

were exercised under the Share Option Scheme.

2. During the year, 2,000,000 options were lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

No options were cancelled under the Share Option Scheme.

3. The weighed average share price at the date of exercise for share options

exercised during the year was HK$5.343 per share (2006: HK$2.534 per share).

4. The closing price of share immediately before the grant date of options during

the year are as follows:—

FaE:

1. RER-IRERERES S L 78,780,00017 i % 4
134,564,0001) & IR i 1T {F -

2. RER BIEERESEIH2,000,0001 5K % #f 2R
EREERET BT

3. RERTEZERERTERSHZ NETHREAER
53438 (ZET A F:GRk2.534%7m) °

4. REEAERRBRERLAHMNZBROWTENT: -

Closing price of share

Date of grant of immediately before the

Number of share options share options grant date of options
RizERE

R BB

BRERE BHBRERD Z B BT E
HK$

per share

BRET

20,000,000 9/3/2007 3.52
58,780,000 4/7/2007 5.98

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors and
chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any shares and underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.
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Directors’ Right to Acquire Shares

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests
in shares” and in the share option scheme disclosures in
note 34 to the financial statements, at no time during the
year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debts securities (including
debentures) of, the Company or its associated corporations
granted to any director, or their spouse or children under the
age of 18, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire
such rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders

As at 31 December 2007, the interests and short positions of
the shareholders, other than a director or chief executive of
the Company in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:—

ESBREROzER

RIESEZhhEms] —BRMEHRRNME
34PT IR B RT SIRNFT I E B SN RERIE
AR SETNES REZEBHET
NBEA T FRERAEREARNRA S EE
BEEZBENXEBRRES (BREES) ME
w2 RENETEEAZFEN: R
A A B R s B AL (A B A R T E
SEEMZH SEFNEEMNEMERRE
AL EHER -

FERR

R-ZEZLE+-_A=+—H KR (KR
BEZHRSITHRABRIN BRAA B KD
R ABRRR D A AR SR AR AR IEFE
HFRHEGIEBETUFE 2 ELl 2
B RABRWT:

Long positions in shares of the Company: ZAN/NESIED & s P S N
Percentage
Number of of issued
Name Capacity Nature of interest shares share capital
HE BT
=x ) BEME BRHEBE KREZBIHK
Shum Yip Holdings Beneficial owner Beneficial interest 1,467,743,489 45.46

Company Limited
RE(EE)ARRR EREAA BEamiEm
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Save as disclosed above, the register which was required to
be kept under Section 336 of the SFO showed that the
Company had not been notified of any interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2007.

Saved as disclosed above, no person, other than the directors
of the Company, whose interest are set out in the section
“Directors interest in shares” above, had registered an interest
in the share capital of the Company that were required to be
recorded.

Connected Transactions

Details of the connected transactions for the year are set out
in note 41 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions,
which need to be disclosed as, connected transactions in
accordance with the requirements of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received annual confirmation from each
of the independent non-executive directors as regards to their
independence to the Company pursuant to rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and considers that each of the independent
non-executive directors is independent to the Company.
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of its Directors, as at
the date of this annual report, there is sufficient public float,
as not less than 25% of the Company’s issued shares are
held by the public.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an audit committee since
September 2004 for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process and
internal controls. The audit committee currently comprises
Mr. WONG Po Yan, Mr. WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LI
Wai Keung, independent non-executive directors and Mr.
LEE Yip Wah, Peter, non-executive director. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the Group’s results for the year in a
meeting held on 10 April 2008.
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Report of the Directors

Continuing Disclosure Requirements
Under Rule 13.21 of The Listing Rules

Banking facilities with covenants relation to specific
performance of the controlling shareholder:

By an agreement (the “Facility Agreement”) dated 29
September 2006 entered into between, among others, the
Company as borrower and a syndicate of lenders (“Lenders”),
a transferable term loan facility in an aggregate amount of
USD$465 million (the Facility) is made available by the
Lenders to the Company on terms and conditions as stated
therein. The Facility shall be made available to the Company
within 6 months from the date of the Facility Agreement and
the Company shall repay to the Lenders in full any outstanding
advances made thereunder on the date falling 60 months
from the date of the Facility Agreement. Under the Facility
Agreement, it will be an event of default if Shum Yip Holdings
Company Limited (Shum Yip Holdings), the controlling
shareholder, ceases to own beneficially at least 35% of the
issued share capital of the Company, ceases to be the single
largest shareholder of the Company or cease to have
management control of the company, or Shum Yip Holdings
ceases to remain beneficially owned as to at least 51% by
the Shenzhen Municipal People’s Government of the people’s
Republic of China and in which event all amounts under the
Facility may be declared to be immediately due and payable.
The Company intends to use the Facility to first refinance in
full all outstanding loan amounts under certain existing bank
loans to the Company, and thereafter finance the general
funding requirements of the Company and its subsidiaries.
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Report of the Directors | EEE®|RESE

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

HU Aimin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 10 April 2008
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Independent Auditors’ Report |

Ell ERNST & YOUNG

To the shareholders of Shenzhen Investment Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Shenzhen
Investment Limited on pages 65 to 190, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2007,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the

and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
This

implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to

Ordinance. responsibility includes designing,
the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate
accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that

are reasonable in the circumstances.
Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditors’ Report |

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and the true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group
as at 31 December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report | % 3 #% 2 i 3R &

Without qualifying our opinion we draw attention to note 22
to the financial statements. One of the Group’s associates
currently has not obtained effective control over two of the
associate’s newly acquired companies established in the
People’s Republic of China (collectively referred to as the
“Investee Companies”) despite the fact that the board of
directors of the Investee Companies was appointed by the
associate due to the circumstances described in note 22. The
associate has commenced legal proceedings against the
former management of the Investee Companies with a view
to obtaining effective control over these companies. As the
eventual outcome of the court proceedings cannot be
determined with certainty, there exist uncertainties which
may affect the following:

e the associate being unable to obtain effective control
over the Investee Companies or otherwise realise the
underlying properties of the Investee Companies, thereby
impacting the recoverability of the associate’s investments
in these companies, of which the amount attributable to
the Group is HK$130,776,000.

e the banks seeking payment from the associate in relation
to credit facilities to the Investee Companies, of which
the amount attributable to the Group is HK$69,663,000
as at 31 December 2007 which has been guaranteed by
the associate as described in note 22, in the event that
the Investee Companies are not in a position to repay the
credit facilities by the maturity date in July 2008.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18/F, Two International Finance Centre,
8 Finance Street,

Central, Hong Kong

10 April 2008
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Consolidated Income Statement |

RElE R

Bl

Year ended 31 December 2007 HE-ZTZE+F+_A=+—8BILtFE

2007 2006
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &% FTER FA T
CONTINUING OPERATIONS FEEY
REVENUE Wy 2 5 2,900,410 1,812,597
Cost of sales $HE A (1,674,899) (944,749)
Gross profit £ A 1,225,511 867,848
Other income and gains H A K e 5 888,378 293,002
Increase in fair value of investment properties 1% & ) % A 7t & 1% 1N 725,534 257,739
Selling and distribution costs HE R D HKA (67,026) (38,274)
Administrative expenses THER (401,167) (331,649)
Other operating expenses HEf&es h (65,284) (64,112)
Finance costs b & kA 7 (269,374) (183,520)
Share of profits and losses of associates JE 15 Bt & X | m A K s 1R 423,206 199,932
PROFIT BEFORE TAX R %1 A & A 6 2,459,778 1,000,966
Tax B 10 (722,489) (190,802)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM FARFEEBRR
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 1,737,289 810,164
DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS FREEYR
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 4F A 3E 13 48 2£ 75 i 7 11 196,114 328,212
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREA 1,933,403 1,138,376
Attributable to: T 1S
Equity holders of the parent BRAIEEFERA 12 1,714,821 803,606
Minority interests D EUR% B 218,582 334,770
1,933,403 1,138,376
DIVIDENDS BE 13
Interim FHIR B 238,537 74,905
Adjustment to prior year’s final dividend NEFERARE ZFHE 28,360 2,534
Proposed dividends BRRE 677,950 564,008
944,847 641,447
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLETO B AREERZHEFA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EBEEREF
THE PARENT 14
Basic R
— For profit for the year — F A A HK56.97 centsi#fll  HK31.59 cents/# 1l
— For profit from continuing operations — B E & T HK50.71 centsifll  HK18.64 centsi& i
Diluted e
— For profit for the year — F N A HK55.42 centsi#fll  HK30.62 centsi# 1l
— For profit from continuing operations — F B R A HK49.34 centsi#fll  HK18.07 centsi# 1l

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007



Consolidated Balance Sheet |

31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

b

L,

2007 2006
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &% FEx F& T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E =SS L 15 277,105 3,435,323
Intangible assets EHEE 16 = 37,964
Prepaid land lease payment B A £ 3h A8 & 5B 17 - 3,803
Goodwill G 18 322,020 195,932
Properties under development BERERAP Y 19 7,114,601 2,288,385
Investment properties BREME 20 3,315,710 3,083,941
Interests in associates Beb 2 N B RE 2 22 3,726,544 2,451,628
Available-for-sale investments AHERE 24 28,987 410,852
Deferred tax assets FEFIAE E 32 65,351 25,495
Total non-current assets ERBEERTE 14,850,318 11,933,323
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories T8 25 372,183 491,432
Properties under development for sale BRPGEME 26 196,486 238,054
Trade receivables JE U BR 3R 27 305,941 159,932
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FE{IZIE « 5T © K& H fib f& Y 5K 1E 320,977 617,290
Financial assets at fair value through FRBEmEAABFEZ
profit or loss ERMEE 28 602,990 307,785
Amounts due from minority shareholders JE U > FR% 3R SR IE 23 82,612 48,613
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEED 29 4,689,828 4,211,668
6,571,017 6,074,774
Assets of disposal groups classified as DERFIEFEZHE
held for sale/Interests in an associate SEEE/ SPHRARBEHEZ
classified as held for sale Bib & N B HE 2R 11 4,095,563 125,845
Total current assets MEBEERTE 10,666,580 6,200,619
CURRENT LIABILITIES B A E
Interest-bearing bank loans EEIRTER 30 3,547,163 1,876,557
Derivative financial instruments PTEemIT A 6,275 =
Trade and notes payables J& - BR R % JE A R 4R 31 86,965 178,101
Other payables and accruals HEiEMNRERETE A 1,240,076 2,252,416
Tax payable JE A~ 5 18 490,544 157,023
5,371,023 4,464,097
Liabilities directly associated with the assets E2H ¥ AR ERFEEE
classified as held for sale BEEHEBHNEE 11 2,377,543 =
Total current liabilities mEB B EATE 7,748,566 4,464,097
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBAEFRE 2,918,014 1,736,522
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #BEERABE RS 17,768,332 13,669,845
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans HERITERK 30 6,090,445 5,506,978
Deferred tax liabilities REFIAR G 32 452,939 366,091
Total non-current liabilities EmEBAERTE 6,543,384 5,873,069
Net assets BEFE 11,224,948 7,796,776
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31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

2007 2006
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B &% FTER FA T
EQUITY =
Total equity attributable to BAREERFAA
equity holders of the parent R
Issued capital B2 TR A 33 161,417 141,073
Reserves (FR] 35(a) 9,009,437 5,737,435
Proposed dividends ¥R B 13 677,950 564,008
9,848,804 6,442,516
Minority interests DEBRRER 1,376,144 1,354,260
Total equity B 11,224,948 7,796,776
HU Aimin ZHANG Yijun
HER REH
Director Director
EE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 December 2007 &

ES

b2 N =]

SEREET-AS+—AILER
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Attributable to equity holders of the parent

% B %

BAARBRAARS
Available-
for-sale
Share  Capital Share Asset investment Exchange
Issued  premium redemption  option  Capital revaluation revaluation Statutory fluctuation ~ Retained  Proposed Minority Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve reserve reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profits  dividends Total  interests equity
q
B&#f Rt RE  BRE BE HERR EX SERR
BE  EEE WEHE @ BARRE EfER EMERE LERR 2DEF REEAN HERS 8% s HEAE
Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Hist Téx TEx TEx TRz FEx TEn TR TEn TR TExn  TEx  TEr  TEn AR
At T January 2006 R=2%/:5-A-B 124,121 1,495,348 = 16,800 45,622 43,665 (4,094) 586,089 109,508 2,102,391 273,066 4,792,516 1,509,382 6,301,898
Changes in fair value of ARHERE
available-for-sale investments MELY - = - = - - 9,064 - - - - 9,064 (306) 8,758
Exchange realignment Ef @R - - - - - - - - 154572 - - 154572 45,780 200,352
Total income and expense ERNERTRRL
for the year recognised directly FRUREE
in equity - - - - - - 9,064 - 154572 - - 163,636 45,474 209,110
Profit for the year FERA = = = = = = = = - 803,606 - 803,606 334,770 1,138,376
Total income and expense FRNRIEE
for the year - - - - - - 9,064 - 154572 803,606 - 967,242 380,244 1,347,486
Adjustment to prior year's NEEERARE
final dividend 8% 13 - - - - - - - - - (2,534) - (2,534 - (2,534
Acquisition of a subsidiary KEREAR = = = = = = = = = = = - 117,883 117,883
Final 2005 dividend declared BER-ZZRERERE 13 - = - - - - - - - - (273,066) (273,066) - (273,066)
Issue of shares Bk 33 15,000 858,000 = = = = = = = = - 873,000 - 873,000
Share options exercised I ERE 33 2245 63,476 - (11,254) - - - - - - - 54467 - 54467
Share issue expense RAETRX - (19,974) - - - - - - - - - (19,974) - (19,974)
Capital redemption RERA 33 (293) = 293 = = = = = - (11,138) - (11,138) - (11,138)
Equity-settled share option expenses  MRAX (T2 BREF X 34 - - - 45,998 - - - - - - - 45,998 - 45,998
Share of reserves of associates EEBEDAGE - - = - - 29276 - - - 61,634 - - 90,910 - 90,910
Disposal of a subsidiary G| 37 - = - = = - = - = = - - (402,719)  (402,719)
Interim 2006 dividend NEFHBRE 13 - - - - - - - = - (74,905) - (74,905 - (74,905
Proposed 2006 dividends E-—ZE/ ERE 13 - - - - - - - - - (564,008) 564,008 - - -
Dividends paid to minority X FLERR
shareholders ZRE = = = = = = = = = = = — (250,530) (250,530)
Transfer from retained profits SRaRBERN - - - - - - - 55,019 - (55,019 - - - =
At 31 December 2006 RZEEAE+-A=t-H 141,073 2,396,850¢ 203%  51544% 74898 43,665%  4,970° 641,108% 325714% 2,198,393% 564,008 6,442,516 1354260 7,796,776
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Year ended 31 December 2007 HE-ZTZE+F+_A=+—8BILtFE

Attributable to equity holders of the parent

SAAREREARL
Available-
for-sale
Share  Capital Share Asset investment Exchange
Issued  premium redemption  option  Capital revaluation revaluation Statutory fluctuation ~ Retained  Proposed Minority Total
capital  account  reserve  reserve reserve reserve  reserve  reserve reserve profits  dividends Total  interests equity
EES
B8 R BA  BRE RE HERR 1) SHBR

R BEE RERE @ BARRE EfER EMERE LERR 2DEF REEAN HERS 3] Bi REAR
Notes  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
Hist Téx TEx TEx TRz FEx TEn TR TEn TR TExn  TEx  TEr  TEn AR

At T January 2007 RZZZt5-F-H 141,073 2,396,850 293 51,544 74,898 43,665 4970 641,108 325714 2,198,393 564,008 6,442,516 1,354,260 7,796,776
Changes in fair value of ARHERE

available-for-sale investments MELY - = - = - - 1,412 - - - - 1,412 - 1,412
Exchange realignment Ef @R - - - - - - - - 81,127 - - 521,127 60,203 581,330
Total income and expense for the ERNERTRRL

year recognised directly in equity ~ FERZHE - - - - - - 1412 - 51,127 B - 502,539 60203 582,742
Profit for the year HREF - - - - - - - - - 1,714,822 - 1,714,822 218,582 1,933,404
Total income and expense for ERRX

the year &% = = = = = = 1,412 - 521,127 1,714,822 - 2,237,361 278,785 2,516,146

Acquisition of minority interests in ~ HEFERARS

subsidiaries 25 - - - - - - - - - - - - (288,874) (288,874)
Disposal of group of assets to HE-AEE

minority shareholders FLERR = = = = = = = = = = = ~ (425212) (425.212)
Disposal of equity interests in HEHBAF

a subsidiary RAER = = = = = = = = = = = - 506,823 506,823
Adjustment to prior year's NEEERS

final dividend hezBE 13 - - = = = = = = - (28,360) - (28,360 - (28,360
Acquisition of a subsidiary WENERA 36 - - - - - - - - - - - - 12,084 12,084
Capital contribution to a subsidiary ~ MEBLRFEKER = = = = = = = = = = = - 52371 52,371
Final 2006 dividend declared BER= SERERE 133 3,616 354,069 = = = = = = = - (564,008) (206,323) - (206,323)
Issue of shares k{3 3 10,000 1,302,001 - - - - - - - - - 1,312,001 ~ 1,312,001
Share options exercised friEERE 33 6,728 222,708 - 67913 - - - - - - - 191,523 - 191,523
Share issue expense DUELF 33 - (27,955) - - - - - - - = - (27,955) - (27,955)
Share options forfeited Bz ERE - - - (340) = = = = = 340 = = = =
Equity-settled share option expenses  JURA % fif 2 B iER % 34 - - - m - - - - - B - M - 2m
Share of reserves of associates EEBEDAGERE - - - - 872 498 - - 150,620 = - 151,990 - 151,99
Disposal of an associate HEBREAT - B - B (9,232) - - - B B - 9232 - (9232
Interim 2007 dividend ZETLERERE 13 - = - - - - - - - (238,537) - (238,537) - (238,537)
Proposed 2007 dividend RZZTHERRRE 13 - - = = = = = = - (677,950) 677,950 - - -
Adjustment to prior year's NEFREERE

deferred tax 28 - - - B - (5138)  (3,063) - B - - (8201) 4,557 (3,644)
Dividends paid to minority XL HRR

shareholders 2K = = = = = = = = = = = - (118,650) (118,650)
Transfer from retained profits SRARDER = - - - - - - 118,123 - (118,123) - - - -
At 31 December 2007 RZZZ+E+-F=t-R 161,417 4,247,673% 293%  45312%  66,538*  39,025* 3,319%  759,231%  997,461% 2,850,585% 677,950 9,848,804 1,376,144 11,224,948

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$9,687,387,000 * REREREBREAEEEBERBIEERESE
(2006: HK$5,737,435,000) in the consolidated balance sheet. 9,687,387,000% 7T (== Z /<4 :5,737,435,000/&TT) ©
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Year ended 31 December 2007 HE-_ZEZE+F+-_A=+—HIFE

2007 2006
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5% FTER T T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RERE XK HELRE
Profit before tax B 25 A1 g A
From continuing operations FEET 2,459,778 1,000,966
From a discontinued operation FEHBEER 11 199,155 334,595
Adjustments for: RFETFIRIE:
Finance costs 7 & K A 7 382,215 216,774
Interest income B U A (174,148) (82,370)
Depreciation e 6 89,777 77,530
Increase in fair value of "EMHEZ
investment properties R AEIE AN 20 (725,534) (257,739)
Dividend income from investments REKRE 2R BEWA 6 (8,430) (292)
Share of profits and losses of associates FE (R B & A R B & (423,206) (199,932)
Share of profits of associates from JEIESE R B R 2
discontinued operations Bk 4 N B U 2 11 (13,242) (20,850)
Amortisation of vehicle licences YU ER b R 5 6 1,944 1,807
Write-back of impairment of items of mE- -BERZEEREZ
property, plant and equipment NERIZEEJE 6 (7,558) (1,517)
Gains on disposal of items of property, HEWE HE KR
plant and equipment ®BEE 2 W= 6 (7,001) (197)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREMHE 2 W 5 (3,601) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & BB A B 2 Woas 5/11 (287,050) (322,986)
Gains on disposal of equity interests in =0y N
subsidiaries W= 11 (48,738) -
Gains on disposal of associates HEBE R Az W 5 (96,696) (2,127)
Gains on disposal of associates from HE B
discontinued operations /N Al 11 (190,131) =
Gains on disposal of a group of assets to HE—HEET
minority shareholders DH IR 2 W= 5 (20,174) =
Net fair value gains on financial assets at BRESTEZEREER
fair value through profit or loss AABEFEZARLFEWTZS 5 (227,495) (132,603)
Equity-settled share option expenses A B 7R 32 A5 2 H Pl 4 i =2 34 32,021 45,998
931,886 657,057
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables EULBR ZORm A (38 hn) (212,161) 143,729
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and BNRE R R EAM
other receivables Ji& W 3Kk T8 R, 287,750 97,843
Increase in financial assets at fair value BREZEAREFEZ
through profit or loss T REE E N (413,052) (155,165)
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERmL, (M) 240,731 (132,405)
Decrease in properties under development ZEEPHFEWE
for sale Ve 879,087 843,480
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due from JE Uiz > B iR 3R SR IR
minority shareholders A (3B A0) (33,999) 1,025
Decrease in trade and notes payables JE 15T AR R I JE < 22 0 > (25,162) (223,712)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H fth 5 FRIE & JE 5T B
and accruals #n, Cd) (994,035) 690,900
Cash generated from operations KERKLEEKZR® 661,045 1,922,752
Interest paid EENEAPES (529,069) (281,256)
Mainland China taxes paid B2 15 A B A b I8 (207,074) (129,458)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) REKEETHZHERAS
from operating activities (7R ) %8 (75,098) 1,512,038
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement | ZHZE B ERE XK
Year ended 31 December 2007 HZ T Z+tF+-_A=+—HIFE
2007 2006
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B =% FTER FAT
Net cash inflow/(outflow) RKAKEEHZRERAS
from operating activities O i) F58 (75,098) 1,512,038
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES REBREFTBH 2 RERE
Interest received 2 A B 159,019 50,973
Dividends received from investments BRIEE RS 6 8,430 292
Dividends received from associates B U Bk & | it B 125,938 294,147
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, H&E¥H MEKR&LHHEE
plant and equipment P15 1A 20,219 17,599
Proceeds from disposal of HEREME
investment properties FT 15 318 43,982 -
Proceeds from disposal of associates LSS QRS i’)( = 5,457
Proceeds from disposal of associates from HEFFBXEB ML R A
discontinued operations FT 15 1A 377,360 -
Purchases of items of property, BAME BE K
plant and equipment I B 15 (122,018) (26,896)
Acquisition of subsidiaries U BE T /B A &) 36 (682,190) (146,048)
Acquisition of minority interests of subsidiaries Y i Mt & 2 & 2 L & = (616,989) =
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary S M E A Tﬁﬁ%ﬁ 37 837,050 =
Proceeds from disposal of equity interests HEWRBL
in subsidiaries 1= ﬁﬁ?%fx 651,567 499,858
Proceeds from disposal of group of assets to i & —#H & & FOBRE
minority shareholders FT 15 318 253,501 -
Acquisition of an associate Uy B B 2 N ) - (145,800)
Purchases of available-for-sale investments B ARt B E& & = (356,195)
Capital contribution from minority interests D2 R T & 52,371 -
Additions to investment properties REWEE N 20 (10,828) (60,566)
Loans to associates ZA%H% ENRNRIZER (426,333) (3,109)
(Advance)/receipt of loans to associates (Bf) /W4 THEARZER 4,440 (3,034)
Additions to interests in associates Bt 5 N A $E/\i* hn (2,124) (289,690)
Additions to properties under development % & 5 ¥ % 7 3 Jin (4,766,535) (1,973,589)
Additions to intangible assets | & EE 2 30 16 (57,982) (784)
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEES 2R MM FE (4,151,122) (2,137,385)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RERIETBH 2R LR E
Proceeds from issue of shares BTG PTGRIE 33 1,503,524 927,467
Capital redemption EEREIN N - (11,138)
Share issue expenses BIRMAX (27,955) (19,974)
Dividends paid B E (473,220) (350,505)
Dividends paid to minority shareholders ERDERRR S (118,650) (250,530)
New bank loans HILIRITER 9,045,493 7,533,834
Repayment of bank loans BEIETEX (5,146,058) (6,429,343)
Net cash inflow from financing activities BMEEES2RERAFERE 4,783,134 1,399,811
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND ReRAESEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS 2 hEE 556,914 774,464
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F#1 2R & kA& EEY 4,211,668 3,508,530
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 5 ¥ [& & “@7%; FE 39,527 (71,326)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRZRAERESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 4,808,109 4,211,668
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERAEEEY
CASH EQUIVALENTS e AT
Cash and bank balances B RIBRITET 29 3,404,388 1,446,592
Time deposits EHFE R 29 1,285,440 2,765,076
Cash and bank balances attributable to EEERERCEEB 2R R
discontinued operations RITHET 11 118,281 -
4,808,109 4,211,668
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Balance Sheet

31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

mht

—

\
/
y
L,

2007 2006
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M 3E F#& T F& T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment E =SS L 15 2,596 2,501
Interests in subsidiaries PN 21 5,028,321 2,878,086
Interests in associates RN 22 1,279,989 160,932
Available-for-sale investments AfHERE 24 1,720 362,693
Total non-current assets EREEELT 6,312,626 3,404,212
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Prepayments and other receivables B~ FRIE K2 L 8 U FR IR 4,801 343,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries & Y B B A Bl A 21 2,210,039 1,490,042
Financial assets at fair value through FRBEmEAABEFEZ
profit or loss ERMEE 28 91,485 302,828
Cash and cash equivalents HeNREEED 29 487,612 2,186,064
2,793,937 4,321,934
Interests in an associate classified as DERBREFEZ
held for sale Bt A Bl RERS 22 = 50,221
Total current assets BB E AR 2,793,937 4,372,155
CURRENT LIABILITIES B A E
Derivative financial instruments MTEer T A 6,275 =
Other payables and accruals H fth J& 5 FRIE K JE 5T B 98,111 224,028
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERH B AR KIE 21 211,169 170,730
Total current liabilities MEBEERTE 315,555 394,758
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEEFE 2,478,382 3,977,397
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES #REERAISHEE 8,791,008 7,381,609
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBER
Interest-bearing bank loans EBIRITTER 30 3,627,930 3,617,235
Net assets BEFE 5,163,078 3,764,374
EQUITY %
Issued capital B TR 33 161,417 141,073
Reserves (k] 35(b) 4,323,711 3,059,293
Proposed dividends R B B 13 677,950 564,008
Total equity WE 25 4B KR 5,163,078 3,764,374
HU Aimin ZHANG Yijun
HER RH
Director Director
EE EE
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2.1

Notes to Financial Statements |

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Shenzhen Investment Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Hong Kong. The registered office of the Company
is located at 8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum
Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in the following principal
activities:

—  Property development

— Property investment

—  Property management

— Provision of transportation services

— Manufacture and sale of industrial and commercial products
— Infrastructure investment

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate holding
company of the Group is Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited
(“Shum Yip Holdings”), which is a private company incorporated
in Hong Kong.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations ) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties, certain
buildings, derivative financial instruments, equity investments and
investment in convertible bonds, which have been measured at
fair value. Disposal groups held for sale are stated at the lower of
their carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell as further
explained in note 2.4. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2007. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of acquisition,
being the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H
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- MEERE
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— YEER

- REEHGRS

- T¥PEEEMZREREES
- EBEA

EEZRR AEEZHRARKEERRRR
REBEMARLZZMARE — RE (£EH)
BERAR([REEHE]) -

mREE

HEMBRRDEBRRBESAMAGRMZ
ERUBHRELEN ([FEEHMBREER])
(TERMETEMBHRSEL FEGFE
Al ([EREFEA]) k2l FEAREH
REIREERRIGHI MR -BRIZREME &
TEF TEERIA #EMERERATHK
BHERENEAREEIN HMEH9RE
BRZELERAERE - FEFE2HERS
TAEEEEEA R BEREENAZRES
SRR FFRLMIEE2.4 o WEBEIMRTI AT
A EONELAE T Z&ER
B HESESRAERIRRIN

SeREZEE
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B (B AEERGEHEZB) 56 Ak
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BERXGREBRINGAKRBEHE -
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Notes to Financial Statements | Bt 7 ) & Kt 53

31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) QIRBEE (&)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been accounted
for using the purchase method of accounting. This method involves
allocating the cost of the business combinations to the fair value
of the identifiable assets acquired, and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition. The cost of the
acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the
assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to
the acquisition.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside shareholders
not held by the Group in the results and net assets of the Company’s
subsidiaries. An acquisition of minority interests is accounted for
using the entity concept method whereby the difference between
the consideration and the book value of the share of the net assets
acquired is recognised as an equity transaction.

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year’s financial statements. Except for
in certain cases, giving rise to new and revised accounting policies
and additional disclosures, the adoption of these new and revised
standards and interpretations has had no material effect on these
financial statements.

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded

Derivatives

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and

Impairment
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Notes to Financial Statements | Bf % 3 & Mf 5%

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The principal effects of adopting these new and revised HKFRSs
are as follows:

(@) HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable users of the
financial statements to evaluate the significance of the Group’s
financial instruments and the nature and extent of risks arising
from those financial instruments. The new disclosures are
included throughout the financial statements. While there has
been no effect on the financial position or results of operations
of the Group, comparative information has been included/
revised where appropriate.

(b) Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
- Capital Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make disclosures that
enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. These
new disclosures are shown in note 43 to the financial
statements.

(c) HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

This interpretation requires HKFRS 2 to be applied to any
arrangement in which the Group cannot identify specifically
some or all of the goods or services received, for which equity
instruments are granted or liabilities (based on a value of the
Group's equity instruments) are incurred by the Group for a
consideration, and which appears to be less than the fair value
of the equity instruments granted or liabilities incurred. As the
Company has only issued equity instruments to the Group’s
employees in accordance with the Company’s share option
scheme, the interpretation has had no effect on these financial
statements.

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H
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Notes to Financial Statements |

Bt %5 R Ak Y &

31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(d) HK(FRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives

(e)

This interpretation requires that the date to assess whether an
embedded derivative is required to be separated from the host
contract and accounted for as a derivative is the date that the
Group first becomes a party to the contract, with reassessment
only if there is a change to the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows. As the Group’s existing policy of
accounting for derivatives complies with the requirements of
the interpretation, the interpretation has had no effect on these
financial statements.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and
Impairment

The Group has adopted this interpretation as of 1 January
2007, which requires that an impairment loss recognised in a
previous interim period in respect of goodwill or an investment
in either an equity instrument classified as available-for-sale
or a financial asset carried at cost is not subsequently reversed.
As the Group had no impairment losses previously reversed in
respect of such assets, the interpretation has had no impact on
the financial position or results of operations of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements |

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.

HKAS 1 (Revised)

HKFRS 2

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8

HKAS 23 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (Revised)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Presentation of Financial Statements'

Share-based Payments — Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations’

Business Combinations®

Operating Segments'

Borrowing Costs'

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements®

HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions?

Service Concession Arrangements*

Customer Loyalty Programmes?

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined

Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction*

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 March 2007

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2008

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008

5  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2009
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

The revised HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements was issued
in September 2007 and becomes effective for financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The Standard separates owner
and non-owner changes in equity. The statement of changes in equity
will include only details of transactions with owners, with all non-
owner changes in equity presented as a single line. In addition, the
Standard introduces the statement of comprehensive income: it
presents all items of income and expense recognised in profit or
loss, together with all other items of recognised income and expense,
either in one single statement, or in two linked statements. The
Group is still evaluating whether it will have one or two statements.

This amendment to HKFRS 2 Share-based payments was published
in January 2008 and becomes effective for financial years beginning
on or after 1 January 2009. The Standard restricts the definition of
“vesting condition” to a condition that includes an explicit or
implicit requirement to provide services. Any other conditions are
non-vesting conditions, which have to be taken into account to
determine the fair value of the equity instruments granted. In the
case that the award does not vest as the result of a failure to meet
a non-vesting condition that is within the control of either the
entity or the counterparty, this must be accounted for as a
cancellation. The Group has not entered into share-based payment
schemes with non-vesting conditions attached and, therefore, does
not expect significant implications on its accounting for share-
based payments

The revised standards of HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27 were issued in
January 2008 and become effective for financial years beginning
on or after 1 July 2009. The revised HKFRS 3 introduces a number
of changes in the accounting for business combinations that will
impact the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in
the period that an acquisition occurs, and future reported results.
The revised HKAS 27 requires that a change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary is accounted for as an equity transaction.
Therefore, such a change will have no impact on goodwill, nor
will it give rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended standard
changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as
well as the loss of control of a subsidiary. The changes introduced
by the revised HKFRS 3 and HKAS 27 must be applied prospectively
and will affect future acquisitions and transactions with minority
interests.
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Notes to Financial Statements |

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment Reporting, specifies
how an entity should report information about its operating
segments, based on information about the components of the entity
that is available to the chief operating decision maker for the
purposes of allocating resources to the segments and assessing
their performance. The standard also requires the disclosure of
information about the products and services provided by the
segments, the geographical areas in which the Group operates,
and revenue from the Group’s major customers. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 8 from 1 January 2009.

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of borrowing
costs when such costs are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset. As the Group’s
current policy for borrowing costs aligns with the requirements of
the revised standard, the revised standard is unlikely to have any
financial impact on the Group. In accordance with the transitional
provisions in the revised standard, the Group shall apply the revised
standard on a prospective basis to borrowing costs relating to
qualifying assets for which the commencement date for
capitalisation is on or after 1 January 2009.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 requires arrangements whereby an employee is
granted rights to the Group’s equity instruments, to be accounted
for as an equity-settled scheme, even if the Group acquires the
instruments from another party, or the shareholders provide the
equity instruments needed. HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 also addresses the
accounting for share-based payment transactions involving two or
more entities within the Group. As the Group currently has no
such transactions, the interpretation is unlikely to have any financial
impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires an operator under public-to-private
service concession arrangements to recognise the consideration
received or receivable in exchange for the construction services as
a financial asset and/or an intangible asset, based on the terms of
the contractual arrangements. HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 also addresses how
an operator shall apply existing HKFRSs to account for the
obligations and the rights arising from service concession
arrangements by which a government or a public sector entity
grants a contract for the construction of infrastructure used to
provide public services and/or for the supply of public services. As
the Group currently has no such arrangements, the interpretation
is unlikely to have any financial impact on the Group.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires that loyalty award credits granted to
customers as part of a sales transaction are accounted for as a
separate component of the sales transaction. The consideration
received in the sales transaction is allocated between the loyalty
award credits and the other components of the sale. The amount
allocated to the loyalty award credits is determined by reference
to their fair value and is deferred until the awards are redeemed or
the liability is otherwise extinguished.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under HKAS 19
Employee Benefits, on the amount of a refund or a reduction in
future contributions in relation to a defined benefit scheme that
can be recognised as an asset, in particular, when a minimum
funding requirement exists.

As the Group currently has no customer loyalty award credits and
defined benefit scheme, HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 are
not applicable to the Group and therefore are unlikely to have any
financial impact on the Group.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. So far,
it has concluded that while the adoption of HKFRS 8 may result in
new or amended disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs are
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly or
indirectly, controls more than half of its voting power or issued
share capital or controls the composition of its board of directors;
or over which the Company has a contractual right to exercise a
dominant influence with respect to that entity’s financial and
operating policies.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any
impairment losses.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or jointly-controlled
entity, in which the Group has a long term interest of generally
not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which it is
in a position to exercise significant influence.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income statement and
consolidated reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. The Group’s interests in
associates are stated in the consolidated balance sheet at the
Group’s share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
of associates is included as part of the Group’s interests in
associates.

The results of associates are included in the Company’s income
statement to the extent of dividends received and receivable. The
Company’s interests in associates are treated as non-current assets
and are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries represents the
excess of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s
interest in the net fair value of the acquirees’ identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed as at
the date of acquisition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill on acquisitions for which the agreement date is on or
after 1 January 2005

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet as an asset, initially measured at cost and
subsequently at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

The carrying amount of goodwill is reviewed for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-
generating units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of
the combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities
of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on the relative
values of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Goodwill previously eliminated against consolidated retained
profits

Prior to the adoption of the HKICPA’s Statement of Standard
Accounting Practice 30 Business Combinations (“SSAP 30”) in 2001,
goodwill arising on acquisition of subsidiaries and associates was
eliminated against consolidated retained profits in the year of
acquisition. On the adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains
eliminated against consolidated retained profits and is not
recognised in the income statement when all or part of the business
to which the goodwill relates is disposed of or when a cash-
generating unit to which the goodwill relates becomes impaired.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Excess over the cost of business combinations

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the
acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries and associates (previously
referred to as negative goodwill), after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in the income statement.

The excess for associates is included in the Group’s share of the
associates’ profits or losses in the period in which the investments
are acquired.

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties, goodwill
and disposal groups classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case; the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income statement
in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset, unless the asset
is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss
is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill
(Continued)

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there
is any indication that previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill and certain financial
assets is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of an asset, but not to
an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the income statement
in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting
policy for that revalued asset.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant and
equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is part of a
disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not depreciated and
is accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5, as further explained
in the accounting policy for “Non-current assets and disposal groups
held for sale”. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its
intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in the
period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be clearly
demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use
of an item of property, plant and equipment, and where the cost
of the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is capitalised
as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair
value of a revalued asset does not differ materially from its carrying
amount. Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment
are dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation reserve. If the
total of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual
asset basis, the excess of the deficit is charged to the income
statement. Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the
income statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged.
On disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued)

Depreciation of toll roads is calculated to write off their cost on a
unit-of-usage basis whereby depreciation is provided based on the
share of traffic volume for a particular period over the total
projected traffic volume through out the periods for which the
Group is granted the rights to operate the roads.

Depreciation of each item of property, plant and equipment other
than toll roads is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost or valuation to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:
Land and buildings Over the lease terms
Leasehold improvements 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% to 25%

Motor vehicles 9% to 20%

Plant and machinery 10% to 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost or valuation of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from
its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the income statement in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds and
the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under construction,
which are stated at cost less any impairment losses, and are not
depreciated. Cost comprises direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment or
investment properties when completed and ready for use.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold interest under an operating lease for property which
would otherwise meet the definition of an investment property)
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of
business. Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market conditions
at the balance sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the income statement in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the income statement in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in
use. If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied
property becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for
such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” up to the date of change
in use, and any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a revaluation
in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant and
equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from inventories
to investment properties, any difference between the fair value of
the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in the income statement. When the Group completes
the construction or development of a self-constructed investment
property, any difference between the fair value of the property at
the completion date and its previous carrying amount is recognised
in the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at cost less any impairment
losses. Cost includes all costs attributable to such development,
including financing charges. Impairment is assessed by the directors
based on prevailing market prices, on an individual property basis.

Properties under development which have been pre-sold are
classified as properties under development for sale under current
assets.

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. For this to
be the case, the asset or the disposal groups must be available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to terms that
are usual and customary for the sale of such assets or disposal
groups and its sale must be highly probable.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties, deferred tax assets and financial assets) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amounts
and fair values less costs to sell.

Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined by apportioning of the
total land and development cost attributable to the unsold
properties. Net realisable value is estimated by the directors based
on prevailing market prices, on an individual property basis.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with
the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases
are included in property, plant and equipment, and depreciated
over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of
the assets. The finance costs of such leases are charged to the
income statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group
under operating leases are included in non-current assets, and
rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases are charged to the income statement on the straight-line
basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payment under operating leases is initially stated
at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and buildings elements, the entire lease
payments are included in the cost of the land and buildings as a
finance lease in property, plant and equipment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Vehicle licences acquired by the Group are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 15 to 20 years.

Investments and other financial assets

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables,
and available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair
value, plus, in the case of investments not at fair value through
profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an embedded
derivative when the Group first becomes a party to it and assesses
whether an embedded derivative is required to be separated from
the host contract when the analysis shows that the economic
characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely
related to those of the host contract. Reassessment only occurs if
there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required under
the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial assets after
initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates
this designation at the balance sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded
derivatives, are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or losses on
investments held for trading or these financial assets are recognised
in the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss recognised
in the income statement does not include any dividends on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the
entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial assets may be designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria are met: (i)
the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the
assets are part of a group of financial assets which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management strategy; or (iii) the financial
asset contains an embedded derivative that would need to be
separately recorded.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
Such assets are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less any allowance for impairment.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are in listed and unlisted equity
securities and convertible bonds that are designated as available
for sale or are not classified in any of the other two categories.
After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value, with gains of losses recognised as a separate
component of equity until the investment is derecognised or until
the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is included
in the income statement. Interest and dividends earned are reported
as interest income and dividend income, respectively and are
recognised in the income statement as “Other income” in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below. Losses arising from the impairment of such investments are
recognised in the income statement as “Impairment losses on
available-for-sale financial assets” and are transferred from the
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised
financial markets is determined by reference to quoted market bid
prices at the close of business at the balance sheet date. For
investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the same; a
discounted cash flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly or
through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the
impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance
account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal
date.

In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment
is made when there is objective evidence (such as the probability
of insolvency or significant financial difficulties of the debtor and
significant changes in the technological, market economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the
Group will not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the receivables
is reduced through the use of an allowance account. Impaired
debts are derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at
fair value because its fair value cannot be reliably measured, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows discounted at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these assets are not
reversed.

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR

24T EEAHBERZBE (BF)

ETRMEERE

AEERBHEERTGREEREETRRHN
—HemEEX —HeREENBELRR
fEo

NEER A ENEE

HWEREZBRBRNRBERAI R 2ERK
RUFBELRRERSER BREBERZEEL
FRHEEGTARASRE (TEEFHRHR
ZARGEEERR) cRE(REREEZRR
BBENE (YL EABEM ZBRN ) 3
R)2EZBAE-BEZRAENERIER
150 A R #8570k > o U (L S 1R BB X i R 3R
RoBEMBARKE AT ERE &R EER
RIS RME ] A B2 B A sy -

HRBERBREA REBRBFRRD AR
EELEERREREEZFRAEH ABE
HRAZREBERIEEHERERE T AR
Ol -BERERBEBRBEIRKERER
HEEZREETSBEAEERNEE AR 2 &
AN o

EATEDR (HINEBATRENEERE
BRERQERE R M M5 RELERR
REEAEHMYBEBEAEINTE) RAKX
SESEZRBERZRE GRKE A FR
B B0 At R M P Ao e Lt R LR TR A LR (B R
e BURR 2 REENBEFAEREB FHE
B o BE B 7% A B RT 1 23 T AT R (B B 4R R

7
o

BRAFEZEE

WEEEIERN BRETEAEAAEM
AEAAEBENEZFLETRATALTRE
EBiE-AERSERZEEZREAEERER
KReREZRE (RBUESBREEZRTH
BEBERR) EBRAKR - REEEZRE
BEANTELD-



Notes to Financial Statements |

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in the income statement, is transferred from
equity to the income statement. A provision for impairment is
made for available-for-sale equity investments when there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost
or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The
determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In addition, the Group evaluates other factors, such as
the share price volatility. Impairment losses on equity instruments
classified as available for sale are not reversed through the income
statement.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

e the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the
asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the
form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or
purchased option (including a cash-settled option or similar
provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that
the Group may repurchase, except in the case of a written put
option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an
asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of
the transferred asset and the option exercise price.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-bearing
loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables and interest-
bearing loans and borrowings are initially stated at fair value less
directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. The related interest expense is
recognised within “finance costs” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation
process.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives,
including separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are
recognised in the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the income statement does not include any interest
charged on these financial liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the
entire hybrid contract may be designated as a financial liability at
fair value through profit or loss, except where the embedded
derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition as
at fair value through profit or loss if the following criteria are met:
(i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities
which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management
strategy; or (iii) the financial liability contains an embedded
derivative that would need to be separately recorded.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS 39 are
accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial guarantee contract
is recognised initially at its fair value less transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial
guarantee contract, except when such contract is recognised at
fair value through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher
of: (i) the amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and (ii)
the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the income
statement.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the balance sheet date of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from
the passage of time is included in finance costs in the income
statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to
items that are recognised in the same or a different period directly
in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods
are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

e where the deferred tax liabilities arises from goodwill the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and
the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

e where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from negative goodwill or the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets
are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely,
previously unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency and
items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency
rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet
date. All differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and
associates are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities
are translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and, their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are included in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative
amount recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows.
Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) income from the sale of properties and industrial and
commercial products, when the significant risk and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, provided that
the Group maintains neither managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership, nor effective control
over the goods and properties sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease terms;

(c) toll fee income from the operation of toll roads is recognised
when the tolls are received and receivable;

(d) income from the provision of transportation services, when
the transportation services have been rendered;

(e) services income, when the relevant services have been
rendered;

(f) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(g) dividend income, when the shareholder’s right to receive
payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate
allocation of retained profits within the equity section of the balance
sheet, until they have been approved by the shareholders in a
general meeting. When these dividends have been approved by
the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in the
Group that gives it significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or its parent;

(d) the party is a close member of the family of any individual
referred to in (a) or (c);

(e) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or
significantly influenced by or for which significant voting power
in such entity resides with, directly or indirectly, any individual
referred to in (c) or (d); or

(f) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of
the employees of the Group, or of any entity that is a related
party of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within
three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of share-based payment transactions, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by the management using the Black-
Scholes model, further details of which are given in note 34. In
valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
performance conditions, other than conditions linked to the price
of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if applicable.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Share-based payment transactions (Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together with
a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the relevant employees become fully entitled to the
award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
income statement for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period. If the share options granted vest immediately, the Group
recognises the fair value in the period in which the options are
granted.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest,
except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a market
condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of whether or
not the market condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. However, if a
new award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Employee benefits

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2 in
respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2 only to
equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002 that had not
vested by 1 January 2005 and to those granted on or after 1 January
2005.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the
MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the employee
leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting fully, in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

Each of the subsidiaries operating in Mainland China participates
in the central pension scheme (the “CPS”) operated by the local
municipal government for all of its staff. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute 8% to 20% of their payroll costs to the CPS.
The contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the CPS.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the
reporting date. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Impairment of assets

In determining whether an asset is impaired or the event previously
causing the impairment no longer exists, the Group has to exercise
judgement in the area of asset impairment, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in existence;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated based
upon the continued use of the asset or derecognition; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing cash flow
projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions
selected by management to determine the level of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the
cash flow projections, could material affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Income tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the unused
tax losses can be utilised, based on all available evidence.
Recognition primarily involves judgement regarding the future
performance of the particular legal entity or tax group in which
the deferred tax asset has been recognised. A variety of other
factors are also evaluated in considering whether there is convincing
evidence that it is probable that some portion or all of the deferred
tax assets will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of
taxable temporary differences, tax planning strategies and the
periods in which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets and related financial models and
budgets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and to the extent
that there is insufficient convincing evidence that sufficient taxable
profits will be available within the utilisation periods to allow
utilisation of the tax losses carried forward, and that the asset
balance will be reduced and charged to the income statement.

Land appreciation tax

Under the Provisional Regulations on Land Appreciation Tax (“LAT”)
implemented upon the issuance of the Provisional Regulations of
the Public on 27 January 1995, all gains arising from the transfer
of real estate property in Mainland China with effect from 1 January
1994 are subject to LAT at progressive rates ranging from 30% to
60% on the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of
sales of properties less deductible expenditures including
amortisation of land use rights, borrowing costs and all property
development expenditures.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)
Land appreciation tax (Continued)

The subsidiaries of the Group engaging in the property development
business in Mainland China are subject to land appreciation taxes,
which have been included in income tax. However, the
implementation of these taxes varies amongst various Mainland
China cities and the Group has not finalised its land appreciation
tax returns with various tax authorities. Accordingly, significant
judgement is required in determining the amount of land
appreciation and its related taxes. The ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. The Group
recognises these liabilities based on management’s best estimates.
When the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and provisions of land appreciation taxes in the
period in which such determination is made.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties (Continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or
for capital appreciation and another portion that is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. If these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts for the
portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes.

Judgement is made on an individual property basis to determine
whether ancillary services are so significant that a property does
not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial years are
discussed below.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active market
for similar lease terms and other contracts. In the absence of such
information, management determines the amount within a range
of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement,
management considers information from (i) current prices in an
active market for properties of a different nature, condition or
location by reference to available market information; (ii) recent
prices of similar properties in less active markets, with adjustments
to reflect any changes in economic conditions since the date of
transactions that occurred at those prices; and (iii) discounted cash
flow projections, based on reliable estimates of future cash flows,
supported by the terms of any existing lease and other contracts,
and (where possible) by external evidence such as current market
rates for similar properties in the same location and condition,
and using discount rates that reflect current market assessments of
the uncertainty in the amount and timing of cash flows.
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Notes to Financial Statements |

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties (Continued)

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the fair
value include those related to current market rents for similar
properties in the same location and condition, appropriate discount
rates, expected future market rents and future maintenance costs.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December
2007 was HK$3,315,710,000 (2006: HK$3,083,941,000).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of the Group’s primary
segment reporting basis, by business segment. In determining the
Group’s geographical segments, revenues are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the customers, and assets are
attributed to the segments based on the location of the assets. No
further geographical segment information is presented as over 90%
of the Group's revenue is derived from customers based in Mainland
China, and over 90% of the Group’s assets are located in Mainland
China.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and the
products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s business
segments represents a strategic business unit that offers products
and services which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary details of the
business segments are as follows:

(@) the property development segment engages in the development
of residential, industrial and commercial properties;

Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

BEREHHERMEE (F)

Rtz TRERE (&)
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AEBGBAAAEZEIEZERRBER BRI
B NGROR TR ERE 2 mI5HEE ERRM
RER - FFHRETSES R BREEBKR

KEMER _ZZLF+_A=+—H2ZE
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(h)

the property investment segment invests in residential, industrial
and commercial properties for their rental income potential;

the property management segment engages in the management
of both Group developed properties and non-Group developed
properties;

the “others” segment comprises,
construction and other businesses.

principally, building

the infrastructure investment segment invested in infrastructure
projects of power generation and toll roads;

the information technology segment engaged in the operation
of a cable television transmission network and the provision
of information technology services;

the transportation services segment consisted of the provision
of passenger and freight transportation services, automobile
maintenance and other related services; and

the manufacturing segment engaged in the manufacture and
sale of industrial and commercial products;

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to
the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the then
prevailing market prices.
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31 December 2007 —EZE+&+=-A=+—H

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. 2EEH (&)
Business segments EZ) |
The following tables present revenue, profit and certain asset, TREINAEERBE_ZTLFR-_ZZT
liability and expenditure information for the Group’s business RETZRAR=+T—BLEFEEBIE WA
segments for the years ended 31 December 2007 and 2006. mAEkETEE BERFAXER:
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BAEE E3F EY ]
BECRRLE Property Property Property Infrastructure  Information Transportation
Year ended 31 December 2007 TZAZt-ALFE develop i g Others Total investment technology services Manufacturing Total Consolidated
NERR  NERE  HEEE £t #F ERRE EARR  EGRE E3 #E S

HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TR

Segment revenue:
Sales to customers

RN
HETEP

Segment results before increase

in fair value of investment properties
Increase in fair value of

investment properties

RANEDAEEMA
PAE ES
RENEDAGE

&

Segment results after
increase in fair value of
investment properties

Interest income, dividend income and
unallocated gains, net

Unallocated expenses
Finance costs

Share of profits and
losses of associates

Unallocated share of
profits of associates

Profit before tax
Tax

Profit for the year

RANZOAME
Btz
2EER

MERA RERAR
RARKREFE

AREER

BARE

FE R A AER
RER

RARZER

B E QAR

BB AR
HE

AT
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4. THEN (&)
Business segments (Continued) XB5E (&)
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BERE FEEER
BE-BRtE Property Property Property Infrastructure  Information Transportation
Year ended 31 December 2007 TZAZt-HLEE develoy i g Others Total  investment  technology services Manufacturing Total Consolidated
NERRE  NERE NREE b #AF ERRE EANK  EERB £33 ag g8

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TiEx TiEx TEx TiEx T TiEx TiEx T TEx TiEx TEx

Assets and liabilities BERAR
Segment assets AREE
Interests in associates BEARES

Unallocated interests in associates & EBE A AR
Interests in an associate classified ARAREREL

as held for sale BERAER
Unallocated assets KARKE
Total assets AERE
Segment liabilities ARARE
Unallocated liabilities AORAK
Total liabilities AR
Other segment information: A ARER:
Depreciation b3
Amortisation of vehicle licences AERRER
Write-back of impairment of PRERBRZDE
items of property, plant and BERRERE
equipment recognised HERE

in the income statement

Increase in fair value of RENERAR
investment properties i
Capital expenditure S
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Business segments (Continued)

Continuing operations

Bt %5 R & B

o
At

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

4. THEN (&)

E¥NE (&)

Discontinued operations

BREK FRBEN
HECTERF Property Property Property Infrastructure  Information Transportation
Year ended 31 December 2006 TZAZ+-RLER lop i Others Total investment  technology services Manufacturing Total  Consolidated
NEZRE  NERE  MEEE it a®  ERRE  EAMR B8R & &R 54
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TR TATL TR TATL TR
Segment revenue: FERE:
Sales to customers HEFEF 1,007,376 335,993 358,877 110,351 1,812,597 18,504 = 154,475 316,278 489,257 2,301,854
Segment results before increase RANEFRABEMA
in fair value of investment properties 72 A %% 417,641 246,851 9,011 1,751 675,254 8,361 - 25,193 (20,974) 12,580 687,834
Increase in fair value of RENEALE
investment properties #m - 257,739 - - 257,739 - - - - - 257,739
Segment results after increase RENERAEEMEL
in fair value of investment properties ~ 5 %4 417,641 504, 590 9,011 1,751 932,993 8,361 - 25,193 (20,974) 12,580 945,573
Interest income, dividend income and ~ F| S A R B MA R
unallocated gains, net RARREFE 170,031 338,534 508,565
Unallocated expenses AARER (118,470) (4,115)  (122,585)
Finance costs REARK (183,520) (33,254)  (216,774)
Share of profits and losses of associates EEBEARRHRER 37,458 6,506 1,262 - 45,226 174,255 (23,707) 2,763 (132, 461) 20,850 66,076
Unallocated share of KARZ KR
profits of associates BARARF 154,706 = 154,706
Profit before tax R BRI A 1,000,966 334595 1,335,561
Tax A (190,802) (6,383)  (197,185)
Profit for the year FREF 810,164 328212 1,138,376
— — —
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

Business segments (Continued)

Bt %5 R Ak Y &

4. 2HER (&)

E¥NE (&)

Discontinued

Continuing operations operations
BEEK FREEH
BE-TEAE Property Property Property ~ Transportation Infrastructure  Information Information
Year ended 31 December 2006 TZAZ+—BIEFE development investment management services Manufacturing  investment technology Others Total  technology Consolidated
NEER NERE NEEE EARY i EERE EABR iy E EABR &
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAT TAL TAL TAT TAT
Assets and liabilities KERAR
Segment assets PEEE 3,180,691 3,261,280 75,806 202,447 258,533 3,170,852 - 55,835 10,205,444 - 10,205,444
Interests in associates BENAER 328,131 169,633 8,666 51,321 96,684 = 178 (1,456) 653,157 = 653,157
Unallocated interests in associates Vol AN - UNGL 1,798,471 - 1,798,471
Interests in an associate classified R-MARARELEL
as held for sale BENRZER - 125,845 125,845
Unallocated assets ROEAE 5,351,025 - 5,351,025
Total assets AERE 18,008,097 125,845 18,133,942
Segment liabilities AEEE 1,081,638 186,943 190,715 103,337 85,319 142,367 = 16,720 1,807,039 - 1,807,039
Unallocated liabilities AARRE 8,530,127 - 8,530,127
Total liabilities RfEEE 10,337,166 - 10,337,166
Other segment information: 2 A RER:
Depreciation & 4,393 6,947 5,961 28,642 15,601 10,731 = 5,255 77,530 - 77,530
Amortisation of vehicle licences AERREH - - - 1,807 - - - - 1,807 - 1,807
Write-back of impairment of RREREZ2N%
items of property, plant and BE RZBEERZ
equipment recognised BERE
in the income statement - - - (1,517) - - - - (1,517) - (1,517)
Increase in fair value of RENEALE
investment properties byl - (257,739 - - - - - - (257,739) - (257,739)
Capital expenditure AAXi 2,116,206 61,711 10,406 15,532 7,422 226 - 6,680 2,218,183 - 2218183
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents proceeds

from the sale of properties, rental income,

and others.

management fee income

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

5. Wi EMW AR K

WABIMEERNAEE 2 EXER HERBHEY
EMBERE HeWA EEBRAREMEK
Ao

AEEZ W HMBA KRSz AT :

Group
AEE
2007 2006
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B = THET FH&ET
Revenue W =%
Sale of properties HEWMZE 2,015,112 1,007,376
Gross management fee income BREBREBRA 463,453 358,877
Gross rental income REMEHRS

from investment properties N L 300,020 335,993
Others H A 121,825 110,351
Attributable to continuing operations REFERERERZ

reported in the consolidated FBKE

income statement EEIEG 2,900,410 1,812,597
Sale of commercial and industrial goods 8 & T & & @ 291,827 316,278
Income from transportation services Eiw R 2 WA 161,714 154,475
Income from infrastructure investment  ERB R EIEE 2 A 56,053 18,504
Revenue attributable FEFRBREETS

to discontinued operations JE(h & X% 11 509,594 489,257

3,410,004 2,301,854
Other income Hit g A
Gross rental income from property, KEWE BEREHZ

plant and equipment He WA @R 23,553 17,216
Bank interest income ;AT B A 142,503 76,270
Dividend income from investments: KEREZREWA:

Available-for-sale investments AL ERE 8,430 74
Interest income on loans receivable FE W B FF B A 29,484 5,087
Others H A 38,436 53,789

242,406 152,436
Gains Iz
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEWE HE R

plant and equipment REEE 2 Wm 4,171 197
Gain on disposal of investment properties & % & %) % 2 W & 3,601 -
Fair value gains, net: N ERE PR

Financial assets at fair value BATETABRE

through profit or loss ZEREE 227,495 132,603
Gain on disposal of an associate ik NI G 96,696 2,127
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary i M8 A Bl s 37 287,050 -
Gain on disposal of group of assets HE—HEET

to minority shareholders DER R 20,174 =
Exchange gains HME W 2 6,785 5,639

645,972 140,566
Other income and gains H U A B e 2= 888,378 293,002
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31 December 2007 —_EZE+F+-_A=+—H
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBEAIEF

AEBEZBBAEFEMR, (GtA) ToI%

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

HBER:
2007 2006
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 THET THE T
Cost of inventories sold SHEFERA 1,307,272 693,007
Cost of services provided 12 i AR 7% B AR 343,062 284,631
Auditors’ remuneration % SR BN & 5,952 5,942
Depreciation e 15 89,777 77,530
Impairment of trade receivables & U BR ZKO0R (B 27 1,949 6,174
Write-back of impairment of A& W5 AR RORK (B
trade receivables £ [ 27 (4,038) (11,987)
Direct operating expenses WHERE WX
(including repairs and maintenance) Z B
arising on rental-earning e
investment properties (BHREEERERE) 52,023 61,071
Write-back of impairment of items of mE BB RZEEEB
property, plant and equipment Z R E D 15 (7,558) (1,517)

Gains on disposal of items of property, &M BE kKL HHEEB
plant and equipment 2 Wz (7,001) (197)

116

Minimum lease payments + i REF

under operating leases in respect of ZRRETHL

land and buildings KB 9,013 9,141
Amortisation of vehicle licences (note a) T {2 BREE 4 (MizEa) 16 1,944 1,807
Fair value gains, net: NAEFR S FRE:

Financial assets at fair value EREREAANEFEZ

through profit or loss TREE (227,495) (132,603)

Employee benefits expense (excluding EEBFFAX (FE81E

directors’ remuneration — note 8): E=5ME —FEEs) :

Wages and salaries TERE® 414,630 346,108

Equity-settled share option expense VA RS 52 AT B s AR B 2 22,359 13,067

Pension scheme contributions RIKE T8I K 60,631 48,156

Less: Amount capitalised BB RN E (20,765) (14,344)

Less: Forfeited contributions 8 Wz R - -

Net: Pension scheme contributions BRKRGET S HPOFRE

(note b) (M 5EDb) 39,866 33,812

476,855 392,987
Foreign exchange differences, HNGE 2= % FR

net (note c) (Mt3Ec) (15,845) (9,138)
Bank interest income (note d) SRITH B U A (K aEd) (144,664) (77,283)
Dividend income from investments: KERBWA:

Available-for-sale investments (note e) A £ H & & (Hfzte) (8,430) (292)
Interest income on loans receivable e E K F B U A (29,484) (5,087)
Gain on disposal of associates i & B 2 R B a A (96,696) (2,127)
Gross rental income HEMERS®

from investment properties N (300,020) (335,993)
Net rental income from property, M- BB K& EFE S WA

plant and equipment (note f) (PR D) (28,916) (22,302)
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (Continued)

Notes:

a.

The amortisation of vehicle licences for the year is included in “Profit for
the year from discontinued operations” on the face of the consolidated

income statement.

At 31 December 2007, the Group had no forfeited contributions available
to reduce its contributions to the pension schemes in future years (2006:

Nil).

The amount has included foreign exchange gains of HK$9,060,000 in the
current year (2006: HK$3,499,000), which was grouped under profit for

the year from discontinued operations.

The amount has included bank interest income of HK$2,161,000 in the
current year (2006: HK$1,013,000), which was grouped under profit for

the year from discontinued operations.

The amount for the year of 2006 has included dividend income from
available-for-sale investment of HK$218,000, which was grouped under

profit for the year from discontinued operations.

The amount has included net rental income from land and buildings of
HK$9,001,000 in the current year (2006: HK$8,961,000), which was

grouped under profit for the year from discontinued operations.

31 December 2007 — T+ +=-A=+—H
6. RBANGA (&)

fise

a. AFERBEBEHCEMAGAENRERZIFA

ERBEETREAN]BE ZA-

A=+t—R A&EEIEERK
BRI HUR D E A R EF Z RS A B R (=

c. RAFE FAIINENZZ 2% HE9,060,000% T
(=TT N4 :3,499,00078 7T ) FRIB YA F A IEH
18 ZE T 0 A o

d RAEAFE FARITHNERAZEFER2,161,000
B (ZZEZ/NF 1,013,000 ) REHAFA
1B FE TS 5 F o

e. MNIETREE KAAHEBEREZREWAZ

£ %8218,000F T I A BF N IERF BES = A o

f. RAEE XALTWEREFAEFURAZEEA
9,001,000 70 (ZZZ 754 : 8,961,000/ 70) 7K 1A
BN R IEF B ETS & A o
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

7o

| B 3% ¥ R MY A

FINANCE COSTS 7. BEKAE
Group
AEH
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHET
Interest on: M EZH
Bank loans wholly repayable BARAFAEBRERZ
within five years RITE KA B 419,476 250,705
Bank loans wholly repayable REFREBEERZ
over five years RITE KA B 107,475 28,724
Other loans H i B 3 F B 2,118 1,827
Total interest expense FERBIERRARBEFEZ
on financial liabilities not TRIBEZ
at fair value through profit or loss PN 529,069 281,256
Less: Interest capitalised B AREF B (146,854) (64,482)
382,215 216,774
Attributable to discontinued operations — JE+5 48 ¥ 7% 2 fE(h 3 o
(note 11) (B&E11) 112,841 33,254
Attributable to continuing operations NN G
reported in the consolidated ERHEED
income statement 2 FE1 &8 269,374 183,520
382,215 216,774
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

8. EEM=

REERE ETRAURRBGRIFE161G2E

Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies EMEWEBRMAT
Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
rEH
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER T T
Fees e 1,780 1,716
Other emoluments: Hin i< :
Salaries, allowances and Fe EMR
benefits in kind B F &= 9,917 7,649
Employee share option benefits & 8 B A &= 9,662 32,931
Pension scheme contributions BRIREFTEI R 818 376
20,397 40,956
22,177 42,672

During the year, certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services rendered to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set
out in note 34 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the income statement over
the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and the
amount included in the financial statements for the current year is
included in the above directors’ remuneration disclosures.

REAFEE AETESHARERERY &
ARAERE S ERE R E
WRKE34 - CERBHAKRERARNZE
RBEEZANEDERTRHEE EAFE
FHEBRRABNBETLCEEELRES

& 5% 5 o

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

A BENM B

119



Notes to Financial Statements | Bt 7 ) & Kt 53

31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEME (&)

(@ BIYFHTES

(a) Independent non-executive directors

AEECNBILIFQTESHLST:

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

120

Employee
share option
Fees benefits Total
]
ik BB AR RE 7 2% maE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHEIT FHIT FHEIT
2007 —BELHF
Wong Po Yan =R 330 - 330
Wu Wai Chung, Michael RIER 280 - 280
Li Wai Keung, Ricky e 330 - 330
940 - 940
2006 ZBEXRE
Wong Po Yan =R R 330 286 616
Wu Wai Chung, Michael EE 280 286 566
Li Wai Keung, Ricky = 330 286 616
940 858 1,798

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2006: Nil).

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

8. EEM<E (&)

| B 3% ¥R R MY A

(b) BITESERFHUTES

Salaries,
allowances Employee Pension
and benefits share option scheme
Fees in kind benefits contributions Total
e B8
BUER R Eihe
e BEMF & Al & =t &% s
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THERT THET THER THER
2007 —22tHF
Executive directors: HITES:
Hu Aimin HER = 1,143 = 112 1,255
Zhang Yijun REH - 1,135 = 107 1,242
Zhao Gesheng A~ - 688 - 54 742
Xiao Rihai H A& = 1,030 = 91 1,121
Liang Kaiping R - 989 - 92 1,081
Liu Weijin g8 - 949 = 92 1,041
Zhang Huagiao R - 3,000 9,662 177 12,839
Tam Pinglung PR R - 983 - 93 1,076
- 9,917 9,662 818 20,397
Non-executive directors: FBTES:
Wu Jiesi BESR 280 = = = 280
Lee Yip Wah, Peter TRE 280 - - - 280
Hu Zuoyuan HR{ET 280 - - - 280
840 = = = 840
840 9,917 9,662 818 21,237
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8. EEM= (&)
(b) Executive directors and non-executive directors (Continued) (b) BITEERFEHITES (&2)
Salaries,
allowances Employee Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind benefits contributions Total
e EE
ALK R iE BRe
e EMH = ke =t &) mE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FHET FAET FAT FHET
2006 ZEERE
Executive directors: HITES:
Hu Aimin HER = 1,224 2,506 63 3,793
Zhang Yijun RE - 1,212 2,255 62 3,529
Zhao Gesheng HMEL - 358 1,432 15 1,805
Xiao Rihai B A& = 483 1,432 19 1,934
Liang Kaiping REF - 879 1,432 43 2,354
Liu Weijin eSS - 446 1,432 23 1,901
Zhang Huagiao RALHE - 1,458 8,591 73 10,122
Tam Pinglung HERE - 508 1,432 45 1,985
Zhao Mingfeng g - 673 1,682 33 2,388
Xu Ruxin R& L 108 200 1,181 - 1,489
Zhu Huoyang RNE 108 208 1,181 = 1,497
216 7,649 24,556 376 32,797
Non-executive directors: FRITES:
Wu Jiesi HER 280 - 5,799 - 6,079
Lee Yip Wah, Peter FRE 280 = 286 = 566
Hu Zuoyuan HR{ETT - = 1,432 = 1,432
560 - 7,517 - 8,077
776 7,649 32,073 376 40,874
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or RAFEAN BEEMESHEXR BN
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. EEMME -
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. IERSHESES
The five highest paid employees during the year included five AEREzREBZeHEEBERLE (ZEER
(2006: five) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in F R EST ZEEET 2 MEFHBEHIN £
note 8 above. X Pt FE8°
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10. TAX

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the
Group had no assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the
year (2006: Nil). Taxes on profits assessable in Mainland China are
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the locations in which
the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations
and practices in respect thereof.

Major subsidiaries of the Group operate in Shenzhen, Mainland
China, which are subject to the corporate income tax rate of 15%.
However, with the new PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law becoming
effective on 1 January 2008, the tax rate will increase eventually
to 25% in 2012. The deferred tax balances have been adjusted to
reflect the tax rates that are expected to apply in the respective
periods when the asset is realised or the liability is settled.

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”) is levied at progressive rates
ranging from 30% to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being
the proceeds of sales of properties less deductible expenditures
including amortisation of land use rights, borrowing costs and all
property development expenditures. LAT of HK$226,678,000 is
charged to the consolidated income statement for the year ended
31 December 2007 (2006: HK$60,604,000).

Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

10 Hi18

AEBYEAERTEELTMNRRHEAN Bt
RERLEFREENGHBEB (ZFTFRX
FE) PEAERRTEMNEARBREAR
SELEHHBER 2REZRATHREN =
BREPE-

AEEZ ETEMERREDBEARERYIEE:
BI5%BMERABH - A HEXMER
FERZBENE A —BER RENREH
MR-E——FEINE25%  RIEFIAAEREE
HAE URREEELRIERSERFEDR
BARSHBARENRE-

APEEEER ([ ER ) R E
Z30%Z%60% 2 # B R UL TR ER &
YIRS R B IE T AR S (R E R
AERFTEMERES L ZANBRAL -BEZ
ZE+F+_A=+—HLEFE BEEKSE
PR £ I E R 226,678,000/ T (=
T TN 60,604,000 7T ) °

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET T T
Group: REH:

Current — Mainland China BN AR — R B K B 310,876 113,460
LAT in Mainland China B K B £ i i E R 226,678 60,604

Deferred Mainland China corporate RAER B RFER G
income tax (note 32) (K$7E32) 184,935 16,738
Total tax charge for the year 7N TIA X AR 722,489 190,802
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10. TAX (Continued)

31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

Bt %5 R Ak Y &

10 | (&)

A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to profit
before income tax at the statutory income tax rate to the income

tax expense at the Group’s effective income tax rate for the year,
and a reconciliation of applicable rate (i.e, the statutory tax rate)
to the effective tax rate, are as follows:

TXFE#ABMEAERETE 2 EARKRE
MMz EHBHERT RIEANEEARF
EZBARBHRME (WAERR) sHE 2
SRBIBR S 2 ¥R

2007 2006
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
FET FAT
Profit before tax (including profit B& %t al)& 5 (2 1E
from discontinued operations) ERFEEBEEN) 2,658,933 1,335,561
Tax at the domestic rates RERRBBE D
applicable to profits Y A 2 8 R
in the provinces concerned STEZFIE 410,803 15.5 218,433 16.4
Higher tax rate for specific B E & D R
provinces or local authority ERBAZHE 1,022 - (2,504) (0.2)
Effect on opening deferred tax S w2 =
for increase in tax rates LL?RIEZ% =2 120,526 4.5 = =
Profits and losses attributable A /NE vl
to associates = A R & 18 (71,835) (2.6) (35,830) (2.7)
Incomes not subject to tax BAEBRB R Z WA (48,193) (1.8) (95,425) (7.1)
Tax losses not recognised AERZHEEE 35,683 1.3 23,465 1.8
Tax loss utilised BEBACHIEBEEE (14,998) (0.6) (2,402) (0.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax 7~ AI §t # B IR 2
B 52 99,945 3.8 39,795 3.0
LAT 4 I E 226,678 8.5 60,604 4.5
Tax effect of LAT T IR ET 2
BIAR & (34,101) (1.3) (8,951) (0.7)
Tax charge at the Group's RAEEB R E
effective rate Mk 2z B8 725,530 27.3 197,185 14.8
Represented by: K&
Tax charge attributable FERBREREZ
to discontinued operations FHIBZ W
(note 11) (Mg&E11) 3,041 6,383
Tax charge attributable NN G
to continuing operations 2R FHBEKE
reported in the consolidated E1EZ
income statement REXH 722,489 190,802
725,530 197,185

The share of tax attributable to associates of approximately
HK$108,106,000 (2006: HK$32,134,000) is included in “Share of
profits and losses of associates” on the face of the consolidated

income statement.

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR

B2 N al FE(E R IH 49 4108,106,0007 7T (—
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

On 18 June 2007, the Group entered into preliminary sales and
purchase agreements to dispose of its entire interests in three
subsidiaries, Shenzhen PJLD Securities Products Co., Ltd., Shenzhen
Shum Yip Steel Centre Ltd. and Shenzhen Jinghua LCD Ltd.
(collectively referred to as the “Manufacturing Group”). The
Manufacturing Group engages in the manufacturing and sale of
industrial and commercial products and is a separate business
segment of the Group’s operations. The Group has decided to cease
its manufacturing business because it plans to focus its resources
on its real estate business. The disposal of the Manufacturing Group
is expected to be completed in 2008. As at 31 December 2007,
final negotiations for the sales were in progress and the
Manufacturing Group was classified as a disposal group held for
sale.

On 3 January 2007, the Company entered into a sales and purchase
contract to sell its 49% interest in Huayin Traffic Development
Company Limited (“Huayin Traffic”). On 3 December 2007, the
Company announced to dispose of the remaining 51% interests in
Huayin Traffic and the entire 80% interests in Shum Yip Shumkang
(Group) Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (“Shum Yip Shumkang”). On
18 December 2007, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement for the disposal of its subsidiary, Shumyip Transportation
Co., Ltd. (“Shumyip Transportation”). Huayin Traffic holds a 91%
interest in Hubei Jingdong Expressway Construction and
Development Company Limited (“Jingdong Company”), which
engages in the construction and operation of the Jingdong
Expressway in Hubei Province, Mainland China. Shum Yip
Shumkang mainly engages in the provision of transportation and
vehicle rentals. Shumyip Transportation engages in the provision
of transportation services. The Group has decided to cease its
infrastructure investment business and provision of transportation
services because it plans to focus its resources on its real estate
business. The disposal of Huayin Traffic, Shum Yip Shumkang and
Shum Yip Transportation is due to be completed in 2008. As at 31
December 2007, final negotiations for the sales were in progress
and Huayin Traffic, Shum Yip Shumkang and Shum Yip
Transportation were classified as disposal groups held for sale.

11.

Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

FFEEK

_77t¢/\ﬁ+)\5 $E.EAET%BLFE
ET}?;’J tb"%fﬁﬁﬁ% ﬂ\lmﬂ&%ﬁ‘%?&?
Igﬁﬁxfﬁﬁﬁi DS %ﬁ%ﬁl‘ﬁ
iJHFhHE’a?TEEEﬂ?a‘%MﬁBE ﬂ(%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ(@ﬁ%
) EEENERERHEIREER"
WAREELE 2 BREB B -BRAEE
TEIERERNAY EREXRT ﬁﬁl&%mﬂﬂz
HEl XK -HESE  HEHEHAR T

FRE-R_BEELFF+ A= -1— B E%IE
HEDNERKABER MEEKESBRRE
EHER L EESR-

R-ZFEZFELF-A=ZB A2 Tﬁ‘EuTEE{E\

W HEERIBABERDA ([EER
LJ)49/O$E>\°7‘5$:=2%4:¢+:H5 N
AREMEEERRI BRI wE S RFE
wE (RE) BRARKEMBAR (DERER

Bl 2 & B80°/0$E‘\°75A:Z€=2t¢+_ﬁ+
)\EI AEBRZRITEEHE HEEKBAA
FEEHARDA (DE %L%@J)oiﬁﬁiiﬁa
%ﬁ/éﬁjt%m%mL BEIAZEERER
([TFAIRAE]) 291%Em Z AR EEER
B A M EHI R = RER R ORERB
FEREREEGRERRGE ORFEHUS
RHERRE ASEERELERELERLNE
BEEB R ERRY r%m%,\ﬁiu&q:
ERRNEEHEXER HEERER m%m
BRAEBEBBR _ZZN\FxEKe EA
t¢+ A=+—8" ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%lﬁfﬁﬁ ?é
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

On 28 August 2006, the Company entered into a contract to dispose
the entire 55.88% equity interest in a subsidiary, Newton Industrial
Limited (“Newton”). Newton in turn through its subsidiaries holds
a 34% equity interest in Shenzhen Mawan Power Co., Ltd.
(“Mawan”), which operates two power plants in Shenzhen, the
PRC. The state authorities have approved this transaction on 24
November 2006. Mawan engages in power generation and is a
separate business segment under infrastructure operation. The Group
has decided to cease its power generation operation because it
plans to focus its resources on the real estate business and other
investment opportunities. The disposal of Newton was completed
in the year of 2006.

The Group has disposed of its entire 31.1% interests in Shenzhen
Topway Video Communication Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Topway”), an
associate of the Group established in Mainland China. Shenzhen
Topway engages in the provision of cable TV and other
communication network technology services in Shenzhen. On 22
December 2006, the transaction was published for public bidding
in the Shenzhen Enterprise Ownership Exchange Centre and the
public bidding was completed in January 2007. The Group has
entered into a contract to sell all its interests in Shenzhen Topway
to an independent third party incorporated in Mainland China.
The disposal of Shenzhen Topway was completed in the year of
2007.

On 8 December 2006, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement to dispose of its entire 26.76% interests in a joint venture
in the PRC, Shenzhen SEG-CNEDC Color Display Device Co., Ltd.
(“Shenzhen SEG”), to Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, the
ultimate holding company of the Company. Shenzhen SEG engages
in design, manufacturing and sale of display device, cathode ray
tube. The Group has decided to cease its manufacturing business
because it plans to focus its resources on its real estate business.
The disposal of Shenzhen SEG was completed in the year of 2007.
Further details of the transaction are included in note 41 (b) to the
financial statement.

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR

1. RFEEH (B

R_ZEZERNFNAZ+NB KAQAATLA
47 1 & I B 2 7] Newton Industrial Limited
([Newton] ) FT % 55.88%% # - Newton & 1B
HiWBAREBRAIGEE NERAA ([45
V& ) 34%R%HE - i 45 & 7 A B R I A R R B
ER-BREEERER T F+—A=
THEHENER S - BELEEEES
BEREBEPIB L E 2D e ARG E
SHERCEMEERREMTEHE KE
EEAEEREEEL -NewtonZ HER=F
TARFRTHK

AEBEHEMBZFITRERABRDER
A (DRIIKRE]) 22 8031.1% 5 R YIK
AR EBR R BEARERY 2B A QR RIR
N REBEZERREMBABER LRS-
RIBERNE+T-_A-+=-B ZX5EBF
ITEERZHFLARBIESE TR =2ZF
tF—ARK - AEBETAHNBHEER R
ABEZEBERTEPEREZFMRAY 2B
VE=ZF - FINRKBZEEERZZTLFE
B o

RIBEXRET_ANR AEEZTEER
HHEEPHAZEERYTERPELES
BratERAA ([FRNER]) 225
26.76%EHE T ARA ZREERRARRE
(RE) BERAF - RYBRUBR HER
HEBRTRAYERYEXEE BN AKE
FETERNEFHERS #OREREHE
EREB-RYNERZHEER _TTLFE
RoZRXH2E—THBERMBEHRRME
41(b).
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

The results of the discontinued operations for the year are presented

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

1. RFEEH (B

| B 3% ¥R R MY A

BEEBZFAREZ2MT:

below:
Infrastructure Information Transportation
investment technology services Manufacturing Total
EERE EANH ERRE HiE &g
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TExr  TEx TExz TETL  TE=n TAr  TEn  TE:n Tén  TExn
Revenue W& 56,053 18,504 = - 161,714 | 154475 | 291,827 316,278 | 509,594 489,257
Cost of sales HERA (27,378)  (7,657) = - | (90,566)  (89,456) - (249,865)  (266,788) | (367,809)  (363,901)
Other income and gains ~ Z st A R & 51,435 323,971 190,131 - 30,221 15,417 7,522 7900 © 279,309 347,288
Selling and BER
distribution costs AHEAE (624) - - - - - (24598  (16,561) = (25,222)  (16,561)
Administrative expense  {THE % (14,9590  (2,413) = - | (46,6600  (41,507) | (20,683)  (32,715) | (82,302  (76,635)
Other operating expenses 148 & F % (171 - - - 9,672 (5950) ~ (4973)  (26,499) | (14,816  (32,449)
Finance costs RAKA (107,236)  (28,723) = - (4,007 (1,811)  (1,598)  (2,720) | (112,841)  (33,254)
Share of profits and AEBERALZ
losses of associates BHRER - 174,255 - (23,707)") 13,242 2,763 - (132,461)" 13,242 20,850
Profit/(loss) before tax ~ REFHEEHZ
from discontinued BHA
operations wfl/ (BR) (42,880) 477,937 190,131  (23,707) = 54,272 33,931 (2,368) (153,566) = 199,155 334,595
Tax RE 34,774 - (30,585) = (6,788)  (5,152) (@42  (1.231)  (3,041) (6,383
Profit/(loss) for the year  REFEREZKZ
from discontinued FE
operations BH/ (B8) (8,100) 477,937 | 159,546  (23,707) = 47,484 28,779 (2,810) (154,797) | 196,114 328,212

ok

The amount included the gain on disposal of 49% equity interests in Huayin

Traffic of HK$48,738,000.

The amount included the gain on disposal of Mawan of HK$322,986,000,

which was included in the discontinued operations of the year 2006.

The amounts represented the share of losses in Shenzhen Topway and

Shenzhen SEG, which were included in the discontinued operations of the

year 2006.

E

FHSHERHEERRIB49%KEZ s

48,738,000/ JT

ER2ERIEHESE 2 2322,986,0007% 7T *

HEFAZZERFZFEE-

EReRESIERINRBARANERZER KB

AAZRERRFIHFEEB-
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1M.EBEEK (£)

RT-—A=Z+t—BESERFEHEZHE
SECZEERABZEIZEMNT:

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

The major classes of assets and liabilities of the disposal groups
classified as held for sale as at 31 December are as follows:

128

Manufacturing Total
Hi ag
2007 2006 2007 2006

Notes HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Kz ThEx T TER TR
Assets AE

Property, plantand 1% FifE

equipment SEL 15 -
Intangible assets EWEE 16 -
Prepaid land lease ~ BfiL1H

payment HENE 17 -
Goodwill e 18 -
Interests in REERRZ

associates B -
Available-for-sale e

investments RE 2 -
Inventories 35 -
Trade receivables ~ EWEZEH 27 -
Prepayments, BFHE

deposits and BeR

other receivables HibERE -
Cash and BeRKT

bank balances =4 _
Assets classified ERBERE

as held for sale HEZEE -

Liabilities B

Interest-bearing M ERT

bank loans BR -
Trade payables ERE 5K -
Other payables A HER

and accruals it ER -
Deferred tax BB

liabilities afE -
Liabilities directly — E# &

associated L))

with the assets RiEEE

classified as LEERE

held for sale L8 -
Net assets directly ~ E# 8

associated 28A

with the assets BIEHE

calssified as LEERBZ

held for sale EEAE -

RINZERABER DA 20074 F 3§



11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)
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The net cash flows incurred from the discontinued operations are

as follows:

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

1. FFEEH (B)

FBEEGMBECRSREFHENT

Infrastructure Information Transportation
investment technology services Manufacturing Total
ERRE ERBH LR HE ag
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn TEL TEn AR TEn FEL TEn TEL TEn TEL
Operating activities MR 38,731 (246,449) = (73,934)  (11,398) (3,670) 81,153 | (38,873) (176,693)
Investing activities RERY - - 151,533 - - - 73,126 - 224,659 -
Financing activities BERY (107,230  (2,413) = - 60,036 28,564 (1,796)  (71,851)  (48,996)  (45,700)
Net cash inflow/(outlow) R&iRA/ (i) B8 (68,505) (248,861) = 151,533 (13,898) 17,166 67,660 9302 | 136790  (222,393)
2007 2006
Earnings per share: FRAM:
Basic, from the discontinued BN =
operations FRBEETS HK6.26 centsiEfll HK12.95 cents lll
Diluted, from the discontinued #5 RE
operations FREETS HK6.09 centsiEfll HK12.55 cents flll

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

129



Bt %5 R Ak Y &

Notes to Financial Statements |

31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

11. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) M. EFEEK (&)

AERASEEEZEREAREERT

The calculations of basic and diluted profit per share amounts

from the discontinued operations are based on:

TREIER:

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TRET FHT
Profit for the year from BB EFBET
discontinued operations 2 F B s A 196,114 328,212
Results attributable DB R A =
to minority interests JE(h % 4E (7,722) 1,166
Profit attributable to ordinary REFFBEB 2 HRA
equity holders of the parent EERERA A
from the discontinued operations J& 15 % A 188,392 329,378
2007 2006
Weighted average number of RAREFTEESR
ordinary shares in issue EXRBANZ
during the year used FRE LT
in the basic earnings per share A
calculation InHEFE & 3,010,082,402 2,543,566,810
Weighted average number of RAREFTEESR
ordinary shares used BERNz
in the diluted earnings per share AR
calculation A FEH 3,093,973,138 2,624,039,624

THER AR EER ZIERBEER 22/
BERERARE:

The following information is provided on the financial assets and
financial liabilities of the discontinued operations as at the balance
sheet date:

NBEZERABEZBFEXRBIRRE SR
R BREE DB B TS AR 7E27 ©

The aged analysis of trade receivables of the discontinued
operations based on the invoice date is provided in note 27 to the
financial statements.
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DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) . EFEXR (F)
The maturity profile of interest-bearing bank loans, trade payables REEHFFEXEB 2 WERTER ENE
and other payables of the discontinued operations as at the balance 5 BR AR B E At JE R IE 2 BIBAAROR T3 A B BT
sheet date, based on contractual undiscounted payments, was as KM RN R E FHEOT:
follows:
Within One to Two to Over
one year two years  three years  three years Total
15K 182F 2E3F 3ENE RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT TERT TERT FTERT TERT
Interest-bearing bank loans Bt SER1TE R 131,567 = - 1,705,805 1,837,372
Trade payables eI E 5 BR K 59,468 1,484 308 4,714 65,974
Other payables H fth & 15 5018 169,782 28,340 50,142 64,775 313,039
Total R 360,817 29,824 50,450 1,775,294 2,216,385
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE 12. B RREEFEAEBGERR
PARENT
The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the parent BHE_ZELF+_A=+—HIEFEER
for the year ended 31 December 2007 includes a profit of AEmIEE ARG A m A 21E364,334,000
HK$364,334,000 (2006: HK$767,325,000) which has been dealt B (ZZEZERF:767,325,000/E7T) B

with in the financial statements of the Company (note 35(b)).

RARB 2 oA T EE (KE350b))

DIVIDENDS 13. 8
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Interim — HK8.00 cents hHIRR B — B
(2006: HK3.00 cents) @A 8.00%
per ordinary share (ZZEZTRF:3.00%1L) 238,537 74,905
Adjustment to prior year’s final dividend LATE G EREIRE 2 & 28,360 2,534
Proposed final dividend of BR RIS — F R EBAR21.00% 1l
HK21.00 cents (2006: final scrip (ZZZRFAEUARKES
dividend with a cash option of AR & Wz REARR B —
HK8.54 cents) per ordinary share B E @AR8.54%8 1) 677,950 240,952
Proposed special dividend of BRI IR B R T BEZEN
Nil cents (2006: special scrip dividend (ZZZ /N4 : A& ZRMK S50
with a cash option of HK11.45 cents) PATR & W ER 2 %5 Rl AR B
per ordinary share BREBAR11.45%800) - 323,056
944,847 641,447
The proposed dividends for the year are subject to the approval of REREHIRKREEFARRAIREREERR
the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general BERE &
meeting.
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14. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY 4. BRREEREEEEAELERER
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share amounts is based on BRERBANDIEZBEGAALEBEERITEA
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the JEME AR s A R F A E BT BRRG N
parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in RTFHEGE-

issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share amounts is based on BRETERMNDNZREARAEBERTAAR
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of the EERRMFAE - BIELIEAE 2 Z@RnE
parent. The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in FHHEAFAEBTEBREE (AIANUGE
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue during BIREARRTZE) R EEEE T BRAR
the year, as used in the basic earnings per share calculation and T BEETEXBH/LTERMBRRE ERE
the weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to have EATE AR INETF S8

been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary
shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share amounts BRERNREERN IR T SHETE:
are based on:

2007 2006
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 TR FHET
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to ordinary equity RAAGEEREREF 2
holders of the parent, used B QA &8
in the basic earnings per *E SRFA A
share calculation: JE 15 % A :
From continuing operations KEFHBED 1,526,429 474,228
From discontinued operations REFEFBEED 11 188,392 329,378
1,714,821 803,606
Number of shares
IR 13 8 B
2007 2006
Shares B 17
Weighted average number of RRETEER
ordinary shares in issue ERER
during the year used ZEA
in the basic earnings per share BETERRKR
calculation I F & 3,010,082,402 2,543,566,810
Effect of dilution — weighted average BEyE LBk
number of ordinary shares: INHE T 5 B
Share options i % 1 83,890,736 80,472,814

3,093,973,138 2,624,039,624
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15.NE-BERKE
Group rE
Land and Land and
buildings in ~ buildings in
Hong Kong  Mainland China Furniture,
under medium  under medium Leasehold fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction
Toll roads term leases term leases  improvements equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
HaBEL PeaEEiE)
RERKE RPEAERE A& B
WBLE 2iMREF ZiHRAT NEEE  RERRE AE BERRE ERIR ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TEn TEn TEn TiEn TEn TEn TEn TEn

31 December 2007 Z22tE
t=A=+-8
At 31 December 2006 and RIZERE
at 1 January 2007 +-A=1+-AH
RR-B2t%F
—A-R:
Cost or valuation RASEE
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE
and impairment R
Net carrying amount BEFE

At 1 January 2007, net of it 3
accumulated depreciation and ~ —FA—H -k

impairment ZHTERAE
Additions RE
Acquisition of a subsidiary  WEKEAA
(note 36) (H336)
Assets included in discontinued 5t AZEFEEH
operations (note 11) ZEE (i)
Transfer from investment BRARENE
properties (note 20) (Ht3E20)
Reclassification ENDR
Disposals ik
Transfer to properties SRERRTNE
under development (note 19)  (fif3£19)
Write-back of impairment BERE
Depreciation provided RER
during the year nERK
Exchange realignment EiAE

At 31 December 2007, netof ~ R=FE+4F
accumulated depreciation and  TZA=—H"

impairment BB 2E
RBE
At 31 December 2007: RZFTLE
t=A=+-H:
Cost or valuation KA E
Accumulated depreciation and 25t H7 &
impairment RAE
Net carrying amount RAEE
Analysis of cost or valuation: K AHHEEAN:
At cost A
At 2006 valuation N
* In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amount of those land and * EBERR RNAFERBSRELNRET ZRE
buildings purchased in the current year approximated to their fair value as CREARER-_ZELF+-_A=+—HZA¥
at 31 December 2007. BEE-
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Group (Continued)

15. V% - BERRE (£)

EE (F)

Land and Land and
buildings in ~ buildings in
Hong Kong  Mainland China Furniture,
under medium  under medium Leasehold fixtures and Motor Plantand  Construction
Toll roads term leases term leases  improvements equipment vehicles machinery in progress Total
S #E 4 DGk
REERE ROEAERE g Rk
WERE ZiHREF ziBREF EES RERZRB RE  BRR#RE BRI 4]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TiEL TEL Tin TEL Tin T TEL TiExL
31 December 2006 ZEERE
t=A=t-8
At T January 2006: RZZE2/E
—A—-R:
Cost or valuation RAKEE - 2,086 410,479 4109 54,647 222,845 154,058 8,180 856,404
Accumulated depreciation Zitih
and impairment RAE = (30) (28,379) (713) (42,763) (136,473) (37,190) - (245,548)
Net carrying amount REFE = 2,056 382,100 3,396 11,884 86,372 116,868 8,180 610,856
At 1 January 2006, net of RZEERE-A-H
accumulated depreciation and  EHB 2 E
impairment RAEE = 2,056 382,100 3,396 11,884 86,372 116,868 8,180 610,856
Additions RE = - 2,177 9,274 8,710 20,673 7,386 7,399 55,619
Acquisition of a subsidiary WERBAA 2,863,516 - = - 3,063 8,998 9,228 - 2,884,805
Disposals e = = (4,500) = 2,252) (4,876) (5,774) = (17,402)
Transfer to investment properties R ZE K ENE
(note 20) (Mi#20) = = (6,467) - - - = = (6,467)
Reclassified to properties ENARARERTNZ
under development (note 19)  ({519) - - (91,866) - - - - - (91,866)
Write-back of impairment HERE - - (249) - - 1,766 = = 1,517
Depreciation provided AEEHE
during the year B (5,488) - (10,628) (1,087) (10,120) (31,684) (18,323) - (77,530)
Exchange realignment Bz 55,054 87 12,072 104 774 3,357 4,295 48 75,791
At 31 December 2006, netof K ZZERF
accumulated depreciation and  TZA=T—H-
impairment BNk ZiHE
RfE 2,913,082 2,143 282,639 11,687 12,059 84,406 113,680 15,627 3,435,323
At 31 December 2006: N
tZA=t-8:
Cost or valuation RAS(EE 2,918,570 2,176 299,109 13,514 58,083 218,986 161,261 15,627 3,687,326
Accumulated depreciation and 23 7 &
impairment EHE (5,488) (33) (16,470) (1,827) (46,024) (134,580) (47,581) - (252,003)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,913,082 2,143 282,639 11,687 12,059 84,406 113,680 15,627 3,435,323
Analysis of cost or valuation: ~ K AZEEAT:
At cost RA 2,918,570 - - 13,514 58,083 218,986 161,261 15,627 3,386,041
At 2006 valuation ZETRERE = 2,176 299,109 - - - - - 301,285
2,918,570 2,176 299,109 13,514 58,083 218,986 161,261 15,627 3,687,326
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The Group’s land and buildings were revalued at 31 December
2006 by Greater China Appraisal Ltd.,
professionally qualified property valuers. These land and buildings
were revalued at their open market values based on their existing
use. In the opinion of the directors, there has been no material

an independent firm of

change in the values of these land and buildings as at 31 December
2007.

Had these land and buildings been carried at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation, their carrying amounts would have been

approximately HK$218,833,000 (2006: HK$230,350,000).

At 31 December 2007,

the Group’s land and buildings of

HK$6,437,000 and ownership of the Jingdong Expressway (a toll
road with a net book value of approximately HK$3,139,324,000)
included in assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale
(2006: HK$5,370,000 and HK$2,913,082,000, respectively), were
pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (note 30).

Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

31 December 2007 —EZE+&+=-A=+—H

5. M- BERRE (F)

AEBZETIHEBEFER_ZTF+
—R=+—H Eﬂﬁﬁiﬁﬁ/\éﬁ&%¥1ﬁﬁﬁﬂi

EEFEARA TEM-ZEFLHRET
TR R Eﬂmﬁ%‘ih,ﬁ\iﬁﬁ?Zﬁﬁ SHETE

fB-BERAS NR_ETLFT_HA= + B
ZETHWRBT ZEELESKE

BNZEL M REFRELKARZTITE
FIER HEREES & 54218,833,000/8 7T (=
T T N4 :230,350,00078 7T ) ©

KRBT+ E+-_A=+—H AEEBEDIKHF
6437000%7c2iiﬁ1&$§%%&;ﬁr)\x"iﬁ

ABEEFENEHANEEZARSER
E%Ffrﬁﬁé(ﬁuﬁm\ BEEFENB
3,139,324,0008 ) (ZZEZENF DR A

5,370,0007 T % 2,913,082,000/% 7t ) 1E AR
TERZER (HFE30) -

Leasehold Furniture Motor
Company improvements  and fixtures vehicles Total
AN HEYXEEE KAREE RE wa
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TERT TER TER
31 December 2007 —BELHF
+=A=+—8H
At 1 January 2007, net of R-ZETLF
accumulated depreciation —HA—8"
KB BTN E 475 764 1,262 2,501
Additions NE - 56 970 1,026
Depreciation provided REFHE
during the year B (118) (226) (587) (931)
At 31 December 2007, net of R-ZEZLHF
accumulated depreciation +ZA=+—8"
KR RTINE 357 594 1,645 2,596
At 31 December 2007: R-FZLHF
tZA=+—H
Cost AR 593 1,190 3,555 5,338
Accumulated depreciation 25t e (236) (596) (1,910) (2,742)
Net carrying amount BR DR (E 357 594 1,645 2,596
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

136

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 5. ME-BRERRKE (&)
Leasehold Furniture Motor
Company improvements  and fixtures vehicles Total
NN HEMEEE EMREE A R
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FHE T FHET
31 December 2006 —EEBRE
+=A=+-~8
At 1 January 2006, net of RZZEERF
accumulated depreciation —HA—8"
LHIRR BRTITE 593 513 1,105 2,211
Additions nE - 448 583 1,031
Cost of disposals & B AR - (110) (867) (977)
Depreciation written back i & £ m
on disposal e - 110 867 977
Depreciation provided REFHE
during the year Bt (118) (197) (426) (741)
At 31 December 2006, net of RZEZ N
accumulated depreciation +=ZA=+—H
KB RTINS 475 764 1,262 2,501
At 31 December 2006: R=ZFFNE
+TZR=+—H
Cost BN 593 1,133 2,584 4,310
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (118) (369) (1,322) (1,809)
Net carrying amount FREF(E 475 764 1,262 2,501
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31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B &EE
HK$’000

Group rEE FET
Vehicle licences YTE BRI
31 December 2007 —ZEZEtLtF+=-H=1+—H
Cost at 1 January 2007, net of R-ZEZE+tF—HF—HZA

accumulated amortisation £ BR 2 5T 88 37,964
Additions nE 57,982
Amortisation provided during the year REFEERE (1,944)
Assets included in discontinued operations (note 11) sT AFEHBEEB 2 EE (MisE11) (96,749)
Exchange realignment BE H,oE B 2,747
At 31 December 2007, net of R-EZEEtF+=-H=+—8"

accumulated amortisation BB ET -
At 31 December 2007: R-ZEELtF+-A=+—H:

Cost BN =

Accumulated amortisation RET#5H =

Net carrying amount B R (E -
31 December 2006 —EERF+-_A=+—H
At 1 January 2006: RZTETZRF—-—H—H:

Cost B AR 56,776

Accumulated amortisation R (19,193)

Net carrying amount FREFE 37,583
Cost at 1 January 2006, net of RZZEZERF—A—HZHA"

accumulated amortisation AN B R T 5 37,583
Additions nNE 784
Amortisation provided during the year NGO 3R (1,807)
Exchange realignment DE 3, of B 1,404
At 31 December 2006, net of RZBEERF+_A=Z+—8H"

accumulated amortisation AN BR R AT 5 37,964
At 31 December 2006: RZZBEERFE+-_A=+—A8:

Cost B AR 59,681

Accumulated amortisation BEEt#H (21,717)

Net carrying amount REEE 37,964
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

17. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENT

| B 3% ¥ R MY A

17. 2 LB E& KA\

Group
AEE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BZERHE 3,888 3,747
Assets included in FAAEBHEEBZEE
discontinued operations (note 11) (M&E11) (4,072) -
Exchange realignment BE H,oE B 184 141
Carrying amount at 31 December RtTt-ZHA=+—RHBZKHE - 3,888
Current portion included =T A H b 8 I AR 3K
in other receivables Z BNERER o (85) (85)
Assets included in STAEREEB CEE
discontinued operations (note 11) (PFF=ETT) 85 =
Non-current portion FERNERER 93 - 3,803

The leasehold land is held under a medium term lease and is

situated in Mainland China.

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR
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Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

18. GOODWILL 18. &
HK$’000
Group rEE FET
Cost at 1 January 2006, net of RZEEXF—HA—HZA
accumulated impairment KA 2EHRE -
Acquisition of a subsidiary 1 Fs s &8 2 =] 195,932
Impairment during the year N E R E -
At 31 December 2006 RZFETXE+-_A=+—H 195,932
At 31 December 2006: RZFEAF+A=1T—8:
Cost DN 195,932
Accumulated impairment Z5HRE -
Net carrying amount B R (E 195,932
Cost at 1 January 2007, net of RZZBEZLFE-—HA—-HZKA"
accumulated impairment BB R E 195,932
Acquisition of minority interests in a subsidiary WK E R Rz DBR R E s 322,020
Disposal of equity interests in a subsidiary kNNl g (96,006)
Attributable to discontinued operations (note 11)  FE{GIEFFEZERS (HaE11) (99,926)
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2007 RZZTE+F+_A=+—-—HZAAKEKEHE 322,020
At 31 December 2007: R=-BELtHE+=-A=+—8:
Cost AN 322,020
Accumulated impairment Z5HRE -
Net carrying amount BREFE 322,020

Impairment testing of goodwill

&R E R

Goodwill arising from acquisition of minority interests in
subsidiaries has been allocated to the following cash-generating
units, which are reportable segments, for impairment testing:

* Property development cash-generating unit; and
e Property investment cash-generating unit.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit has been
determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 13.08%.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amounts of goodwill is
based would not cause the carrying amounts to exceed its
recoverable amounts.

AUBHBRAR Z VB RESHELZRE
BESERETIRECELEM (BUHRES
) ETRERR:

s YEURRESELHM R

e YMERERSELHf-
ReELBUZTHOBBRCRBRESRE
BABHEZ AFHRAPHREERR SR

EEAGFEZFRAEEEE RenE @A
AR EE13.08% °

EEABME AMERER M EBEMREZ
TERREBSEAREES F IS5 BRE
BB @ H A W o B AR o
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

| B 3% ¥ R MY A

19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. BRFYZE
Group
rEE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FET
Land in Mainland China held under AR AR R B KERE 2
medium term leases, at cost: Tt AN
At beginning of year F 1 1,848,967 925,806
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) U g BT 8 A &) (T 5E36) 1,172,366 =
Additions NE 3,597,192 1,403,910
Transfer from an investment EREREME
property (note 20) (P 5£20) 37,048 -
Transfer to properties under EREZERT
development for sale (EX=EES (118,890) (607,206)
Reclassified from property, BME - BERRXBEH SR
plant and equipment (note 15) (P 7E15) 7,253 91,866
Disposals & (71,551) -
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) HE—MKEERQR (KMaE37) (550,000) -
Exchange realignment ME 5 B 178,125 34,591
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 6,100,510 1,848,967
Development expenditure, at cost: BB S AR
At beginning of year F1 439,418 143,742
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) W BB KT B A |l (MisE36) 12,677 =
Additions nE 1,316,196 605,438
Transfer to properties under BEREZERT
development for sale (SEi=EES (718,629) (320,868)
Disposals H & (63,933) =
Exchange realignment ME K B 28,362 11,106
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~H 1,014,091 439,418
7,114,601 2,288,385

At 31 December 2007, the Group’s properties under development
with a net book value of approximately HK$368,290,000 (2006:
HK$122,737,000) were pledged to secure bank loans granted to

the Group (note 30).

As at 31 December 2007, the application for certificates of land in
Mainland China held under medium term leases with a net book
value of RMB2,395,005,000 (equivalent to approximately

HK$2,559,781,000) was still in progress.

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR
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Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

20. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 20. REM=
Group
AEE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THET
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BZERHE 3,083,941 2,653,801
Transfer from property, ERAYE MENLKEG
plant and equipment (note 15) (Pff5E15) - 6,467
Additions KB 10,828 60,566
Net profit from a fair value adjustment X 7 {EFH% 2 45 F 725,534 257,739
Reclassified from completed BREKZETENEENHE
properties for sale (note 25) (Pff5E25) 81,680 6,391
Transfer to owner-occupied EREXZTHERAME
property (note 15) (Pff5E15) (3,580) -
Disposal & (522,345) =
Transfer to properties under EREERTYE
development (note 19) (MI5E19) (37,048) -
Transfer to inventories EBERERE (249,390) -
Exchange realignment BE H, oE B 226,090 98,977
Carrying amount at 31 December R+tZA=+—HBZEHEE 3,315,710 3,083,941

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China

and are held under a medium term lease.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2007 by Greater China Appraisal Ltd., an independent firm of
professionally qualified property valuers, at approximately
HK$3,315,710,000 on an open market, existing use basis. The
investment properties are leased to third parties under operating
leases, further summary details of which are included in note 38(i)
to the financial statements. The net surplus arising on revaluation
was credited to the consolidated income statement.

At 31 December 2007, none of the Group’s investment properties
was pledged to secure bank loans granted to the Group (2006:

Nil) (note 30).

REE 7R E W EL A BIARE - 36 A HIAE
MR-

AREFZREYWEER TS+ F+_A=
T EAEBYEEMEGEMEETERR
ARRAFAMBEINRAZEESEHAY
3,315,710,000/8 Lo L E W AL E L H A
FE=F BEBESHRIEIRE M E38()
EHABRFHEFTAGREKERT -

R-EE+E+-_A=+—H KNEEWEE
WEMEENEEARESBIERTERZ
BR(ZZEZRFEE) (H:E30)
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

Bt %5 R Ak Y &

21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 21. B A A=
Company
VYN
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
T & T T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRD A A 3,820,616 1,667,351
Due from subsidiaries * JE W B B8 2 &) FRIA 1,207,705 1,210,735
5,028,321 2,878,086

* The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed terms

of repayment. The amounts due from subsidiaries of HK$949,545,710 (2006:

HK$949,545,710) which are interest-free while the remaining balance of
HK$258,158,826 (2006: HK$261,189,750) bears interest at rates ranging

from 6.57% to 7.75% (2006: 3% to 7.75%) per annum.

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries classified under current assets/

liabilities are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand

or within one year.

The carrying amounts due from/to subsidiaries approximate to their

fair values.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
registration

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid-up capital/

* BUEHEBARZAEAEER TEETEXA
H o [k FE U BT B8 /A B) 2.949,545,710/ 7T (Z T /X

949,545,710/ 7t ) % B KB A SN -

8

258,158,826/8 70 (ZZTZ /X :261,189,7507% 7T)
BEF6.57%27.75% (ZT T NF 3%E7.75%)

stEER -

Y, ENMBRARRESERARDEE
BE REER 28 YAREREI—FA

m|

EE-

% E R A BT B 1 B RROE 2 BRTE {E B E

DA ERE-

TEMBARFEWET:

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

Name of subsidiaries and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
ERTR
AR BRBE/ ERAREMEZ
MR &R R EMEAXEE REEZA DL TEXH
2007 2006

Shum Yip Southern Land (Holdings) PRC HK$1,002,500,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd. (Note ¢)

REBIE (RH) FRAF hE 1,002,500,000% 7. MEERE
(FitzEe)

Shum Yip Centre Development (Shenzhen) PRC HK$40,000,000 100 100 Property development
Co., Ltd. (Notes a & d)

REFLER CRI) ARDE (M Eafd) i 40,000,000 T MEERE

Shum Yip Shumkang (Group) Co., Ltd. PRC RMB95,500,000 80 80  Provision of transportation services
(Note e)

RERE (KE) BRAR (Fike) HE AR %95,500,0007C B H RS

Shum Yip Terra (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (Note e) PRC RMB200,000,000 75.05 51 Property development

RERR (RE) RAFRAF (HEe) hE AR %200,000,0007C NEERE

Shenzhen Terra Aluminum Alloy Works PRC RMB10,000,000 72.72 49 Aluminum Alloy engineering
Co., Ltd. (Notes a & d)

RITERARAETRBERAF T E AR %10,000,0007C RARTE
(Ftstakd)

Shenzhen Terra Property Management PRC RMB5,060,000 75.05 51 Property management
Service Co., Ltd. (Notes a & d)

RITEANDEERRBERDA (MHiakd) HE AR %5,060,0007 NEER
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21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 21. B AR ER (&)

TEMBRARZFBNET:

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of
registration

Nominal value of
issued and fully
paid-up capital/

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

Name of subsidiaries and operations registered capital the Company Principal activities
BEAR
B 3L BEBRE/ ARFEMLZ
HEARER REEwE HMEREE REAEZAD I TEXH
2007 2006
Wuhan Terra Property Development PRC RMB137,000,000 73.55 49.78  Property development
Co., Ltd. (Notes a & d)
RETRAEHEREBRAA e AR %137,000,0007 NERER
(FiFFakd)
Shenzhen Shum Yip Logistics Group Holding PRC RMB160,764,662 = 51 Operation of warehouses and
Co., Ltd. (Notes d & f) property development
RIREDREBRBERA R (M EdRS) HE AR#160,764,66270 BEBRRRDERR
Shum Yip TaiFu Logistics Group Holdings PRC RMB85,966,370 95.37 - Operation of warehouses and
Co., Ltd. (Notes d & f) property development
REZEDREERBERAA (MEdRS) HE AR #85,966,37070 BEBRRDERR
Shum Yip Pengji Holding Co., Ltd. PRC RMB932,050,000 100 100 Property investment and development
(Note ¢)
RERE (£B) BR2 A (B HE AR 932,050,000 NERERER
Shenzhen PJLD Securities Products PRC RMB75,000,000 63.46 63.46 Manufacturing of security products
Co., Ltd. (Notes a & d)
RYEERTZHRHERAA (Hakd  HE AR %75,000,0007C REZHER
Shenzhen Pengji Property Management PRC RMB20,000,000 100 100 Property management
Services Limited (Notes a & d)
RNTEENZERRBARDE (HEakd) E AR %20,000,00070 MEEE
Shenzhen Shum Yip Steel Centre Ltd. PRC RMB19,920,000 100 100 Manufacturing of steel products
(Notes a & e)
RYREEE BB AR (Hake) HE AE#19,920,0007C HERSEmM
Shenzhen Pengsheng Property Industrial PRC RMB45,000,000 50 50  Property investment and development
Company Limited (Notes a, b & e)
RYBEMEEXFRAR (Hifa  bRe) R E AR %45,000,00070 NERERER
Shenzhen Wondershine Residence Company PRC RMB7,114,288 100 100 Property management
Limited (Notes a & d)
ATEEEZERAE (HEakd) R E AR¥7,114,2887C MEEE
Shum Yip Investment (Shenzhen) PRC US$150,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Co., Ltd. (Note ¢)
RERBR ORI BR A (B ) e 150,000,000 7T REZK
Hubei Shumyip Huayin Traffic Development PRC RMB110,000,000 51 100 Provision of investment and
Co., Ltd. (Notes a & e) management services of toll roads
B RFERRBRAZERAA (HiEake) e AR %110,000,0007 REKEABRERERERRS
Changsha Pengji Property Limited PRC RMB65,000,000 80 80  Property development
(Notes a & d)
RPBEEHEFR AR (Makd) R E AR %65,000,0007 NEER
Huizhou Pengji Investment Limited PRC RMB10,000,000 100 70 Property investment and development
(Notes a & d)
BMNBEEREARAR (MEakd) R E AK%10,000,0007C NERERER
Shum Yip (Shenzhen) Property PRC RMB5,000,000 100 100 Property management
Management Limited (Notes a & d)
REEE R MEEREARDE (WiEakd) +E AR %5,000,0007 MEEE
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

21. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital outstanding as at 31

December 2007.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

Notes:

Indirectly held by the Company

The Company has control of the boards of directors of these entities and

therefore these entities are regarded as subsidiaries of the Company.

Established in the PRC as a wholly foreign-owned enterprise

Established in the PRC as a domestic enterprise with limited liability

Established in the PRC as a co-operative joint venture enterprise

On 11 December 2006, in view of the expiry of the term of business of
Shenzhen Shum Yip Logistics Group Holdings Co., Ltd. (“Shum Yip
Logistics”), the shareholders of Shum Yip Logistics entered into a split
agreement to divide and allocate all the assets and liabilities of Shum Yip
Logistics among themselves. Shum Yip Logistics was 51% owned by the
Company, 2.4734% by its employees (the “Employees”) and 46.5266% by
three other independent PRC entities. Pursuant to the split agreement, all
assets and liabilities of Shum Yip Logistics were divided among its
shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings in Shum Yip Logistics.
The Company and the Employees agreed to form a new joint venture,
Shenzhen Shum Yip Hangfa Logistics Development Company Limited
(95.3745% owned by the Company, and later named as Shum Yip Taifu
Logistics Group Holdings Co, Ltd. (“Taifu”)), to hold the assets of Shum Yip
Logistics being allocated to them. On 9 February 2007, the transaction was
approved at the Company’s extraordinary general meeting. The transaction
was approved by the government and Taifu was established on 21 March

2007.
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. Bt N E R

Group Company
AEH b NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T FET T T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMRD A A = = 15,133 88,053
Shares listed in Hongkong, REBETRG -
at cost b1 9D N = = 865,257 105,744
Share of net assets FE(h&EFE 3,447,924 2,534,843 = =
Goodwill on acquisition WHEEEZHE
(note a) (Pt 5Ea) 17,356 17,356 17,356 17,356
Loans from associates BEERNRIR T 2B
(note 42) (Ky7E42) (9,330) (4,890) = -
Loans to associates BTHBERNR ZER
(note 42) (P 3%42) 471,590 30,164 382,243 =
3,927,540 2,577,473 = 1,279,989 211,153
Assets included in discontinued %I A JE# 4B ¥ 75
operations/interests ZERE/DER
in an associate classified BIEFEZ
as held for sale i A N B HE 25 (200,996) (125,845) = (50,221)
3,726,544 2,451,628 1,279,989 160,932
Market value of listed shares EmkHmE 3,261,135 2,115,535 969,381 =

BRELEREI (HiEb) BEQRMET 4R
THEARZERRERR 28 BEEERE
ERH-RFEREHREREQNAERE-

The loans from/to associates are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed repayment date, except for the senior notes (note b). The
carrying amounts of these loans approximate to their fair values.

(a) On 19 October 2006, the Company entered into an agreement (@ RZZZEXRFETRATNB KRAFEILK
to purchase (i) the convertible bonds issued by Coastal ZREBOAEHEREBRAA ([EEF

Greenland Limited (“Coastal Greenland”) at a consideration
of HK$511,024,000 (note 24(a)); and (ii) the shares representing
approximately 7.32% of the issued share capital of Coastal
Greenland as at 19 October 2006 at a consideration of
HK$145,800,000. Upon completion and assuming that there
is exercise in full of the conversion rights attached to the
convertible bonds, the convertible bonds would be converted
into 443,862,857 Coastal Greenland shares, representing
approximately 16.7% of the enlarged issued share capital of
Coastal Greenland, and together with the purchased shares, in
aggregate would represent approximately 22.80% of the
enlarged share capital of Coastal Greenland.

During the year, the Company exercised its conversion right
of the aforementioned convertible bonds into 443,862,857
shares of Coastal Greenland. The fair value of the convertible
bonds was valued by (“Greater China Appraisal Limited”) on
23 July 2007, the conversion date, at the amount of
HK$736,812,000.

HERE]) BOZUBRRES RER
511,024,000 7T (M7 24(a)) : (ii)/4 /8 4%
ERER_ZEEFTATILBERETR
N 497.32% 2 & 0 (X{8 /&145,800,000
PETT o SERK I R R 2 E 1T FJ AR (B 5
FrbtmicE ThREHFKALBRA
443,862,857 H B EBRE KRN 58
HERBLCERNEBITREALN16.7% ' &
RATRER G &6 REA SR ERE 2K
BARBEITIRAL22.80% °

FRARRITEE P AT R ES 2 &
R BN 4R B R [E 443,862,857 % 1%
PoAl R ESZ AN ER (DEEFES
BRAm ) REBRBHE T +F /=
+=BFH £545736,812,000/% T °
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b) On 18 December 2007, the Company purchased from the Hong
Kong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited, an
independent third party, the addition units issued by Coastal
Greenland, which comprised 1) guaranteed senior notes of
US$50,000,000 due 8 November 2012 bearing interest at the
rate of 12% per annum at US$47,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$361,000,000); 2) 37,207,500 warrants to
purchase up to 37,207,500 warrant shares issued by Coastal
Greenland at HK$27,000,000.

Bt %5 R Ak Y &

2. BENTRERS (&)

by RZEZE+E+_A+N\B KQAAMBE
NE=ZFESLBELEITERAREER
/u/iiﬁ’*@;ﬁl% TZREINEN  EPBE
)BA 47,000,000% T ( 4 #H & R
361,000 00078 7T) & 50,000,000 7T A
—E——F+—AN\BEHFEENREZ
W%{E%T?F : & 2)BA27,000,0005 Tt 8
REEBZERBETRS
37,207,500Hx%ﬂx$%é* f%15 237,207,500

D RIHERE -
Movement of goodwill during the current year was set out below: RAFEHBEEFHOT:
2007
HK$’000
FHERT
Cost at 1 January 2007, net of RZZTLF—-HA—-HHOKA"
accumulated impairment R ERE 17,356
Impairment during the year FRRE =
Cost and carrying amount at 31 December 2007 RZ-ZEE+LF+_A=+—HZKARKHE 17,356
Impairment testing of goodwill BB R E R A

Goodwill acquired through business combination has been
allocated to the property development division, which is a
reportable segment, for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the property development division has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using cash
flow projections based on financial budgets covering a five-year
period approved by senior management. The discount rate applied
to the cash flow projections is 17.21%.

Management believes that any reasonably possible change in the
key assumptions on which the recoverable amount of goodwill is
based would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the
recoverable amount.

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR

BAREAHMNNEBZEEESREEB LY
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MEBREEE ZAINEDEHBELZBRESRE
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 22. BENTERS (2

Particulars of the principal associates are as follows:

EEBEAAEEMT

Place of Nominal value of
establishment/ issued and fully Percentage of ownership
Business incorporation paid-up capital/ interest attributable
Name of associates structure and operations  registered capital to the Group Principal activities
B,/ BRTR
Rl BRBRE/ AEEESZ
BRENTER ERRE REEnH HZMEXEE RAEHZED L TEXHR
2007 2006
Road King Infrastructure Ltd. Corporate Bermuda HK$69,008,000 22.06 24.07  Investment and management
(“Road King") * of toll roads and property
development
BYZZEBRRE ([BD])* A BRE 69,008,0007% 7T BEABZREARERR
MERR
Shenzhen Tianan Cyber Park Corporate PRC US$18,000,000 37.53 25.5  Property investment and
Co., Ltd. development
ARBBERBR DA A HE 18,000,000 7T NEREARER
Shenzhen Topway Video Corporate PRC RMB200,000,000 - 31.1 Provision of cable TV and
Communication Co., Ltd. ** other communication
network technology services
RINTRERRARDER AR A HE AR #200,000,00070 REARERBER
H 750 A 48 B0l PR 75
Shenzhen SEG-CNEDC Color Corporate PRC RMB300,000,000 - 26.76 Investment holding
Display Device Corp. **
RYMEBERFEYBRT & R HE AE#300,000,0007 RARK
AR AR
Shenzhen Gaofa Investment Corporate PRC RMB309,200,000 - 29  Property development and
Holding Ltd. (“Gaofa”) ** investment
RFEREBR DA A HE AR #309,200,0007 NEERREE
Coastal Greenland Limited * Corporate Bermuda HK$221,290,000 21.71 732 Property development and
investment
HEREREBRAR: NG BRE 221,290,000/ 7T NEBRRRE

None of the associates are audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or
other member firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

* Road King is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda and the
ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each are listed on the
Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The principal

location of Road King’s business is Mainland China.

During 2007, Road King through its 88.46% owned subsidiary, acquired
the entire equity interests in two companies established in the People’s
Republic of China (collectively referred to as the “Investee Companies”) at

a consideration of RMB563,180,000 (equivalent to HK$592,821,000).

B AT B2 R RIR & B oK G RT R E 5 P
LK EFAMEBTEHREERAFAEZ

* RYDRBREZMRZZERAR EEREE
0.10BTEBREETEMERZMAR AR TR
T BR Sy 2 B M R s B R

—ETLEHERN BB BEES88.46% s 2 Kt
BATNMRMEARS563,180,0007c (HER
592,821,000 7T ) Wi A il 70 A 28 A R L AN B BY
VUZAR(BBAIWEERNR]) 22 AR
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

& After completion of the acquisition in July 2007, Road King was
unexpectedly not able to obtain effective control over the Investee
Companies despite the fact that the board of directors of the Investee
Companies was appointed by Road King as the former management of the
Investee Companies have not yet allowed the representatives of Road King
to access the office of the Investee Companies, and have not yet handed
over the official seals, the books and records as well as other relevant
documents of the Investee Companies. Without such access of official seals
and books and records, Road King has not yet effectively obtained control
of the Investee Companies.

Despite the fact that Road King has taken steps with a view to obtaining
effective control over the Investee Companies, Road King has not yet
obtained effective control or exercise significant influence over the operating
and financing policies of the Investee Companies. In view of this, the
Investee Companies are not currently considered to be subsidiaries or
associates of Road King and therefore they are accounted for as available-
for-sale investments. Based on the impairment review on the investments
in the Investee Companies, in the opinion of the directors of Road King, no
impairment on the investment cost of HK$592,821,000 (the amount
attributable to the Group: HK$130,776,000) in the Investee Companies is
considered as necessary.

Road King has commenced legal proceedings in the Tianjin district People’s
Court in October 2007 to enforce its rights and to assume effective control
over the Investee Companies. The directors, based on advices of Road
King’s PRC legal advisor, are of the firm belief that the court ruling will be
favourable to Road King and accordingly, Road King can assume effective
control over the Investee Companies in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2007, Road King provided guarantees in favour of banks
to provide credit facilities to the Investee Companies amounting to
HK$315,789,000 as at 31 December 2007 (the amount attributable to the
Group: HK$69,663,000). The bank loans are pledged by the properties
including land and properties under development for sale held by the

Investee Companies.

**  During the year, the Group disposed of the equity interests in Shenzhen
Topway, Shenzhen SEG and Shenzhen Gaofa Investment Holding Ltd.

#  Coastal Greenland is a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda
and the ordinary shares with a nominal value of HK$0.10 each are listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The
principal location of Coastal Greenland’s business is Mainland China.

The above table lists the associates of the Group which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other associates would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

All the above associates have been accounted for using the equity
method in these financial statements.
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following is the summarised financial information of all

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

2. BENTRERS (&)

EBZRRCMBERBENT

associates:

2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBx FAT
Assets BE 32,147,342 25,043,788
Liabilities A& 12,032,114 14,651,122
Revenue WA 2,896,153 3,174,731
Profit i A 1,007,402 255,710

AMOUNTS DUE FROM MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS 23. B ERRERE

The amounts due from minority shareholders as at 31 December
2007 are unsecured, interest-free and are repayable within one
year.

The carrying amounts of amounts due from minority shareholders
approximate to their fair values.

RZZEZE+F T A=+ —BHZRRKRIER
RAERELAR REER—FREE-

YD BBRRFAREEREAAERE-

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 24. At HERE
Group Company
KEHE AATHE
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THT F& T THT T T
At fair value: BARE:
Listed equity investments B AR
in Mainland China FHRESERE 10,945 31,550 = =
Unlisted equity investments B AR
in Mainland China FEEMESERE 18,042 18,329 1,720 1,720
Investment AR EAFEE
in convertible bonds (note a)  (KffzEa) - 360,973 = 360,973
28,987 410,852 1,720 362,693
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24. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued)

During the year, the net gain of the Group’s listed and unlisted
equity investments recognised directly in equity amounted to
HK$1,412,000 (2006: HK$8,758,000), of which Nil (2006: Nil)
was removed from equity and recognised in the income statement
for the year.

The fair values of listed and unlisted equity investments have been
estimated using a valuation technique based on assumptions that
are not supported by observable market prices or rates. The directors
believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the valuation
technique, which are recorded in the consolidated balance sheet,
and the related changes in fair values, which are recorded in the
consolidated equity, are reasonable, and that they were the most
appropriate values at the balance sheet date.

Note:
(@) Investment in convertible bonds

The embedded derivative of the Company’s investment in the convertible
bonds was classified as a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss,
which amounted to HK$302,158,000 as at 31 December 2006 (note 28).
The fair value of the embedded derivative was estimated by GCA using the
Monte Carlo Simulation model, taking into account the terms and conditions

upon which the option was granted.

On 23 July 2007, all of the aforementioned convertible bonds were
converted into 443,862,857 shares of Coastal Greenland. Further details of

the conversion are included in note 22 to the financial statements.
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31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

INVENTORIES 25. 7 &

Group

AEH
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHET
Raw materials R 1,831 23,123
Work in progress FE E in 6,141 6,201
Finished goods B K 4,179 12,249
Completed properties for sale EERZEEMHE 360,032 449,859
372,183 491,432

At 31 December 2007, the Group’s completed properties for sale
with a net book value of approximately HK$15,919,000 (2006:
HK$6,209,000) were pledged as security for the Group’s bank loans
(note 30).

During the year, completed properties for sale that amounted to
approximately HK$81,680,000 (2006: HK$6,391,000) were
transferred to investment properties for the purposes of investment
of the Group (note 20).

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

The properties under development for sale are located in Mainland
China and are stated at cost less impairment losses for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

26.

R-BT+E+-_A=+—B FEFEHNA
15,919,000/ 7t (ZZF T /X 16,209,000
) ZAREEER 2 HEMECEAEAER
BITE 2T (M 5E30) °

FRN BEKZFEMELS1,680,0007% T
(ZZEZT /N :6,391,000/870) CEEERE
MEREASEE ZKE (H7E20) °
BRABPSEYE

RZZET+FF+_A=1+—H RPEKRE
MBERPFSENRZRANBRRERBER-

TRADE RECEIVABLES 27. FE W BR =X

Group

AEH
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T F& T
Trade receivables JE U BR 3R 316,743 172,823
Impairment B (10,802) (12,891)
305,941 159,932

Under normal circumstances, the Group does not grant any credit
terms to its customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and to minimise credit risk. In
view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade receivables are
non-interest-bearing.

ELEBAT ARETERETFELEER
Hio N B ROAH E R E 2 & KRB R T B
R RO E B R R - XAl R A
B RBUBEFSERZEATRZREER  HA
SEYEBRETZEERR BRERSIE
BB K
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27. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27. B AR (4F)
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the balance sheet REE R UE KR B HE 2 BURRRZ Rk
date, base on the contract date, is as follows: DT
Group
rEH
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TRET FHT
Within one year —F RN 300,902 147,904
One to two years —FERENRN 3,426 11,921
Two to three years MEZE=FRA 1,613 107
305,941 159,932
The trade receivables of the disposal groups (note 11) included SFAHEAR 2 BUKERR (HE11) 2ER
amounts of HK$64,514,000, HK$1,635,000, HK$2,000 and 64,514,000/ 7T 1,635,000/ 7T * 2,000/ 7T &
HK$74,000 with aging of within one year, one to two years, two 74,0008 TZ BREC DRI/ —F AN —EME-
to three years and more than three years, respectively. ME=FR=FLL-
The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables BRERZ REREZESOT:
are as follows:
Group
rEE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FH T
At 1 January Kn—A—H 12,891 18,704
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) ERERZBMEEE (MFe6) 1,949 6,174
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) B0z mEEE (FFe6) (4,038) (11,987)
10,802 12,891
The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not considered A0 A IR ORUE 2 FE M BR TR 2 BR S 3 AT 40
to be impaired as follows: S
Group
AEE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TET
Neither past due nor impaired 7 480 B 78 R OR (B 301,086 147,913
Less than one year past due BHE DR —F 4,166 11,121
305,252 159,034
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28. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT 28.
OR LOSS

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

EREBRAANBEFEZESHMEE

Group Company
rEE PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THER T T TER T T
At market value: LA :
Listed equity investments EEAZ LW
in Hong Kong T R E 557,189 670 60,265 670
Listed equity investments FERBE AR ETH
in Mainland China HEmERE 13,475 588 = =
Listed equity investments EB/INz £
in overseas EmERE 1,106 4,369 = =
At fair value: BARE:
Investment in warrants of B & A Al 2 RAR
an associate (note a) FEE (HaEa) 31,220 31,220
Investment in convertible bonds AR ESEE = 302,158 = 302,158
602,990 307,785 91,485 302,828
Note: B o :

(@) On 18 December 2007, the Company purchased from an independent
third party 37,207,500 warrants to purchase up to 37,207,500 warrant
shares issued by Coastal Greenland at HK$27,000,000. Please refer to note
22 (b) for details. According to HKAS 39, the warrants were recorded as
derivatives, which should be measured at fair value at each period end.
The revaluation gain of HK$3,599,000 was recorded in the consolidated

income statement in the current year.

The above listed equity investments at 31 December 2006 and
2007 were classified as held for trading. For details of investment
in convertible bonds, please refer to note 24(a).

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

(@ R=ZTZTtF+=A+/\B A&R2A7F]LA27,000,000
BLABLE=FREARBLE&KERERT
&% %37,207,500/% 3R I% # 3 ik 19 2 37,207,500
RICEE BB HME20b) - BRIEBEFBSTE
AIZE395% RIREEFIALTET B - I A5 5 & H
BREEAREFE - ANFEEHIKE3,599,000
B AR A W&o

NWERZZEZERFRE _EELF+ A=+
—Hz Lm#ERERESEAFEEERS -
BRI BRKRESFKREZHE B2HME
24(a)°
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29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 29.RERBEZEEY
Group Company
rEE KA F
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FET FET FET
Cash and bank balances BE RIRITER 3,404,388 1,446,592 78,863 32,770
Time deposits EH TR 1,285,440 2,765,076 408,749 2,153,294
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEED 4,689,828 4,211,668 487,612 2,186,064

At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
HK$3,529,460,000 (2006: HK$1,987,483,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies. However, under Mainland
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for the other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying periods
of between one day and three months depending on the immediate
cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the cash and cash equivalents approximate to
their fair values.
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Notes to Financial Statements

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

31 December 2007

30. " EBITER

| B 3% ¥R R MY A

—FTt&+-A=+-H

2007 2006
Effective Effective
interest interest
Group rate (%) Maturity HK$’000 rate (%) Maturity HK$’000
AEE BRFIE(%) ) TERL B R A& (%) 3|5 FTEL
Current T E
Secured BHEA = = = 5.84-6.43 2007 17,941
Unsecured EEA 5.022-8.019 2008 3,547,163 4.86-6.73 2007 1,858,616
3,547,163 1,876,557
Non-current F R E
Secured FEA 6.12-7.65 2009-2010 132,531 5.75-6.84 2009-2020 1,610,667
4.5225-8.5905,
LIBOR+0.48,
R T
6 ¥ £+0.48, 5.18-5.43,
Unsecured I HIBOR+0.48 2009-2011 5,957,914 LIBOR+0.48 2008-2011 3,896,311
BB R T
BT 5+0.48 [l 347 8.+0.48
6,090,445 5,506,978
9,637,608 7,383,535
2007 2006
Effective Effective
interest interest
Company rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
YU BRFIE(%) ) TERT R (%) 3| 8 FTEL
Non-current F 7 E
Unsecured IR LIBOR+0.48 2011 3,627,930 LIBOR+0.48 2011 3,617,235
R T R T
BT 5+0.48 [l 347 8.+0.48
3,627,930 3,617,235
Group Company
RE b NN
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT FET FA T
Analysed into: DT
Bank loans repayable: RERZBRITER:
Within one year —F R 3,547,163 1,876,557 - -
In the second year A 2,329,984 279,076 = =
In the third to fifth years, =FEERFER
inclusive (BiEERMF) 3,670,682 3,637,169 3,627,930 3,617,235
Beyond five years FELE 89,779 1,590,733 = =
9,637,608 7,383,535 3,627,930 3,617,235
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS (Continued)

31.

(a)

(d)

Bank loans amounting to HK$132,531,000
HK$1,628,608,000) were secured by:

(2006:

(i) certain of the Group’s properties under development with
a net book value of approximately HK$368,290,000 (2006:
HK$122,737,000) (note 19); and

(ii) certain of the Group’s completed properties for sale with

a net book value of approximately HK$15,919,000 (2006:

HK$ 6,209,000) (note 25); and

Bank loans included in the disposal groups of

HK$1,710,614,000 were secured by:

(i) the ownership of the Jingdong Expressway. The net book
value of the Jingdong Expressway was approximately
HK$3,139,324,000 (2006: HK$2,913,082,000) (note 15);
and

(ii) land and buildings which have an aggregate net book

value of approximately HK$6,437,000 (2006:

HK$5,370,000) (note 15).

Except for the bank loan equivalent to approximately
HK$3,627,930,000 (2006: HK$3,617,235,000) which is
denominated in United States dollars, all borrowings are in
RMB.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s current
and non-current borrowings approximate to their fair values.

TRADE AND NOTES PAYABLES

An aged analysis of the trade and notes payables as at the balance

sheet date, based on the payment due date, is as follows:

(d)

Y K& 58 /A132,531,0008 T (=&
:1,628,608,000/87C) ' HIA TNEE

=

(i) ANEEREFELA368,290,000/8
T (ZZEZ /N :122,737,000/ 7T)
Z2ETEHRBME (HiE19) : &

AEBREFELA15919,0007%8 7T
(ZZZ/NF 6,209,000/ 7T) 2 & T
EERZEEME (MsE25) &

(i)

MAHEAR ZETERSEA
1,710,614,0007 70 BB A N & E (B

(i) AIRERAKMEE AR EAK
BREFE X A3,139,324,00078 7T (=
TE ;N4 :2,913,082,00087T) (FfsE
15) i &

AEBEKRmFES X4 456,437,000
BRLZITHEEF (ZZEZTNF:
5,370,000/ T) (KIsE15) °

(if)

BT HE R 43,627,930,0008 L (Z
NEE:3,617,235,000/8 7T) 2 $R1TE FIA
ETLAEIN EHREFRHUAREE-

AEBERARRARZ AR IEEBEE 2 &k
HEREEAAERES-

ILENRIRRESRE

REERRNRIPBEFHE ZEBNRRKE

NEEZREDTOT

Group

rEE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER FA T
Within one year —F RN 46,285 121,078
One to two years —FERMENR 2,825 6,642
Two to three years MEE=ZFNRN 2,792 3,069
Over three years =FLE 35,063 47,312
86,965 178,101
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32. DEFERRED TAX

Notes to Financial Statements |

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the

year are as follows:

Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

32. IEFE R I

AEREERBABREEZEHNT:

Group rE
Deferred tax liabilities: BEHIARE:
Fair value  Accelerated
Timing adjustment tax
differences  Revaluation arising from  depreciation
onsales of investment  Revaluation  Revaluation acquisition of on investment
recognition properties of assets  of investment  subsidiaries properties Total
B B iR RE
HER RE ARAEEZ  NERZNE
BRAZKE NEER BEEEf REEf AAERE AR E &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
At 1 January 2007 RZZZTtF—A—A 6,359 96,202 7,707 - 207,649 48,174 366,091
Deferred tax charged/(credited) REERMER T MR
to the income statement during / GEAB&ER) Z
the year (note 10) EEHE (K10 (6,359) 226,795 = = (26,963) 33,183 226,656
Deferred tax charged to equity RERP R ZETERR - - 5,138 1,292 - = 6,430
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) 4 EBHIE A & (FiE36) = = = = 14,920 = 14,920
Deferred tax liabilities included SAEREEKZ
in discontinued operations EREREAEE
(note 11) (BzE11) = - = = (161,158) = (161,158)
Gross deferred R-BBtF
tax liabilities +=ZH=+-H
at 31 December 2007 ZEEHERELE - 322,997 12,845 1,292 34,448 81,357 452,939
Deferred tax assets: R RE A I & FE
Timing Losses available
differences  for offsetting
on sales  against future Revaluation Tax
recognition  taxable profit of investments effect of LAT Others Total
o R
HEH RARERH T RER
BRZEE BRZER REEMR ZHEXE Hitr &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TER TR TER TR TER
At 1 January 2007 RZZEZ+F-A—A 9,410 2,276 1,865 8,951 2,993 25,495
Deferred tax charged REFEST MR
to equity during the year ZEEHRIE - - (1,865) - = (1,865)
Deferred tax credited/(charged) AFEE Ak, (Kak+
to the income statement during  f1F}) Z EE A (HfzE10)
the year (note 10) 5,742 (2,276) - 40,068 (1,813) 41,721
Gross deferred tax assets R-Z2tE+=A=t-H
at 31 December 2007 ZELHEEEAR 15,152 - - 49,019 1,180 65,351
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

Group (Continued)

Bt %5 R & B

b=1113
|_H,

32 REEBLIR ()

EE (F)

Deferred tax liabilities: BRI E:
Fair value
Timing adjustment Accelerated tax
differences  Revaluation of arising from  depreciation on
on sales investment Revaluation acquisition investment
recognition properties of assets  of subsidiaries properties Total
S
HER WERREE RENEZ
BRAZKEE REWXEMR BEEff ZAAERE NEHERE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAT TR TR TR TR TET
At 1 January 2006 RZEZ E-HA—A 12,589 57,541 7,707 11,717 40,563 130,117
Deferred tax charged/(credited) 7% & 7 i &5 & o #1 &
to the income statement /GIAKER) 2
during the year (note 10) EER A (KiE10) (6,230) 38,661 = = 7,611 40,042
Acquisition of subsidiaries WeBEF B 1 A - - = 195,932 = 195,932
Gross deferred tax liabilitess R=BZXE+=HA=+—H
at 31 December 2006 ZEERBAKAE 6,359 96,202 7,707 207,649 48,174 366,091
Deferred tax assets: REHIAE E
Timing Losses available
differences  for offsetting
on sales  against future Revaluation Tax effect
recognition  taxable profit  of investments of LAT Others Total
ARFEH
HER RRERB T B EH
BRAZEE wAZER REEfR ZHBHE Hitr A&
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TER THEL TER TEL TER
At 1 January 2006 RZZEZ F-A—A = - 723 - 326 1,049
Deferred tax credited RERFAERZ
to equity during the year BREBE - - 1,142 - = 1,142
Deferred tax credited RERFAMERZ
to the income statement BREBE
during the year (note 10) (BizE10) 9,410 2,276 = 8,951 2,667 23,304
Gross deferred tax assets R=ZBRE+=A=t-H
at 31 December 2006 ZEEHEEELE 9,410 2,276 1,865 8,951 2,993 25,495
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$547,586,000
(2006: HK$569,179,000) that are available indefinitely for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. And the Group has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
HK$199,211,000 (2006: HK$179,486,000). Accumulated losses
amounting to HK$33,008,000, HK$13,157,000, HK$17,917,000,
HK$16,425,000 and HK$118,704,000 as at 31 December 2007
will expire in 2008,2009,2010,2011 and 2012 respectively.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for years and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

At 31 December 2007, there was no significant unrecognised
deferred tax liability (2006: Nil).

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.

Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

32 REEBLIR ()

REBRBR 2B EE B547,586,0007 7T
(=TT ;X% :569,179,00078 70) © 0] FH IR 85
EEBEZ AT ZRRER G o AN & B R
AR K BE 2 FR RS B 18 5 199,211,000 7T (=
TETNF 179,486,000 L) R _TEELF
+=ZA=+—H%% A33,008,000% 7T °
13,157,000 ¢~ 17,917,000/ 7T~ 16,425,000
770 12 118,704,00058 7T 2 £ 5 BB 15 5 Bl
—EENF ZTTNF FTTF T —
—FER-E——FHH-ARZEBETRE
BEZEZHNBRAR MHRIEEERLAES
F AR S FE SRR R I L% S B RER
EEFIHE E -
N—EBE+E+-A=+—H PEEFMEAKX
ERELEHBEEGB (ZETRNF E) -

%
=

H# ot

RAXNEROBRAME ERBTZE-

33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. ®RA&
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T F& T
Authorised: JETE
5,000,000,000 (2006: 5,000,000,000)  5,000,000,0000% & % M {&0.057% 7T
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 (ZEZTRF:0.0587m) 2 LB
(2006: HK$0.05) each (ZZZ /4% :5,000,000,0004%) 250,000 250,000
Issued and fully paid: BRBITRAR:
3,228,332,090 (2006: 2,821,449,966)  3,228,332,090/ & M E1E0.05/8 JT
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 (ZZZRNF:0.05%8L) 2 EBIR
(2006: HK$0.05) each (ZZEZ/NF:2,821,449,9668%) 161,417 141,073
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

During the year, the movements in share capital were as follows:

(a)

On 10 April 2007, the board of directors of the Company
announced their recommendation of a final dividend and
special dividend for the year ended 31 December 2006 to
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
of the Company on 21 May 2007 with an alternative to the
shareholders to elect to receive the final dividend and special
dividend in cash in lieu of all or part of their scrip dividend
entitlements. Pursuant to the minutes of the board of directors
of the Company, 72,318,124 shares at a price of HK$4.946
per share were placed to shareholders.

Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, the ultimate holding
company of the Company, the Company and a placing agent
entered into a placing and subscription agreement on 24 July
2007, pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to place
200,000,000 shares at a price of HK$6.56 per share to
independent investors. While Shum Yip Holdings Company
Limited agreed to subscribe for, and the Company agreed to
allot and issue to Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited,
200,000,000 shares (being the same number as the shares
placed by the placing agent) at a price of HK$6.56 per share.

The subscription rights attaching to 134,564,000 share options
were exercised at the subscription price ranging from HK$1.088
to HK$4.768 per share, resulting in the issue of 134,564,000
shares of HK$0.05 each for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HK$191,522,458.
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33. &K (&)

ERRAEHNT:

(@)

R-ZZEZELFOA+H ARAEEER
i EEBRUBRRENTN W=t
R A=+ —HRBIARBRE MR
RRBEBE_TTF+_A=+—Hlt
FERRARKR S KRR S - B 5 a] %
2030 & WK BAR B R A R A% B0 AR
BEHRBHUBRK BB - BRIBEARAA
BEECSZ0H 72,318 1248 AN E
f&4.946 8w 2 ERERE TRF-

ARABREER AR FE (£8) ARA
ACAREREEREBER-_ZEZELF+A
Zt+mBEFTRERRERE B BE
RERZRABILIZEEILZZRG6.568 T2
B #& BE & 200,000,0000% AX 15 © /& % (&%
E)BRARRZRE MAQRINRE
MR (@) AR A RIZRETR6.568 T
2 B 1% Bt 8 & %% 17 200,000,0000% % 1
(RHEERERE ZRGEEBHER) -

134,564,00017 8 A% #E B Y SR EEREF 1R B
f%1.088 B T EFAX4.768B T E 2B
171F  E It 31T 134,564,0000% &= f% M E
0.058 L2 MmO RIS 2 BIRS WA
/3191,522,4587 It °



33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements |

33. &K (&)

A summary of the transactions during the year with reference to

SELRARFREETRAZH I FARS
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the above movements in the Company’s issued share capital is as Bt an T
follows:
Number of Share
shares  Issued share premium
in issue capital account Total
2817
B% 3 & B ERTREA RORER 5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FH& T T T
At 1 January 2006 MN-ZZTERE—H—H 2,482,413,966 124,121 1,495,348 1,619,469
Issued of shares BETRMD 300,000,000 15,000 858,000 873,000
Capital redemption %8 @ Ak (5,864,000) (293) = (293)
Share option exercised 17 1% B AR 44,900,000 2,245 63,476 65,721
Share issue expenses % {7 277 2 - - (19,974) (19,974)
At 31 December 2006 RZZEE N
and 1 January 2007 +ZA=+—8k
—ZEZT+F—HF—H 2,821,449,966 141,073 2,396,850 2,537,923
Dividends in the form of RO BERERZ
shares (a) f% B (a) 72,318,124 3,616 354,069 357,685
Issue of shares (b) AT AD (b) 200,000,000 10,000 1,302,001 1,312,001
Share options exercised (c)  1T{E AR (c) 134,564,000 6,728 222,708 229,436
3,228,332,090 161,417 4,275,628 4,437,045
Share issue expenses &5 21T R - - (27,955) (27,955)
At 31 December 2007 R=ZZZLHF
+=A=+-—8 3,228,332,090 161,417 4,247,673 4,409,090
Share options BB IR 1

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options

issued under the scheme are included in note 34 to the financial

statements.

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

ARRBRETERREZAECHTZE
PR BEH N M AN E34 -

161



162

Notes to Financial Statements |

Bt %5 R Ak Y &

31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include any employee or director
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
director) of any member of the Group, or any employee, partner or
director of any business consultant, joint venture, financial adviser
and legal adviser of any member of the Group, as absolutely
determined by the board of directors. The Scheme became effective
on 5 June 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, shall
be valid and effective for a period of 10 years from that date, after
which period no further options will be issued but in all other
respects the provisions of the Scheme shall remain in full force
and effect. The remaining life of the Scheme as at 31 December
2007 was four and a half years.

The maximum number of ordinary shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at
the date of approval of the Scheme unless the Company obtains a
fresh approval from its shareholders. Options lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Scheme will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating such 10% limit. Notwithstanding the above, the
maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. The 10%
limit was refreshed by an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 21 May 2007,
which enabled the grant of further options to subscribe for up to
250,271,396 shares, representing 10% of the shares in issue as at
21 May 2007. As at the date of this report, the total number of
shares available for issue under the Scheme was 171,491,396
(including options for 71,920,000 shares that have been granted
but not yet lapsed or exercised) which represented 5.31% of the
issued share capital of the Company at 31 December 2007.

The maximum entitlement of each participant under the Scheme
that is the total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period, shall
not exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 4. BRESTE (£)

The period under which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the board of directors at their absolute discretion
and notified by the directors to each grantee as being the period
during which an option may be exercised, and shall expire no
later than the 10th anniversary of the date upon which the option
is granted and accepted in accordance with the Scheme. Unless
otherwise determined by the board and specified in the offer letter
at the time of offer, there is no minimum period for which an
option must be held before the option can be exercised.

An option is open for acceptance for a period of 28 days from the
date of offer. The amount payable on acceptance of an option is
HK$1. The full amount of exercise price for the subscription for
shares has to be paid upon the exercise of an option.

The exercise price shall be a price determined by the board of
directors and notified to a participant and shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of offer of grant, which must be a business day, (ii) a price
being the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotation sheets
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of offer
of the grant, and (iii) the nominal value of a share in the Company.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
during the year:

BRECATENRBESSE2RRTE L H
EXRANSARAN MEBTEARAREZ
FPEINBRER D RERANE B ESm10E
FERREM - BRIETERERERLER
RERR TR ER BAETEBRER
TRUBFHABRIENSEHR-

BRETREREEARH - T NARAERR
B RMBRER A NFRIAETT  RERD
ZITEEANTRBRER 2B

TEEHEESEENBN2RE -TEEAR
ELRBUT2&BE-ORNRHER (BER
BERA)EEEBARIMERAREZARE
RFE 2 BB (DR BEE L E HATS
AEXAETEMARIMERAAERAR
ERAE 2RO BTEFHE: Rii)AA A
Bfn 2 E1E -

UTARFARBZTEMHARITEZER
1

2007 2006

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options exercise price of options

hn & 33 InFE 5
TEE BRE®E TEE BhEXRE

HK$ HK$

i BT
At 1 January n—H—H 1.3144 180,000,000 1.1720 106,600,000
Granted during the year RERE D 4.4562 78,780,000 1.3983 122,300,000
Exercised during the year RERTE 1.4257 (134,564,000) 1.2131  (44,900,000)
Lapsed during the year NG A S 1.2650 (2,000,000) 1.2208 (4,000,000)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—~H 3.2179 122,216,000 1.3144 180,000,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise for share
options exercised during the year was HK$5.343 per share (2006:
HK$2.534 per share).

RERNTTE 2 BRERTTE B 8 2 g £ 5
KEAEEBRSIMBETL(ZZTEZENF:E
A%2.534%7T) °
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at that balance sheet date are as follows:

34. B RERT

g (#)

REEBRHRITE CBREZITEERITE
BT

2007

Number of options

Exercise price*

2007

Exercise period

BREHE 1TREE* TR

HK$ per share

BRERX
10,989,000 1.0880 18-5-2005 to 17-5-2010
ZRFAA+NBE=Z2-SFHA+tH
35,907,000 1.3300 9-3-2006 to 8-3-2011
—EEARNF=-ANBE=2——5=ZANH
3,400,000 2.1650 29-5-2006 to 28-5-2011
ARERAZTARBE=ZE——FHA=+N\H
13,340,000 3.5400 9-3-2007 to 8-3-2012
“EERELF=-ANBE=ZE—=5=ZANH
58,580,000 4.7680 4-7-2007 to 3-7-2012
22t +tANBE-2-——_FftA=H

122,216,000

2006

Number of options

Exercise price*

2006

Exercise period

B EHE 1T{EE* 1718 B

HK$ per share

BT
6,000,000 1.2650 27-6-2002 to 26-6-2007
—EEFANAZTEtREZTETELF AT H
13,000,000 1.2650 3-7-2002 to 2-7-2007
—EE_FtHA=HE-_ZTTLFELHAZ-H
18,200,000 1.2650 5-7-2002 to 4-7-2007
—EE S+ ARHAE_ZEELFLAWA
36,100,000 1.0880 18-5-2005 to 17-5-2010
—EERFAATNHE_FT-EFAA+LH
96,700,000 1.3300 9-3-2006 to 8-3-2011
—EERF=-ANHE=_Z—F=A\H
10,000,000 2.1650 29-5-2006 to 28-5-2011
—EERFRAAZTNABE=ZE——FHA=-+/\H

180,000,000
*  The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in case of * BRETEEARBEKRSARETHARRRK

rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s share

capital.

During the period from 1 January 2007 and up to the date of this
report, (i) the Company has granted options to subscribe for
78,780,000 shares; (ii) the options to subscribe for 144,183,000
shares have been exercised; and (iii) options to subscribe for
2,000,000 shares have lapsed. As at the date of this report, options (%)
carrying rights to subscribe for 112,597,000 shares remain

outstanding and yet to be exercised.

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR

RZEMBUESELFHE-

R-ZEZLF—F—BEAFETIEBHBHIE
R (i)$ﬁ§J E%&tﬂwﬁ%m 780,000 4% A%
15 2 BER%HE : (i) P R B8 144,183,000/% A% 13
H%Hﬂ%éez%mi X (iii)B] 72 8% 2,000,0000% A%
E/L,\HXF&E;QE%K E$#&:‘:%J§’¥Egﬂ —,[wu
§8112,597,0008% f& 10 = FE AR M (D R JETT & o
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) 34. B SR (&
The fair value of the share options granted during the year was FAMXBIREZ XA ERS5769,3748 T
HK$55,769,374 (HK$0.7079 each) (2006: HK$45,997,954, (88%0.7079%8 ) (=TT /XF 45,997,954
HK$0.3761 each) of which the Group recognised a share option BT 8037618 T)  HEf KEEREE
expense of HK$32,021,188 (2006: HK$45,997,954) during the year TR FT AT —RALEFEE®HRE
ended 31 December 2007. IR #E R 32,021,188 L (Z 2T X F !

45,997,954 7T ) ©

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the FRARHUNBRARX N2 BREDLE RER
year was estimated as at the date of grant, using the Black-Scholes EEHBRAN R —FRAEA G EFER
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon which BB 2 R R TR B ZER
the options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to ZAHEIR

the model used:

9 March 2007* 4 July 2007*
Sii5 —ERLE
=ZAhB: tAMWmAB:
Dividend yield (%) & B % (%) 8 8 8 8 8 8
Expected volatility (%) TR E (%) 57.71 57.71 57.71 35.40 35.40 35.40
Risk-free interest rate (%) BRI (%) 3.930 3.960 3.990 4.220 4.348 4423
Expected life of option (year) RHEREFS (F) 1 2 3 1 2 3
Exercise price (HK$) IR E (Br) 3.540 3.540 3.540 4.768 4.768 4.768
Stock price on date of grant (HK$) i BHZRE (Bx) 3.540 3.540 3.540 4.760 4.760 4.760
*  Options will be exercisable in the following manner: * BRETIETEI A TR
Maximum proportion of option
exercisable including proportion
of option previously exercised Exercisable period
T AT L B IR R & 7S5 L Bl
(BEEAMBTEBRELSH) A 4T £ 43 B
For the batch granted at 9 March 2007
HR-_ZEZLF=ANBREZHEH
1/3 1st year from the date of grant of option
ERNBRERL;E—F
2/3 2nd year from the date of grant of option
ERHBRERSSE—F
3/3 3rd year from the date of grant of option

BRNBRERGE=F

For the batch granted at 4 July 2007
HR-_ZETLF L ANBRLEZHS

1/3 1st year from the date of grant of option
BERHBRERSSE —F

2/3 2nd year from the date of grant of option
ERHBRERSSE —F

3/3 3rd year to 5th year from the grant date

ERNBRELFE=EFOF
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34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The expected life of the options is based on the historical data
over the past year and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into the
measurement of fair value.

35. RESERVES
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 68 to 69 of the
financial statements.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group’s
subsidiaries and associates in Mainland China has been
transferred to the statutory reserve which is restricted as to
use.

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR

34. B RERT & ()

35.

BRERBERHRBE —FHREAE EXR
DAHERTEEA ZER -RHR P REBE
KB RRB A AERERNRRKR BERLY
EEBRER

502 o B30 4 3 A B 0 B L AR
B

B
(@) &~&EE

AEEAFEREBEFEZRESBERLAE
BH NP EREFESHELIRLR
BAEEHRANZT-

BIRRING &2 2 BBER KRR A
SERPEIAREZ B AR REERTZ
Houf @B EXEHME WREELA
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31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

35. 1% (&)

(b) Company (b) &Z2AH
Share Capital
premium redemption  Share option
account reserve reserve Retained profits Total
R [ BRE
B & BERE wmE REER ot
Notes HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & TR THET TR THET TR
At 1 January 2006 R-ZEZE F—A—-H 1,495,348 - 16,800 495,866 2,008,014
Issue of shares BIRMH 33 858,000 = = = 858,000
Share issue expenses B3 21T X 33 (19,974) = = - (19,974)
Share options exercised TiEE R E 33 63,476 - (11,254) = 52,222
Capital redemption B R A 33 - 293 - (11,138) (10,845)
Profit for the year AEE i 7l - - = 767,325 767,325
Interim 2006 dividend ZEERERARE 13 = - - (74,905) (74,905)
Adjustment to prior year's FEERBRE
final dividend LB 13 - - - (2,534) (2,534)
Proposed 2006 dividends “EEREFERRES 13 - - - (564,008) (564,008)
Equity-settled share option MR X 2
expenses BRERS 34 = = 45,998 = 45,998
At 31 December 2006 RZZEZE F+=A=1+—-H 2,396,850 293 51,544 610,606 3,059,293
Dividend in the form of DR BERAR
new share ZIRE 33 354,069 - - - 354,069
Issue of shares BIRH 33 1,302,001 - - - 1,302,001
Share issue expenses W p 2 1TH X 33 (27,955) = - = (27,955)
Share options exercised IEERE 33 222,708 = (37,913) - 184,795
Share options forfeited BAMz BRE - - (340) 340 -
Profit for the year REE 5 F - - - 364,334 364,334
Interim 2007 dividend “ERLERARE 13 - - - (238,537) (238,537)
Adjustment to prior year’s FEERBRE
final dividend ZHE 13 - - - (28,360) (28,360)
Proposed final 2007 dividend ~#tk —Z T+ FE R HR S 13 - - - (677,950) (677,950)
Equity-settled share option IBRA X 2
expenses AR 34 - - 32,021 = 32,021
At 31 December 2007 R-EE+tF+-A=t+—H 4,247,673 293 45,312 30,433 4,323,711

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount
will be transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised.

BEREFRGERBECROE R RITE 2 BRE
ARE FEE - FENM BRI E2.4AB
MEXNRBZEFARR-ZESRHNBRARE
BRETEREREROEER.
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36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a)

On 24 January 2007, the Group acquired a 100% interest in
Shenzhen Yabao Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Yabao”),
a wholly foreign-owned enterprise established under the laws
of the PRC with limited liability, from an independent third
party. Yabao is principally engaged in property development
and management. The purchase consideration for the
acquisition was in the form of cash with HK$550,000,000
fully paid up to 28 February 2007.

The carrying amounts of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of Yabao as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

36. W EE i /B 2 7]
() RZZEZE+E— A -+HmA AE@EH—

ERNE=FRERBRERNERES
RAE ([HE] —HREFRBEEZKL
ZINEBEAR AR 100%HEx - JHEE =
EREMEAZRERE - WEREBUES
FRET IER_ZEZTLE-_A -+
B Z Bl B & X 4 550,000,0007% T °

HERRERBH A H#NEERBEZE
HEWDT:

Carrying amount

AR H &

HK$’000

TET

Properties under development BRAPYE 550,000
Satisfied by cash AR & XA 550,000

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in

WE-—RMBRRZRERRSEFEY R

respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows: SEE DTS
2007
HK$’000
THET
Cash consideration HERE (550,000)
Cash and bank balances acquired T IR & RIRIT 417 -

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents KE—XNEAR 2 HERE &

in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary ReEBY L FHE (550,000)

On 29 November 2007, the Group acquired a 80% interest in
Chaohu Chengyi Real Estate Investment And Management Co.,
Ltd. (“Chaohu”) from an independent third party. Chaohu is
engaged in the construction, development and management
of a resort in Anhui Province, Mainland China. The purchase
consideration for the acquisition was in the form of cash with
HK$32,064,000 paid in the current year and the remaining
HK$62,492,000 to be paid in 2008.

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR

(b)

R-ZET+F+—A -+ LB AEEH
—BBUE=FWBEE BRI EREE
BARAR ([EH])80%#am - EMHKE
FE FAEMEEPRAEZHE —EE
BE - WEREUREFRET ERAFE
€ 3 1732,064,0007% T & #:62,492,000
BILTER _ZEZENELfF-



36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b) The carrying amounts of the identifiable assets and liabilities
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36. WEEKMIB AR (&)

of Chaohu as at the date of acquisition were as follows. EENT:

(b)) EHRKERARZABNEERABZRK

Carrying amount

R H B
HK$’000
FHT
Property, plant and equipment E =SS L 692
Properties under development BERPYE 86,326
Cash and bank balances He RBTER 1,399
Prepayments and other receivables FE A 3R K H Ath 8 W R IE 46,729
Accruals and other payables FEET B A I B JE < R IR (17,933)
Deferred tax liability FEFIAE FE (10,573)
Minority interests DB RE = (12,084)
94,556
Satisfied by cash AR & S A+ 32,064
Satisfied by other payables VA B th J& < 518 2 A 62,492
94,556
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in WE—RMNBRAAZESRREEEYR L
respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows: SEREANWT
2007
HK$’000
THET
Cash consideration BHeRE (32,064)
Cash and bank balances acquired FriiE iR & RR1T 417 1,399
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents KE—XNEAR 2 HERE &
in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary ReEBYn L FHE (30,665)
On 27 March 2007, the Group acquired a 100% interest in (00 RZZEZE+HF=RA=-t+tH XEERM

Huizhou Zhongkai Chuangye Square Development Co., Ltd.
(“Zhongkai Chuangye Square”) from two independent third
parties. Zhongkai Chuangye Square is engaged in property
development and management. The purchase consideration for
the acquisition was in the form of cash with HK$101,130,000
fully paid up to 31 December 2007.

101,130,000 JT °

EBUE=TWBEMNPEAEESER
BROE ([PIZEIEES]) 100%%E 2
PIEAXESNENERERERE B
RENRETAET XER-F
B FF+ A=+ —HZA BRI
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36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(c)

The carrying amount of the identifiable assets and liabilities of

36. WEEKMIB AR (&)

(c) ERIERESNUWE R B Z A B EE R

Zhongkai Chuangye Square as at the date of acquisition were BEZEEERT:
as follows:

Carrying amount
R E B
HK$’000
THET
Properties under development BERPYE 106,152
Accruals and other payables FE T B A I & 5 R IR (675)
Deferred tax liability BRIEMIAR & (4,347)
101,130
Satisfied by cash AR & S A+ 101,130

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows:

UE-—FZMBRARAZRAERBAESEEYRH
RN

2007

HK$’000

THET

Cash consideration BHeRE (101,130)

Cash and bank balances acquired FritiE iR & RIR1T 417 -
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents KE—XNEAG 2 HERE &

in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary ReEB/YR L FHE (101,130)

On 15 November 2007, the Group acquired a 100% interest
in Dongguan Gaofa Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan Gaofa”)
from Shenzhen Gaofa Investment Holding Co., Ltd. (“Gaofa”),
an associate of the Group, which was later disposed of in
December 2007. Dongguan Gaofa is engaged in property
development and management. Further details of the
transaction are included in note 41(a) (iii) to the financial
statements. The purchase consideration for the acquisition was
in the form of cash with HK$10,521,000 fully paid up to 31
December 2007.

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR

d R=FEZTt&+—A+aA ~A&EEEF
N EBEEEERERAR ([EEFE] &
SEBMENR HER_TTLF+ =8
WHE) WBR=maEFHERRA A
(TR=5%])100% kR Rxa B RS
MEREREBE - X HHE—FSFBHRY
HEIRERMITE41(a) (i) o WEREUREH
NET ER_ETLtF+_A=1+—H
Z BB B 110,521,000 JT ©
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36. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 36. WEEMI B AR (&)
(d) The carrying amount of the identifiable assets and liabilities of d) RESERKERR ABMNEERAR
Dongguan Gaofa as at the date of acquisition were as follows: ZEREENT:
Carrying amount
R H &
HK$’000
FHET
Properties under development BERPYE 442,565
Cash and bank balances BE RIRITETT 10,126
Trade receivables & 45 AR R 73
Prepayments and other receivables & A 3R K H Ath & W R IR 465
Accruals and other payables FE 5T F3 B E & A ROR (442,708)
10,521
Satisfied by cash AR € 2 A 10,521
An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in WE—RMNBRAAZESRREEEYR L
respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows: SEREANWT
2007
HK$’000
THET
Cash consideration BHeRE (10,521)
Cash and bank balances acquired FriiE iR & RR1T 417 10,126
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents KE—XNEAGR 2 HERE &
in respect of the acquisition of a subsidiary ReLZEYRHFE (395)
From the date of acquisition, the results of the above new B Y hE B ER AR - sl e B B A B 2 B AR
subsidiaries have had no significant impact on the Group’s SEEZE_TELFT_A=T—HILFE
consolidated turnover or net profit for the year ended 31 B ERBRAN L BEBEANZE -

December 2007.
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37. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY 37. &M B 2~ F
On 26 September 2007, the Group entered into a Sale and Purchase RZBELFENAZ+RB AEEFZ—H
Agreement to sell its entire 100% interests in Yabao to an B E iz g A R%830,000,0007T (491E%
independent third party incorporated in Mainland China, for the 852,000,000 L) x REBHEHARNEE 2
consideration of RMB830,000,000 (equivalent to approximately 2 E0100% s T — B B KRB MK 2
HK$852,000,000). BUE=T7°
2007 2006
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 TET THET
Net assets disposed of: HEFEE:!
Interest in an associate — Mawan Pt & A A 152 2 i am = 912,976
Properties under development BERPYE 550,000 -
Accruals and other payables FE T B F3 Bt & A RO - (147)
Minority interests DEIRRE = - (402,719)
550,000 510,110
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary-Newton it} & fff & 2 7] Newton
Industrial Limited Industrial Limited Z Y %5 11 = 322,986
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary — Yabao &M B A A HE 2 W 5 287,050 =
837,050 833,096
Satisfied by: SR AR:
Cash R& 837,050 499,858
Other receivables H b & U 5K IE = 333,238
837,050 833,096
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in HEMBRARZREERASEBYWRAFE
respect of the disposal of subsidiaries is as follows: Z AT
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR FHET
Cash consideration RERE 837,050 499,858
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents HtHE —RWE A A2
in respect of the disposal of ReRBEEEY
a subsidiary mAFE R 837,050 499,858
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38. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

()

(i)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 20 to the
financial statements) under operating lease arrangements, with
leases negotiated for terms ranging from two to eighteen years.
The terms of the leases generally also require the tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions.

At 31 December 2007, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

38. REHANZHE

0]

ERHBEE

RELEHROTE AREHELBETERE
W (MR MEE20) - HEHETERMF
ETNFEAFZ-HOGERT—REREP
EBNRIFERRERFEETIHREM
BHRERARES-

RIBELF+_A=+—HB AKER
AT BB E i 2 AT BUB R S A R 2K
ZERIEWBEHEFENAT

Group

rEE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#& T F& T
Within one year —F RN 251,604 269,514
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E-—FEZFHF (BEEEMF) 440,943 436,385
After five years HBE A F 293,281 294,879
985,828 1,000,778

As lessee

The Group leases certain of its properties under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for the properties are negotiated for terms
ranging from three to nineteen years.

At 31 December 2007, the Group and the Company had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

(i) ERBEF

AEERBEEEHERHBAASTYE
MERREAER=FE+NLF S

R-BELF+-A=+—0 FEER
AR AR T HRE RS 2 AT E S
WERRZ B BB EEETEDT

Group Company
EME ZNA
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT THET FTERT THET
Within one year —F R 3,407 6,933 614 1,825
In the second to fifth years, E-_FEZEAF
inclusive (BHEEREME) 5,655 16,898 = 608
After five years R A F = 27,936 = -
9,062 51,767 614 2,433
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39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 39. BA IR
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note B b SCF FE38 (i) il 2 48 & A0 ) AAE S P A
38(ii) above, the Group and the Company had the following EH AEERRNAB ZEEWT:

commitments at the balance sheet date:

Group Company
rEH Z VN
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET THET TET FHT
Commitments in respect of RS £ 3 %
acquisition of land and BF AR
buildings, and development ERPYE
costs attributable to properties R KR
under development LA
Contracted, but not provided for: B 5T %7 &) R # #5 : 2,106,952 268,075 = -
In addition, the Group’s and the Company’s share of the associate’s B it & RAGERIEAIN REBE R AR AR
own capital commitment at the balance sheet date, which is not HERAREBERAAF ZERAENAT:
included above, was as follows:
Group Company
rEE PN
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHEIT THET FHET
Contracted, but not provided for: B 5] 411 & R 8 4 - 104,928 8,698 - -

174 FYERER DT 2007F F 3k



Notes to Financial Statements

31 December 2007 —E =&

| B 3% ¥R R MY A

tF+=-A=+—~8

40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. L REE
At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided for in REER UBBRRTERE A BEN
the financial statements were as follows: N
Group Company
AEH KA F
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT FET T T
(i) Guarantees for credit (i) REEFEM
facilities granted to: fEH 2 #E 4R
Subsidiaries {OpEE NS 924,210 299,010
Associates* RN T 6,877 = =
A third party ** —BE=* 19,934 = -
26,811 924,210 299,010

*k

(i)

The guarantee granted to an associate was discharged on 20 November

2007.

The guarantee granted to a third party was discharged on 6 February 2007.

At 31 December 2007, the Group has given guarantees to a
maximum extent of approximately HK$1,040,309,000 (2006:
HK$678,246,000) to banks for housing loans extended by the
banks to the purchasers of the Group’s properties.

Pursuant to the terms of the guarantees, if there is default of
the mortgage payments by these purchasers, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage loans
together with any accrued interest and penalty owed by the
defaulted purchasers to banks. The Group is then entitled to
take over the legal title of the related properties. The Group’s
guarantee period commences from the date of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ends after the buyer obtained the
individual property ownership certificate or up to a maximum
of two years after the full repayment of mortgaged loan by the
purchasers of the Group’s properties.

The directors consider that in case of default in payments, the
net realisable value of the related properties can cover the
repayment of the outstanding mortgage loans together with
any accrued interest and penalty and therefore no provision
has been made in connection with the guarantees.

®k

(i)

BTHERANERER -_ZZLF+—A -+
B BRRR

BTE=ZFTNERER-_ZEZLF-ANB#ER-

R=-FZT+F+—_A=+—H A&EHE5
RITHRTAERMEER ZERER AR
TR S M 41,040,309,000/8 T (=&
T N4 678,246,000 7T) HIFE(R o

RIBERIGET W% FEERIERIZBHR

$%@ﬁffﬂa?&ﬂﬁﬂ’ﬂﬂ%%m%&ﬁﬂ
RFRIA 2 B ZR B IRITH A REH B R
SR -AEEBRURKBEBAVENS X
PER - AEENERIGRHAMIZE
EREARBBEERZDESENMERE
REINAEENEERI N 28RIBE

RERZMER -
BERA WERZRIE BENEHTE

FERAZNHAREERBES LMSZEH
REFBRER R B LS ERE -
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Continued)

(iii) Pending litigation

A statement of claim dated 27 August 2002 was issued by
Fancheng Property Development Co., Limited (the “Plaintiff”)
as the plaintiff against Shum Yip Group (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(“Shum Yip Shenzhen” renamed as Shum Yip Southern Land
(Holdings) Co., Ltd in the year of 2007), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company as the first defendant and Yaoheng
Development Co., Ltd. as the second defendant in a civil claim
at the court in the PRC.

The Plaintiff claimed against Shum Yip Shenzhen for, inter
alia, damages suffered by the Plaintiff as a result of the breach
by Shum Yip Shenzhen of the terms of a cooperation agreement
entered into between the Plaintiff and Shum Yip Shenzhen
dated 8 July 1991, which include (i) Shum Yip Shenzhen’s
deliberate register of the properties named Shenfa Garden under
the name of Shum Yip Shenzhen and its refusal to give the
properties to the Plaintiff and (ii) Shum Yip Shenzhen’s
appropriation of the Plaintiff’s sales proceeds to compensate
the individual owners and the construction party of Shenfa
Garden while keeping the income in relation to certain car
parks and the kindergarten situated within the area of Shenfa
Garden. The Plaintiff claimed a total compensation of
approximately RMB170,000,000 against Shum Yip Shenzhen.
Shum Yip Shenzhen lodged a defence and a counter- claim for
compensation of RMB1.3 million against the Plaintiff on 22
October 2002. This case was heard in court on 26 March
2003 and 5 November 2004, the arbitration process is
complicated and time-consuming.

On 4 January 2008, the Plaintiff and Shum Yip Shenzhen
entered into an Amicable Settlement Agreement, pursuant to
which the Plaintiff agreed to partially waive the claim
mentioned above. However, the remaining claim of
HK$40,000,000 was still subject to final judgement of the
court.

As advised by Hong Kong lawyers, pursuant to a deed (the
“Deed”) entered into on 12 February 1997 by Shum Yip
Holdings as covenantor in favour of the Company as
covenantee in connection with the listing of the Company, the
Company could be able to claim indemnity from Shum Yip
Holdings if the Plaintiff and/or the applicant is successful in
its claim against Shum Yip Shenzhen on the grounds that Shum
Yip Shenzhen had materially breached the cooperation
agreement, and the circumstances which gave rise to the above
litigation were already in existence at the time of execution of
the Deed.
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS N.EABETRS
(a) The Group had the following material transactions with the (@) FR AEEETIBEBTETATER

following related parties during the year: R
Group
AEE
2007 2006
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5E THET THET
Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited, &K A RFRE ()
the ultimate holding company: BRAA:
Rental expenses paid ENESRAX (i) 2,237 2,214
Sale of properties HEw % (ii) 43,916 -
Purchase of a piece of land Wi — 48 L 3 (ii) 43,916 -
Road King, an associate of the Group: 7 &= B Bt & /A 7] B& 5 -
Increase in interest in an associate P75 — KBt & 2 A) 2 #E 2 1 0 = 219,200
Shenzhen Gaofa Investment AT = IR EER
Holding Co., Ltd BR A A
An associated of the Group e EN: RN
Acquisition of a subsidiary L B M1 88 A & (iii) 10,521 -
Notes: B 5 -

(i)

(iii)

The rentals were determined by the directors with reference to the

market prices of similar transactions.

On 13 September 2007, Terra entered into a contract for the acquisition
of the land use rights of a plot of undeveloped land for industrial
purposes located at Terra Four Small Area of Terra Industrial Area,
Shenzhen, Mainland China from Shum Yip Holding Company Limited
(“Shum Yip Holding”) at a consideration of RMB42,226,809 (equivalent
to approximately HK$43,916,000). The consideration was settled by
way of delivery to Shum Yip Holding of four units (the “Units”) of
commercial buildings with a total gross floor area of 4,314.78 square
metres. The difference between the total price for the Units and the
consideration (being RMB19, equivalent to approximately HK$20) was
paid by Shum Yip Holding to Terra by way of cash.

During the year, the Group acquired a subsidiary, Dongguan Gaofa,
from Shenzhen Gaofa, an associate of the Group, at the consideration
of HK$10,521,000, based on the valuation of the total assets and
liabilities performed by an independent valuer. Further details of the

transaction are included in note 36(d) to the financial statements.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

HeKEFL2EERHZRABEXSHEREE

RZFZLFNA+=B FARTLEL N
KEAR42,226,8097T (KB ER
43,916,000/ 7T) WA ZE (5E) AR A A
(MFREEE]) URFRRITRATEE SR
SAPN/NE —SRRBAEE LR B T3 At o (B
DEBRNAEEENERBEFEMN (8
BBEEERA314.78F FK) EE BB
BEAE (ARK19T HERLD205T) &
EZEHREZERUBRSMRAZ o

RER ARARBREBEBEEMELNBEE
KRB &2 hE LARE10,521,00078 7T MR
Yoz (REB —EH A A7) KE— K
BAA (RER®) ZRXH2E—FFER
B 7 ¥ &5 i sk 36(d)

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007



178

Notes to Financial Statements |

Bt %5 R Ak Y &

31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

On 8 December 2006, the Company entered into a sales and
purchase contract to sell its entire 26.76% interest in Shenzhen
SEG, an associate of the Group established in the Mainland
China, to Shum Yip Holdings Company Limited for a
consideration of RMB71,200,000 (HK$70,965,000). The
consideration is determined and agreed by both parties by
reference to a valuation report prepared by Vigers International
Property Consultants (“Vigers”), an independent valuation firm.
The transaction was completed in the year of 2007. Further
details of the transaction are included in note 11 to the
financial statement.

On 3 December 2007, the Company entered into a letter of
intent to dispose the entire 80% interests of Shum Yip
Shumkang and the shareholder’s loan owing by Shum Yip
Shumkang to the Company to Shum Yip Holding at a
preliminary proposed total consideration between
RMB300,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$315,000,000) and RMB600,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$630,000,000). Further details of the
transaction are included in note 11 to the financial statement.

On 18 December 2007, the Group entered into a sales and
purchase agreement for the disposal of its subsidiary, Shumyip
Transportation to Shum Yip Holding at a consideration of
RMB60,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$63,000,000),
subject to the adjustment as provided in the sales and purchase
agreement. Further details of the transaction are included in
note 11 to the financial statement.

On 5 March 2008, the Group entered into a sales and purchase
agreement to dispose of its remaining 51% interests in Huayin
Traffic, to Shenzhen Shum Yip Investment Development
Company Limited, a related company with common directors,
for a consideration of RMB609,430,600 (equivalent to
approximately HK$652,090,742). Further details of the
transaction are included in note 11 to the financial statement.
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) NBHAERS (&)
() Outstanding balances with related parties: (H EHEEEER 2 REBEH:
(i) Details of the Group’s amounts due from minority () ANEBEREE B RBWDBURRRIAF
shareholders as at the balance sheet date are included in BEA M RKR M E23 o

note 23 to the financial statements.

(i) Details of the Group’s loans to/from its associates as at (i) REEBAREEFER FEYEHE AR
the balance sheet date are included in note 22 to the ERF BN BIRRMTE22

financial statements.

(g) Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: (@ AEEFZEEBASZME:
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHT
Short term employee benefits (note 8) %2 BA{E S & #) (F{7E8) 9,917 7,649
Post-employment benefits (note 8) R K4&F (MI7E8) 818 376
Share-based payments (note 8) P 0 sz (5 5K 38 (B 5E8) 9,662 32,073
Total compensation paid TEERBAER

to key management personnel B 8 58 20,397 40,098

Further details of directors’” emoluments are included in note EEMF BN B mKMEES -

8 to the financial statements.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 2. ZEE#NzEMIA
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REER REERRMNIZERMTAZREE
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows: N
2007 —EEtHF
Group
rEEH
Financial assets
at fair value Available-
through profit for-sale
or loss- Loans and financial
Financial assets TREE held for trading  receivables assets Total
ARETEN
SEMEE - EXEk #AHEEZ
BEEE FE Wt BR 3K TREE # st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET THET
Loans to associates BTHERRIZER
(note 22) (Mf7E22) = 471,590 471,590
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE - - 28,987 28,987
Trade receivables JE U BR SR = 305,941 305,941
Financial assets included FFARSE REA
in deposits and JE WK IE 2
other receivables TREE = 285,847 285,847
Amounts due from JE U > ERR R
minority shareholders I8 - 82,612 82,612
Financial assets at fair value BBREREANE
through profit or loss AAENEREE 602,990 - 602,990
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEED = 4,689,828 4,689,828
602,990 5,835,818 28,987 6,467,795
Group
AEH
Financial liabilities
at fair value
through Financial
profit or loss- liabilities at
Financial liabilities cHas held for trading amortised cost Total
AREFTEN
SRBE - UEBHEKAKTE
BEEE WEmE & st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TE T TER FHET
Loans from associates BENRGETZER - 9,330 9,330
(note 22) (FMf&E22)
Trade and notes payables JE A R R I JE N R 4R - 86,965 86,965
Financial liabilities included in STAEMERFKIBEZ
other payables TRIBE - 952,997 952,997
Derivative financial instruments PTEeR T A 6,275 = 6,275
Interest-bearing bank and FTEERIT R
other borrowings HEfEE = 9,637,608 9,637,608
6,275 10,686,900 10,693,175

RIZERBR AT 20074 F 3%
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The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial

Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

NREBEEESBNI2E®MIA ()

REER REBERF 2R TR ZREE

instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows (Continued): R (&)
2006 —EEAREF
Group
RE
Financial assets
at fair value Available-
through profit for-sale
or loss- Loans and financial
Financial assets CRIEE held for trading  receivables assets Total
BBERE
ARETTER
SREE— Bk A#HEEZ
HEEE JE U BR 3R TRLEE Bst
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F3& T T3t FE T F& T
Loans to associates LTHENTZER
(note 22) (FysE22) = 30,164 = 30,164
Available-for-sale investments AHEERE - = 410,852 410,852
Trade receivables JE U5 B 3K = 159,932 = 159,932
Financial assets included FFAES REAM
in deposits and FE W R IE 2
other receivables EREE = 601,606 = 601,606
Amounts due from minority JE U > B 3R
shareholders HIE = 48,613 = 48,613
Financial assets at fair value FEREREAALE
through profit or loss STENEREE 307,785 - - 307,785
Cash and cash equivalents ReERBEEEYD = 4,211,668 = 4,211,668
307,785 5,051,983 410,852 5,770,620
Group
NEE
Financial liabilities
at fair value
through Financial
profit or loss- liabilities at
Financial liabilities TRas held for trading  amortised cost Total
ERBRIE
DNRAEFEN
SRBE - NEHERKAE
BIEEE e AaE FE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT T T
Loans from associates BEARGBTZER = 4,890 4,890
(note 22) (Pff5E22)
Trade and bills payables JE 5% B 3 K2 B A R AR - 178,101 178,101
Financial liabilities included AT AEMEMSREZ
in other payables SEAE = 1,753,441 1,753,441
Interest-bearing bank loans T EIRITE R - 7,383,535 7,383,535
- 9,319,967 9,319,967
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued) 42. BREBEEBA €M IE (&)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial REER REBHEBNI 2SR ITAZREE
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows (Continued): W (&) :
Company
PN
2007 2006
Financial Financial
assets assets
at fair value at fair value
through Available- through Available-
profit or for-sale profit or for-sale
loss - held  Loansand financial loss - held  Loansand financial
Financial assets SREE for trading  receivables assets Total ~ for trading receivables assets Total
RARE BRARE
sHEM AHEM
EtHEE- Rk THHE TREE- BEFR  AHHE

BEEE EUHE SRBEE a3t KfERE EUFE  SREE At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TR TR TER TR TET TEL TET TEL

Due from subsidiaries FAMBARER

included in interests FE M Kt B A B SR

in subsidiaries (FiEE21)

(note 21) - 1,207,705 - 1,207,705 - 1,210,735 - 1,210,735
Loans to associates RTBERRLER

(note 22) (BzE22) - 382,243 - 382,243 - - - -
Available-for-sale investments ~ AJftH &K E - = 1,720 1,720 = - 362,693 362,693
Financial assets at fair value ~ BEBEREALE

through profit or loss TEMEREAE 91,485 = = 91,485 302,828 = - 302,828
Financial assets included SARMERFIEN

in other receivables SHEE - 4,433 = 4,433 - 342,710 - 342,710
Amounts due from subsidiaries B4t} B 2 7] 78 - 2,210,039 - 2,210,039 - 1,490,042 - 1,490,042
Cash and cash equivalents RekHeEEY - 487,612 - 487,612 - 2,186,064 - 2,186,064

91,485 4,292,032 1,720 4,385,237 302,828 5,229,551 362,693 5,895,072
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (Continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows (Continued):

Financial
liabilities

at fair value
through profit

2007

Financial
liabilities

Bt %5 3R & Y 5T
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NREBEEESBNI2E®MIA ()

REER REEESN e T AZEREE
R (&)

Company
N
2006
Financial
liabilities
at fair value Financial
through profit liabilities

or loss-held at amortised or loss-held at amortised
Financial liabilities tHER for Trading at cost Total  for trading at cost Total
BBER BB
RARE RANE
FEH REBH FTEM REHH
tWMEE- BAGER SRER- KA E )
KFEE StHER ch RIEEE Ea: =0 ch
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TR THET TR
Financial liabilities included T AE fto & £
in other payables FENERERE - 19,221 19,221 = 162,390 162,390
Interest-bearing bank loans FERTER - 3,627,930 3,627,930 - 3,617,235 3,617,235
Amounts due to subsidiaries e HT B A Rl FUB = 211,169 211,169 = 170,730 170,730
Derivative financial instruments TESRIA 6,275 - 6,275 - - -
6,275 3,858,320 3,864,595 - 3,950,355 3,950,355

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than derivative

financial instruments, comprise interest-bearing bank loans, cash

and cash equivalents, equity investments and investment in senior

notes. The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise

finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other

financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and trade

payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including the

Equity Accumulator. The purpose is to manage the equity price

risks arising from individual equity investments classified as trading

equity investments and available-for-sale investments as at 31

December 2007.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are

interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity

risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing

each of these risks and they are summarised below.

43. M BRAREEZBNREEK

AEEZIZERMTIE (TEETEERT
) BRFERRTER R RRSEFEY #
SHERENBEEZBERE-HFEMTAZE
ERBNAAKBERGERES - AKBEES
ZHREMESREENAE fIMERKXRBEX
75 2 1 W B 0 2 A B K o

AEETRETETAR S BREEREARFH
B HEWNREEBAR_ZZELF+ A=+
—BENKEEREERSRERAHLE
REZERREMELNERERRR-

AEBrzesRITAMELEZRBREZ AT X
E - sNERRE - EERBRRETEBE SRR &
F2eRNIUHEERLERE 2 SBER
BEIE T o
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The interest rate risk of the Group is mainly due to the interest rate
fluctuations of its bank borrowings. Interest on these bank
borrowings is computed based on market rates. Currently, the Group
has not use any derivative contract to hedge against interest rate
risk and the Group mainly performs its risk management through
adjustments in its borrowing portfolios which comprise fixed interest
rate borrowings and floating interest rate borrowings.

The Group will constantly assess the interest rate risk it encounters
to decide whether it is required to hedge against the possible
interest rate risk that may arise.

On 31 December 2007, assuming the interest rate of bank borrowings
was increased/decreased by 50 basis points and all other factors
remained unchanged, then profit after tax for the year of the Group
and the Company would have decreased/increased by approximately
HK$20,993,665 (2006: HK$13,232,658), HK$18,139,650 (2006:
HK$12,554,582), respectively.

Foreign currency risk

As most of the operating income of the Group’s business is in RMB
and assets held and all of the committed borrowings of the Group
are mainly denominated in RMB and US$. During the year, RMB
appreciated compared to US$ and HK$. Management believes such
an appreciation will not have any negative effect on the Group.
Hence, the Group has not adopted any financial instruments for
hedging purposes. However, the Group will constantly assess the
foreign exchange risk it encounters so as to immediately decide
the hedging policy required to hedge against the possible foreign
exchange risk that may arise.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currency risk (Continued)

On 31 December 2007, assuming that against US$/HK$, RMB
appreciated by 5% and all other factors remained unchanged, then
profit after tax for the year of the Group and the Company would
have increased by HK$108,370,335 (2006: HK$102,551,145),
HK$46,739,056 (2006: HK$46,487,028), respectively. The change
is mainly the net value that comes from the exchange gains in
US$-denominated bank borrowings and RMB-denominated cash
and cash equivalents, and offset by the exchange loss in RMB-
denominated trade payables.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties except for the sales of properties, for which no credit is
given to the customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not
significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which comprise
cash and cash equivalents, available-for-sale financial assets and
other receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. The Group is also exposed to credit risk through the
granting of financial guarantees, further details of which are
disclosed in note 40(i) to the financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is no requirement for collateral. Concentrations
of credit risk are managed by customer and by industry sector.
There are no significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the customers bases of the Group’s trade receivables are
widely dispersed in different geographical region.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 27
to the financial statements.
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk arises when the Group is unable to meet its current
liabilities that fall due. The Group’s objective is to maintain a
balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the
use of short and long term bank loans. Through maintaining a
reasonable proportion in its assets and liabilities structure, the
Group is able to meet the on going financial needs of the Group.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the
balance sheet date, based on the contracted undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

. UBERBERZBENREEK (&)

B R B

BEAEETREZEEEINPNRE B EEA
EERBUERR -AREEEERBEREHR
EHRTER #RFESREHREEEREZ
FEH-BAKEEERGBLAIRFESRIEK
FAREEREAEE SR IMBEFR-

REER AEERBESOENMFBEFES
BEEZIBABRMOT:

Group r&E
2007
Within One to Two to Over
one year two years  three years  three years Total
—FR —EWE =E=f SEUE =
HK$/000 HK$’000 HK$/000 HK$’000 HK$/000
THER THER THERT THER TER
Interest-bearing bank loans HEIRTER 3,547,163 2,329,984 42,752 3,717,709 9,637,608
Trade payables J& 15F BR 3K 46,285 2,825 2,792 35,063 86,965
Other payables H A FE 51 650,089 365,908 108,694 115,385 1,240,076
Total B 4,243,537 2,698,717 154,238 3,868,157 10,964,649
2006
Within One to Two to Over
one year two years  three years  three years Total
—FR —EWRE —E=F ZFKNE &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET FHET THET FHET
Interest-bearing bank loans HEBITER 1,876,557 279,076 19,934 5,207,968 7,383,535
Trade payables JE 5% B 3K 121,078 6,642 3,069 47,312 178,101
Other payables H fth & 15 518 2,018,330 109,127 79,949 45,010 2,252,416
Total BE 4,015,965 394,845 102,952 5,300,290 9,814,052
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43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities as at the
balance sheet date, based on the contracted undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

3. M BEBERECBENREE (&

REMERER (&

REER AARRBSOENMFBEFES

BEEZIBABRMOT:

Company A FE
2007
Within One to Two to Over
one year two years  three years three years Total
—FR —ZEWF —E=f ZEHRE &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TERT THERT THERT TER
Interest-bearing bank loans EEIRITER - = - 3,627,930 3,627,930
Other payables H b & {5 5K 1B 79,551 18,560 = - 98,111
Total &5t 79,551 18,560 - 3,627,930 3,726,041
2006
Within One to Two to Over
one year two years  three years  three years Total
—F R —EWMEF —E=E =FNE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FAT THAT FHT FAT
Interest-bearing bank loans EEIRITER - - - 3,617,235 3,617,235
Other payables H ) FE 5 5RIE 224,082 - - - 224,082
Total &5t 224,082 = - 3,617,235 3,841,317
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (Continued)
Equity price risk

The equity pricing risk of the Group mainly comes from the changes
in market price for held-for-trading equity investments. The book
value of this type of financial assets held by the Group is recognised
according to market quotes as at the balance sheet date.

On 31 December 2007, assuming that the price of listed equity
securities held by the Group was increased/decreased by 10%,
and all other factors remained unchanged and excluding tax items,
the book value of the listed equity securities of the Group and the
Company should have increased/decreased by HK$60,299,000
(2006: HK$30,799,000) and HK$9,149,000 (2006: HK$30,283,000),
respectively.

Capital management

The objectives of the Group’s capital management policy are to
ensure the financing capabilities of the Company in running its
operation on a going concern basis, maintain an optimised capital
structure, reduce capital cost and maximise the value of
shareholders.

The Group manages and adjusts its capital structure appropriately
according to the specific features of the risks of our assets and the
changes in various economic conditions. Through adjustments in
dividends distribution, injections and repayments of capital by
shareholders or issuance of new shares, the Group is able to
maintain an optimised capital structure of the Company.

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR

. UBERBERZBENREEK (&)

B 18 /2 B

AEEZRERRIBREXZFEERER
BemEZB LWERAKEREEREEL
REEDRBEEEATISRERER-

R-ZEZLFE+ - F=+—H BRAEEEF
B2 ERAFEHFZ B EHTE30% ©
FrEEMEARGRFNE CREERE) @8R
SERARNABz ERAFLS 2EREERES
B3 50, 460,299,000 7T (— BE N F:
30,799,000/ 7T) & 9,149,000/ 7t (Z T Z X
£ :30,283,000/8 7T) °

BEXER
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43.

44.

Notes to Financial Statements |

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors capital using net gearing ratio, which is short
and long term bank loans minus cash and cash equivalents divided
by total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent. The
Group’s policy is to maintain the gearing ratio less than 75% and
comply with the relevant requirements of bank loan agreements.
The gearing ratios as at balance sheet dates were as follows:

43.

Bt %5 3R & Y 5T

31 December 2007 —_EZE+H+-_A=+—H

MERBREEZBNRBE (&)

EXEE (£)

AEBRFEAARBL R (A RRBRT
ERXRA SRR EEBYHRIAT AR RER
BARGRGZARE ERREEL - AEBZR
RIOBEABBELRBERFE7S%AT RET
ROTEFBENERARE-REEAZELRR
BRI :

Group
REE
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx F& T
Interest-bearing bank loans (notes 30) EEIRITER (MHE30) 9,637,608 7,383,535
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEEYD (4,689,828) (4,211,668)
4,947,780 3,171,867
Total equity attributable to BRARERE A
equity holders of the parent JE (5 #E 2 48 3R 9,848,804 6,442,516
Gearing ratio ERBELE 50% 49%
POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS 4. FEHERER

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement on 5 March
2008, proposing the disposal of its 51% an equity interest in Huayin
Traffic, for a price consideration of RMB609 million. Huayin Traffic
holds a 91% interest of Jingdong Company. Jingdong Company is
principally engaged in the construction and operation of the
Jingdong Expressway in Hubei, Mainland China. Upon the
completion of the proposed disposal, the Company will cease to
own any interest in Huayin Traffic. Details of the proposed disposal
are contained in the announcement published by the Company on
6 March 2008. The Group received a deposit equivalent to 10% of
the transaction price on 1 April 2008.

REBR - ZEZN\FE=FABTLEEH="
A A R#609,000,00070 2 KB H & E R =
IR 51%WE-ERIBIFFHRRD A
91%ME2s o FIER 2 Al £ B E R A B RREM AL
EREREEHFRRRAK RERITETZ
HEEEE ARARBTB#REGERIBENM
B ETZHESHEZARBRINEAAAR
ZEENF=ARNAHEZAMG AEERZ
T N\FMA—BEEEBRLES HEEAS
RBEBRSEE10% °
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31 December 2007 —_EZ+&+-A=+—H

44.

45.

46.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (Continued)

On 4 January 2008, the Plaintiff and Shum Yip Shenzhen entered
into an Amicable Settlement Agreement, pursuant to which the
Plaintiff agreed to partially waive the claim mentioned in note 40
(iii) to the financial statements. However, the remaining claim of
HK$40,000,000 was still subject to final judgment of the court.
Further details of the transaction are included in note 40 (iii) to
the financial statements.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

The comparative income statement has been restated as if the
operations discontinued during the current year had been
discontinued at the beginning of the comparative period (note 11).

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the board of directors on 10 April 2008.

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR

44.

45.

46.

RERRSEE (B)

R-ZTENF—ANE  REEFERYIFTL
MEHz Bl RERE BoREHBRE
Bt 5E40(ii) BT it 2 =& - SR T - E £240,000,000
BILZBRNAGERZZRER - ZRHZ
HE— B EFIE O B 7% R 3R I RE40ii) ©

&%
HBREXRCERAFEERIEQEMNER
R LB R 46 B B R LG B R E S (M
1) e

Rt B 3 AR
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Five-Year Financial Summary |

TFEUYBREE

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
(Restated)
FAx FAT FAT FAT FHBT
(%)
RESULTS ¥
REVENUE FROM BFEEEEY
CONTINUING OPERATIONS Z W& 2,900,410 1,812,597 3,003,435 2,000,131 1,893,413
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B %6 A0 )% A
(Including profit from (BE*EE
discontinued operations) BEKRR) 2,658,933 1,335,561 997,529 769,346 452,474
Tax 18 (725,530)  (197,185)  (152,479) (57,878) (99,100)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F R F 1,933,403 1,138,376 845,050 711,468 353,374
ATTRIBUTABLE TO: THEL:
Equity holders of the parent BRAREEREEA 1,714,821 803,606 534,339 422,561 236,011
Minority interests LERRES 218,582 334,770 310,711 288,907 117,363
1,933,403 1,138,376 845,050 711,468 353,374
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EE-BER
MINORITY INTERESTS LYRRER
Total assets BERE 25,516,898 18,133,942 12,069,375 11,331,771 9,813,406
Total liabilities BEE (14,291,950) (10,337,166) (5,767,477) (6,243,590) (5,057,828)
Minority interests LERRES (1,376,144) (1,354,260) (1,509,382) (1,375,590) (1,384,432)

9,848,804 6,442,516 4,792,516 3,712,591 3,371,146
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Property List |

| — Prope
ity Sl

interest held b% the e Group for sales

ME—-—EBX

RIEHEEZY

Interest TGFA  Completion

Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.) Date
AREER
ES iy 3tk A& SEfEER (F5K) ER B
Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone  Futian, Shenzhen Ind. and Res. 75% 6,846.00 2006
BERBIXE AR E R TERER
Tianan Che Gong Miao Futian, Shenzhen Ind. 37.5% 9,146.00 2006
Ind. Zone
RRERBIXE AYEHE %
Xian Shum Yip Junction of Jiefang Road ~ Com., Off. 100% 14,591.00 2000
Commercial City and Dongyi Road, Xian  and Carpark
BRREER 7 % h R DK B2 BEWRER
% Lutk)k/\ 1?$i’ﬁ
Shum Yip Coast Phase | & Il Baoan, Shenzhen Res. 100% 5336.00  2006-2007
RETFR 8 RIEL R Ex
Pengsheng Pengcheng Shenzhen Com. and Res. 50% 15,536.00 2006
B el BEREE
Harbin Shum Yip Building ~ No.259 Dazhi Street, Com./Res. 100% 6,724.00 1996
Nan Gang, Harbin

RRBEREAE BREBEAEMESIR B A
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Property List |

ME—-—EBERX

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

Gro f I - Prope )}z interest held b% the e Group for sales
B XK % BEEFEHEHEZY
Interest TGFA  Completion
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.) Date
AREER
ES iy 31k A& SEmERER (F5K) &R H
7. Pengxing Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 100% 214.00 2005
i5 B E RINE = Ex
8. Zhongxin Science & Futian, Shenzhen Off. 100% 15,227.00 2001
Technology Building
REMBAE RYEHE i UNES
9. Noah Mountain Forest Changsha City, Hunan  Res. 80% 7,228.00 2007
Phase |
# o AR — 2 MEERD™ E=E
10.  Huizhou Wanlin Lake Huizhou Res. 100% 28,820.00 2008
Phase |
BN E N — 1 BM Ex
Sub-total: /NEt: 109,668.00
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Gro f Il — Property interest held by the Group under development

= Zliﬁl?iﬁi‘éfﬂlﬂz#@%%ﬁ
Interest TGFA  Completion
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.) Date
AREER

ES iy 31k A& SEfEER (F5K) &R H

11. Noah Mountain Forest Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 70,000.00 2008
Phase II
RN Sl MEERD™ Ex

12. Tian’an Golf Seaview Shenzhen, Guangdong  Res. 37.5% 151,838.00 2008
Garden Phase Il
AEBARTEE=H BERERYI® EE

13. Shum Yip Coast Phase Il Shenzhen, Guangdong  Res. 100% 256,177.00 2008
REHFHR=H BERERY® Fx

14. Huizhou Wanlin Lake Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 107,510.00 2008
Phase II
BMEHHN 5 EREBMT Ex

15.  Water Pine Building Shenzhen, Guangdong  Ind. 75% 32,600.00 2008
KIEKE BERERYIW %

16.  Nanhu Rose Bay Phase | Wuhan, Hubei Res. 52.5% 152,539.00 2008
MR E — ALERES Fx

17. Tian’an Longgang
New Cyber-City Phase | Shenzhen, Guangdong  Ind. 37.5% 66,323.00 2008
REERBBHH B ERERY® Ix

18.  Tian’an Panyu
Phase Ill & IV Panyu, Guangdong Ind. 37.5% 126,656.00 2008
AREBE=RNH ERER I%

19.  Tian’an Nanhai
New Cyber-City Phase | Nanhai, Guangdong Ind. 33.8% 68,523.00 2008
RRZ BB H I — ERER LD I%
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Property List | #1% — B &

Gro f Il — Property interest held by the Group under development

B= Zliﬁl?iﬁﬁfqﬂz#@%%ﬁ
Interest TGFA  Completion
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.) Date
AREER

ES iy 3tk A& SEfEER (F7K) ER B

20.  Purple Kylin Hill Shenzhen, Guangdong  Res. 100% 102,507.00 2008-2009
Phase | (Part 1&2)
ZBL-8(0 - 282) ERERY® £

21. Royal Spring villas Dongguan, Guangdong  Res. 100% 176,000.00 2009
BN BEREREM FE

22. Nanhu Rose Bay Phase Il Wuhan, Hubei Res. 75% 157,100.00 2009
mMBRE = ML ERES Ex

23. Noble Residence Shenzhen, Guangdong  Res. 100% 126,400.00 2009
R L5 BERERYS FE

24.  Pengji Times Industrial Park ~ Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 100% 88,820.00 2009
BERKAXE ERERI® Ix

25. Garden Hill Phase | Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 86,407.00 2009
SRl BEREZMD E=x

26.  Tian’an Buji Hongda Shenzhen, Guangdong  Res. 37.5% 95,560.00 2009
Building
REMERERE BERERYS FE

27. Huizhou Wanlin Lake Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 60,323.00 2010
Phase III
BMEMN =4 BEREEMT FE

28.  Red Pine Building Shenzhen, Guangdong  Ind. 75% 45,800.00 2010
AIMAE ERERY® Ix

29.  Chaohu Project Phase | Chaohu, Anhui Res. 80% 30,400.00 2011
EHMEE -4 ZEEERT FE

Sub-total: /NEt:2,001,483.00
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Gro f Il - Prop ert%mterest held by the Group for future development
BZRH-LTKEEE 1’EE{§§§FZ¢@¥#§@
Interest TGFA
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.)
ABREER
S o 31t Rz KBRS (F5K)
30.  Noah Mountain Forest Changsha, Hunan Res. 80% 1,700,000.00
#h oz LU AR HEERDH Fx
31. Huizhou Wanlin Lake Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 243,119.00
BINEMH BEREEMD FE=E
32. Huizhou Zhongkai Huizhou, Guangdong Com., office 100% 259,230.00
City Square
BINR BT RS BEREEMD BEBLE
33.  Garden Hill Huizhou, Guangdong Res. 100% 565,376.00
¥l EREEMD Ex
34, Dongguan Wanjiang project Dongguan, Guangdong Res., Com 100% 193,433.00
RBILEH EREREM B
35.  Jiangsu Taizhou Project Taizhou, Jiangsu Res., Com 100% 570,094.00
IHZMER IEERMD A
36.  Terra Building Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 75% 130,200.00
ZAKE ERERIIH I%
37. Snow Pine Building Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 75% 42,700.00
SMAE BRE R I%
38. Nanhu Rose Bay Wuhan, Hubei Res. 53% 233,279.00
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Property List |

ME—-—EBERX

Gro f Il - Prop ert%mterest held by the Group for future development
B -XEEE 1’!551&?&‘):2%%#%@
Interest TGFA
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.)
AREER
S 31k A& SE S (¥ K)
39.  Tian'an Longgang Shenzhen, Guangdong Ind. 37.5% 290,194.00
New Cyber-City
K% BE A ENHB HT BRE R I%
40.  Tian’an (Nanhai) Nanhai, Guangdong Ind. 33.8% 223,456.00
New Cyber-City
KL # B HIE R BEREMED I%
41.  Tian’an (Dongguan) Dongguan, Guangdong Ind. 29.3% 1,547,230.00
New Cyber-City Phase 1
RERZHEN — 1 BERER=M I%
42.  Tian’an Panyu Panyu, Guangdong Ind. 37.5% 416,867.00
New Cyber-City
AZEBBHBEHN EREERD I%
43.  Shunde Beijiao project Foshan, Guangdong Res., com 100% 783,227.00
JE{E L ZE B BERAHILD B
44.  Purple Kylin Hill Phase Il Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 100% 121,600.00
KB BRERYIH (S
45.  Chaohu Bantang Resort Chaohu, Anhui Res., hotel 80% 153,600.00
S+ 5E R REEERD FE BE
46.  Longgang Pingshan project Shenzhen, Guangdong Res., com 100% 270,000.00
FERIFILEH BRERYIH A
47.  Longgang Kengzi project Shenzhen, Guangdong Res., com 100% 102,000.00
EEAFERR BERE R B

SHENZHEN INVESTMENT LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2007

197



Property List | ¥ % — B &

Gro f 11l - Prop ert%

interest held by the Group for future development

BZRH-LTKEEE 1’EE{§§§FZ¢@¥#§@
Interest TGFA
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.)
ABREER
nE o 31t Rz KBRS (F5K)
48.  Huizhou Western Huizhou, Guangdong Res., com 100% 372,077.00
Train Station project
BMAERIER EREEMD A
49.  Qiqu Land Shenzhen, Guangdong Logistic 95.4% 409,100.00
tELi BERE R R
50.  Qingshuihe Land Shenzhen, Guangdong Logistic 95.4% 258,000.00
B L3 ERERIIH R
51. Heyuan Land Heyuan, Guangdong Res., com 100% 1,450,000.00
R L BRETRD B
52.  Foshan Yundonghai Foshan, Guangdong Res., com 100% 961,651.00
FUERSE EREHLD A
53.  Shenzhen Fuyong project Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 48.7% 137,000.00
#II1EKIE B ERERIIH F=E
54.  Shenzhen Meilin project Shenzhen, Guangdong Res. 48.7% 134,721.00
A1 IE B ERERIIm Fx
55.  Jiangsu Taicang project Taicang, Jiangsu Com., Off., Res. 37.5% 850,000.00
THARER IHEAR™ BERAEE
56.  Jiangsu Changzhou Changzhou, Jiangsu Res., Ind. 37.5% 686,600.00
project
L& R INER TEHEFEMD I% =%
57.  Shumyip Taifu City Maanshan, Anhui Res., Com, Off. 67.0% 1,103,671.00

Garden
AEREBLHE

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR
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BEBLEE

Sub-total: /T :
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Property List | #1% — B &

Groul) IV — Property interest held by the Group for investment
= Zliﬁl?iﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁz#@%%ﬁ
Interest TGFA  Completion
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.) Date
AREER
nE iy 31k itk SEmERER (F7K) &R H
58.  Shun Hing Square Shennan Zhong Road, Com., Off., Res. 100% 18,367.11 1996
Jiefang Road and and Carpark
Baoan Road, Luohu,
Shenzhen
FRES RN BB R AR BERAE
BUBERELERR  EEREES
59.  ShumYip Centre Shennan Zhong Road, ~ Com. and Off. 100% 7,422.84 1997
Luohu, Shenzhen
RERD RN H R E R EEYE N
60.  Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Com./Res., Com. 50% 5,853.09 1993
Luohu, Shenzhen and Carpark
ERAE RYNEHEARBR B/ R EEREES
61.  Hua Min Building Renmin Nan Road, Com./Res. 100% 1,376.98 1993
Luohu, Shenzhen
ERAE RYNEHEARBER A/
62.  Shum Yip Building Wenjin Zhong Road, Com., Off. 100% 5,393.92 1991
Luohu, Shenzhen and Carpark
RAERE R B X8R B B BAZEREES
63.  Shen Gang Garden Shennan Dong Road, Com. and Res. 80% 3,508.10 1994
Luohu, Shenzhen
RETLE RYNEHERERE BEREE
64.  Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone  Futian, Shenzhen Com., Off., Com./ 75% 118,688.81 1994-2007
Res., Ind., Res.
and Carpark
ERBIXE R EHER BERAE
B E IR
EERERES
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Groul) IV — Property interest held by the Group for investment
SEHE Zliﬁl?iﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁz#@%%ﬁ
Interest TGFA  Completion
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.) Date
AREER
ES iy 31k A& SEfEER (F5K) &R H
65.  No.10 Fuxing Nan Road Futian, Shenzhen Res. 75% 96.66 1990
REMKI0% AYI7E A = Ex
66.  Shenhua Science & Meilin Road, Ind. 75% 15,341.58 1994
Technology Park Futian, Shenzhen
ARERE R Y78 i 3R 1%
67.  Harbin Shum Yip Building ~ No.259 Dazhi Street, Com./Res. 100% 3,823.19 1996
Nan Gang, Harbin and Carpark
RRBEREAE BREEEAES2SYY B/ ERERS
68.  Shop in No.117 Fuxing Road Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 50.49 1993
BERI7REH AYEHE EES
69. Levels 1 and 2, Mei Gang Nan Road, Com. 100% 2,881.72 1995
Bi Jia Garden Futian, Shenzhen
RN 1B R2ERES RYEHRBEER  BX
70.  Shen Gang Xin Cun Luohu, Shenzhen Res., Ind. and Carpark  80% 9,719.33 1992
RAE RN R FE IXREES
71. Fuxing Building No.9 Fuxing Road, Com., Off. and Carpark 100% 1,593.20 1993
Futian, Shenzhen
REXE RYI AR 2R 9% BE BLEREES
72. Shum Yip Building, No.9 Shandong Road, Com. and Com./Res. ~ 100% 3,421.97 1997

Qingdao Shum Yip Centre
EEARETLRAEANE
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Property List |

ME—-—EBERX

Groul) IV — Property interest held by the Group for investment
EHE 2F$l?*ﬁ1’ﬁ¢§t§2%¥$§ﬁ
Interest TGFA  Completion
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.) Date
AREER
ES iy 31k A& SEfEER (F5K) &R H
73. Xian Shum Yip Junction of Jiefang Road  Off. 100% 2,694.16 2000
Commercial City and Dongyi Road, Xian
BRREER 7 % i i DR 2 WRE
ﬁ_%ﬁ\_ﬁu
74.  Tianan Che Gong Miao Futian, Shenzhen Off., Ind., Res. 37.5% 61,538.97 2000-2005
Ind. Zone and Carpark
AREABEIXRR A Y78 A R oz I%
FEREES
75.  Shenrong Building Futian, Shenzhen Com. and Res. 40% 6,526.80 2000
RERE A Y78 A R BENEE
76.  Huagang Xin Cun Futian, Shenzhen Com. and Res. 80% 4,049.87 1995
RN A0 R AEREE
77.  Yitai Centre Luohu, Shenzhen Com. and Res. 100% 964.73 1995
EEEw RYNE = BEREE
78.  Qing Shui He Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. Res. and Off. 95% 1,442.00 1985-1989
Warehouse Zone
BKAEER RINE R I EERPAE
79.  Shum Yip Garden Futian, Shenzhen Com. 100% 2,646.43 2002
RETLHE AYEHE EES
80.  Sungang Warehouse Zone  Baoan Bei Road, Ind. and Com. 95% 102,658.21 1990-2002
Luohu, Shenzhen
BERER RYNBHRELZILE  BAXRIE
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ME—-—EBX

Groul) IV — Property interest held by the Group for investment
SEHE Zliﬁl?iﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁz#@%%ﬁ
Interest TGFA  Completion
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.) Date
AREER
ES iy 31k A& SEfEER (F5K) &R H
81.  Zijing Yuan Futian, Shenzhen Carpark 100% 7,257.00 1997
ESib RYEEE fFE5
82.  Jinze Bldg. Tianhe District, Res. 80% 240.91 1997
Guangzhou
TEAE EMXRA R Ex
83.  Guangzhou Fuxing Huangpu Da Road, Off. 80% 150.55 1997
Com. & Trading Bldg. Tianhe District,
Guangzhou
ENEEREAER BEMXATREHAE  BAE
85.  S.Z. Int'l. Trust and Junction of Zhenxin Road Off. 75% 1,316.54 1990
Investment Corp. Building  and Shangbu Zhong Road,
Futian, Shenzhen
ARYBEREERE ARYI78 A = iR E 3R BWAE
BREIRE LERBRIR
86.  Shenyang Wuai Shenyang City, Com. and Ind. 28.8% 27,412.80 1994-1996
Liaoning Province
BHLE BEEREGD BERTE
87.  Pengji Properties Shenzhen Com., Res., Ind. 100% 313,723.05 1983-2001
and Carpark
RS ES 3l BE EEIER
fFE5
Sub-total: /N5F: 730,161.01
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Groul) V - Property interest held I;JE the Group for self-occupation

EHAE 2F$l?*ﬁ1’ﬁ§ﬁ2%
Interest TGFA  Completion
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.) Date
AREER
ES iy 31k A& SEmERER (F5K) &R H
88.  ShumYip Centre Shennan Zhong Road, Off. 100% 1,880.50 1997
Luohu, Shenzhen
RER D RN &R BB WAE
89.  Shum Yip Building Wenjin Zhong Road, Com. and Off. 100% 2,060.20 1991
Luohu, Shenzhen
AERE RN 2 HA I S8R o B BERBAE
90.  Shenrong Building Futian, Shenzhen Com., Res. and Carpark  40% 3,846.54 2000
REKE A& E R BE EERFES
91.  No.4 Tengfei Street Shenyang Res. and Carpark 80% 153.93 1992
B R4 45 &5 EERRES
92.  Land in Shawan Shawan, Shenzhen Carpark 80% 1,480.00 2002
DELH RINY R FES
93.  Harbin Shum Yip Building ~ No.259 Dazhi Street, Com./Res. 100% 667.40 1996
Nan Gang, Harbin
BEEREAE EERE R w/
REH259%
94, Unit 202, No.58 Jilin Street Harbin Res. 100% 72.82 1992
B 585%20258 BEAD ffx
95.  Qingdao Shum Yip Centre  No.9 Shandong Road, Com./Res. 100% 372.22 1993
Nanshan, Qingdao
BEREXFDL EETHULEBRLREKSY B&/&
96.  Elaine Court Nos.211-215
Tong Choi Street,
Kowloon, Hong Kong Res. 40% 43.01 1986
REHA BENERXH Ex
211E215%;
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Groul) V - Property interest held I;JE the Group for self-occupation
EHE 2F$l?*ﬁ1’ﬁ§ﬁ2%
Interest TGFA  Completion
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.) Date
BEEEE
M i 3k R# SEfEER (FFHXK) %R B
97. Forum Court No0.9-9B Peace Ave., Res. 40% 49.24 1979
Homantin, Kowloon,
Hong Kong
=R BENEMXH F=E
A FiE9— 9B
98.  Tian Yuan Xin Cun Futian, Shenzhen Res. 100% 103.23 1997
PR D] AYIEHE F=x
99.  Sungang Warehouse Futian, Shenzhen Off. and Res. 95% 10,502.41 1988-1991
BHERE ~EER RREREE
100.  Che Gong Miao Ind. Zone  Futian, Shenzhen Com. and Res. 75% 4,270.08 1994-2005
BERBIXE AYIEHE HEREE
101.  Xian Shum Yip Junction of Jiefang Road ~ Off. 100% 712.88 2000
Commercial City and Dongyi Road, Xian
AR REER 78 %2 T R T B B WRE
R—BXA
102.  Block 1, Liangtong Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 100% 337.08 1990’
Aidewei Industrial Area
BEEBEIXEE R RNEHR I%
103.  Block 709, Liangtong Luohu, Shenzhen Ind. 80% 4,941.49 1994
Industrial Area
ERIXR709R RINE W R T%#
104. Lian Nan Garden Luohu, Shenzhen Res. 80% 744.28 1993
EHTR wYE R F=x
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Grour V - Property interest held g the Group for self-occupation
ERE Zliﬁli’i“ﬁ_ﬂzﬁﬁzw
Interest TGFA  Completion
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.) Date
HREER
ES o 31k RE SEfEER (¥7K) ERAH
105.  Business Space-Time Centre Futian, Shenzhen Off. 100% 296.00 2006
A= A Y78 A R /NS
106.  Development Site Luohu, Shenzhen Off 80% 3,108.00 1999
in Shawan
WELH RINE B = BWAE
107.  Huagiao Estate, Huizhou, Res 80% 500.07 1989
Danshui, Huizhou Guangdong
BMAKEBHH BEREEMM Ex
108.  Shenyang Dongfang Shenyang, Res. 28.8% 160.48 2005
Weinisi Liaoning
BER7 B BELRRT EE
109.  Shenyang Wuai Shenyang, Off 28.8% 1,831.20 1994-1996
Logistic Building Liaoning
BEOESER BELEGD WRE
110.  Building on Xinghe Road Huizhou, Res 40% 1,358.24 2002
Guangdong
B E T B BEREZM®D EE
111, Buildings and Jian, Jiangxi Ind. 40.8% 13,574.32 1978-2004
Land in Taihe County
FNELHRFEE IHEERM 1%
112. Pengji Properties Shenzhen, Guangzhou,  Com., Off. Res. 100% 24,177.10 1983-1998
Zhuhai and Nanjing and Ind.
BENE A EM KERER BEBAE
FERI%
Sub-total: /N3t : 77,242.72
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interest held by the Group under agreement

/A K& l BIEFEAZUE
Interest TGFA  Completion
Property Address Usage to the Group (sq.m.) Date
AREER
ES iy 31k A& SEmERER (F5K) &R H
113.  Jintian Garden Nanshan, Shenzhen Res. 80% 90.12 1991
THIEE AR & Ex
114, Lian Tang Ind. Zone Da Gu Ling, LianTang,  Res. 100% 2,767.00 1994
Luohu, Shenzhen
ERETXRE R W E F=x
HET
115.  Dong Bin Res. Area Nanyou Oil Development  Res. 45% 106.73 1992
Region, Nanshan,
Shenzhen
REEZR AELRERRER X
Sub-total: /]\it : 2,963.85

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR

Grand-total: # 3t :

17,129,943.58
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting
of Shenzhen Investment Limited (“the Company”) will be
held at Garden Room, 2nd Floor, Hotel Nikko Hong Kong,
72 Mody Road, Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon, Hong Kong on
Monday, 2 June 2008 at 9:00 a.m. for the following
purposes:—

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements
and the report of the directors and the independent
auditors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2007.

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2007.

3. To re-elect directors, to resolve not to fill up the vacated
offices resulted from the retirement of Mr. XIAO Rihai,
Mr. LIANG Kaiping and Mr. LEE Yip Wah, Peter as
Directors and to authorise the board of directors (the
“Board”) to fix the directors’ fee.

4. To re-appoint auditors of the Company and to authorise
the Board to fix their remuneration.

As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, to pass
with or without modifications the following resolutions:—

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS
5. “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) of this resolution, the exercise
by the directors of the Company during the Relevant
Period (as hereinafter defined) of all powers of the
Company to repurchase shares in the capital of the
Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) or on any other stock
exchange on which the securities of the Company
may be listed and is recognised by the Securities and
Futures Commission and the Stock Exchange for this
purpose, subject to and in accordance with all
applicable laws and/or the requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange or of any other stock exchange as amended
from time to time, be and is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

BEER)EZERERAR ([RAF])EET
RZTEZNFANAZA (EH—) LT
EREFBENERIDPEREWE72HRE
BAEMBEE2EEERBRTRRAFAS,
BB IR

1. ABARABE_ZTLF+ A=+
—BUEFE2RERMBRRNESS
& B T A% A o e

2. BHERBE-FELET A=
BUFE KBRS

3. BREEF BARTEMEEBABLEE.
RAFEERFERERLERTESTME
TRRLZER RERESSETES

4. ERANFIRBMEREEZTSEER
M-

ij2)3

EBERIEE ERRBIBRBTIRER
(THATIE) -

EERER
5. [B)&E&:

@ ERNRBEROBEZHART —8&E
B S IRTILERRBIEZTENE
BN (I T XFTRE) ATTEAR
BB NREBBERSME
RA® (TBRM]) RARBZE
GHRELMUKREFMPEFH
ERZBE BB mARA 2
ERMEMESFZ S BERIER
TREERTZMBERZEN R
KB X2 R RS 5 BT R Bl SR Eo A
EFR 5 HRTE  BEARRR
R 2 B dn s
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(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of the

(a)

Company to be repurchased by the Company pursuant
to the approval of paragraph (a) of this resolution
shall not exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue
as at the date of the passing of this resolution and the
authority pursuant to paragraph (a) of this resolution
shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing
of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting
of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is
required by law to be held; and

(iii) the passing of an ordinary resolution by
shareholders of the Company in general meeting
revoking or varying the authority given to the
directors of the Company by this resolution.”

“THAT:

subject to paragraph (c) of this resolution and pursuant
to Section 57B of the Companies Ordinance, the
exercise by the directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all powers
of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional
shares in the capital of the Company and to make or
grant offers, agreements and options (including
warrants, bonds, debentures, notes and other shares
which carry rights to subscribe for or are convertible
into shares of the Company) which would or might
require the exercise of such powers be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

FYZEBEER AT 2007F F iR
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(b) the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution shall

authorise the directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period to make or grant offers, agreements
and options (including warrants, bonds, debentures,
notes and other shares which carry rights to subscribe
for or are convertible into shares of the Company)
which would or might require the exercise of such
powers after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted
or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be
allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise)
and issued by the directors of the Company pursuant
to the approval in paragraph (a) of this resolution,
otherwise than pursuant to (i) a Rights Issue (as
hereinafter defined); or (ii) the exercise of rights of
subscription or conversion under the terms of any
existing warrants, bonds, debentures, notes or other
securities issued by the Company which carry rights
to subscribe for or are convertible into shares of the
Company; or (iii) the exercise of options granted under
any option scheme or similar arrangement for the time
being adopted for the grant or issue of shares or rights
to acquire shares in the Company; or (iv) any scrip
dividend or similar arrangement providing for the
allotment of shares in lieu of the whole or part of a
dividend on shares of the Company in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company, shall
not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue
as at the date of the passing of this resolution and the
said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

(b)

| RERBEXREES

RREBERQBRZALEBRERRF
EEenNABEHRAELIR TR
FENARPHERKRITEXSE
M2 EBGEZ s M (B1EN
BRNRBEX A EBRSAARRN
ZREEE EF EEE ZEX
H At B 10

ARREFERENRER QR Z
o BC 2 SR B PN S R S B
HIRERE (THEERIEMEMD
foss) RETZRARERR (RE
(I (3 N ARE) ~ S (D)TTE
B 5 # 1) 521 =k AT 8 B R 1 B B
2 EFRBREEE Em B
EBRBEREMARNRA T ZES
Z RERESRAE  H(iI)REE B
R 2 EAE LB B HBUR
AR TRBETARARNAEER
ARR P 2 N MR 2 B
TEH(VIRBEARR 2 HEEi2A
A AR B AT 8 S B L BE R R
Ao B A1) AR B B AN 2 B i Ik 3
ZEMHA DB ERIN) TFEB
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(d) for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing
of this resolution until whichever is the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting
of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next
annual general meeting of the Company is
required by law to be held; and

(iii)the passing of an ordinary resolution by
shareholders of the Company in general meeting
revoking or varying the authority given to the
directors of the Company by this resolution.”

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares or issue of
options, warrants or other securities giving the right
to subscribe for shares of the Company open for a
period fixed by the directors of the Company to
holders of shares whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company (and, where appropriate,
to holders of other securities of the Company entitled
to the offer) on a fixed record date in proportion to
their then holdings of such shares of the Company
(or, where appropriate such other securities) (subject
in all cases to such exclusions or other arrangements
as the directors of the Company may deem necessary
or expedient in relation to fractional entitlements or
having regard to any restrictions or obligations under
the laws of, or the requirements of any recognised
regulatory body or any stock exchange in, any territory
applicable to the Company).”
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7. “THAT subject to the passing of resolution nos. 5 and 6
set out in the notice convening this meeting, the general
mandate granted to the directors of the Company to
exercise the powers of the Company to allot, issue and
deal with additional shares in the Company pursuant to
resolution no. 6 set out in the notice convening this
meeting be and is hereby extended by the addition thereto
of an amount representing the aggregate nominal amount
of the share capital of the Company repurchased by the
Company under the authority granted pursuant to
resolution no. 5 set out in the notice convening this
meeting, provided that such extended amount shall not
exceed 10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date
of the passing of this resolution.”

8. “THAT (i) the directors of the Company be and are hereby
authorized, pursuant to the share option scheme adopted
on 5th June, 2002 and the 10 per cent. limit under the
share option scheme refreshed on 12th June, 2006, to
grant to Mr. ZHANG Huagiao share option (the “Share
Option”) to subscribe for not more than 12,000,000 shares
of the Company at the subscription price per share to be
determined at the date of offer of the grant of Share
Option; and (ii) the directors of the Company be and are
hereby authorized to approve and issue the offer letter
for the grant of the Share Option to Mr. ZHANG Huagiao
and to do any act or things to sign, seal, execute and/or
deliver any documents for and on behalf of the Company
as may be necessary, desirable or expedient in connection
with the grant and exercise of such Share Option.”

By order of the Board
HU Aimin

Chairman
Hong Kong, 28 April 2008

Registered Office:

8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre,
9 Science Museum Road,
Tsimshatsui,

Kowloon,

Hong Kong.
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Notes:

A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled
to appoint one or more proxies to attend and, on a poll, vote instead of him. A

proxy need not be a member of the Company.

To be valid, a form of proxy, together with the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy of that
power or authority must be deposited at the registered office of the Company at
8th Floor, New East Ocean Centre, 9 Science Museum Road, Tsimshatsui,
Kowloon, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time for holding the

meeting or any adjournment thereof.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 27 May
2008 to Monday, 2 June 2008, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend and to determine the identity of the shareholders who are entitled to
attend and vote at the meeting, all duly completed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Registrars,
Tricor Standard Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East,

Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:00 p.m. on Monday, 26 May 2008.

With regard to items 3 and 5 to 8 of this notice, a circular giving details of the
general mandates to repurchase shares and to issue shares, re-election of retiring
directors seeking re-election and proposed grant of options will be despatched
to the shareholders together with the Annual Report 2007 of the Company on
28 April 2008.

This notice is also available for viewing on the designated website of Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at www.hkexnews.hk and the website of

the Company at www.shenzheninvestment.com from 28 April, 2008.

As at the date of this notice, the Board comprises 13 directors, of which Mr. HU
Aimin, Mr. ZHANG Yijun, Mr. ZHAO Gesheng, Mr. XIAO Rihai, Mr. LIANG
Kaiping, Mr. LIU Weijun, Mr. ZHANG Huagiao and Mr. TAM Ping Lung are the
executive directors of the Company, Mr. LEE Yip Wah, Peter and Dr. WU Jiesi
are the non-executive directors of the Company and Mr. WONG Po Yan, Mr.
WU Wai Chung, Michael and Mr. LI Wai Keung are the independent non-

executive directors of the Company.
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